SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

MANAGEMENT REPORT

To

The Members

Sanwaria Consumer Limited

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal Indore Bench (“NCLT”) had vide its order dated May 29
2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”) of
Corporate Debtor in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 read with the rules and
regulations framed there under as amended from time to time (“Code”). Accordingly pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17 of the IBC the powers of the Board of Directors of the Corporate Debtor stands
suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev Goel appointed as the Insolvency Resolution
Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional). Further the committee of creditors (CoC) of the
Corporate Debtor pursuant to the meeting held on July 28 2020 and in terms of Section 22 (2) of the Code
resolved with 100% voting share to replace the existing Interim Resolution Professional with Mr. Gautam
Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly the NCLT has in its hearing
dated 4™ September 2020 through video conferencing pronounced the approval for the appointment of
Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP (“Resolution Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor.

Since the company is und.er Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) as per Section 17 of the
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code from the date of appointment of the Resolution Professional.

(a) the management of the affairs of the company shall vest in the Resolution Professional.

(b) the powers of the Board of Directors of the company shall stand suspended and be exercised by the
Resolution Professional.

(c) the officers and managers of the company shall report to the Resolution Professional and provide
access to such documents and records of the company as may be required by the Resolution Professional.

(d) the financial institutions maintaining accounts of the company shall act on the instructions of the
Resolution Professional in relation to such accounts and furnish all information relating to the company
available with them to the Resolution Professional.

RESULTS OF OUR OPERATIONS
Your Company’s financial performance for the year under review has been encouraging. Key aspects of
Standalone Financial Performance of SCL for the current financial year 2022-2023 along with the previous
financial year 2021-22 are tabulated below:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

For the year
ended March
312023

For the year
ended March
312022

For the year
ended March
312023

For the year
ended March
312022

Total Income

108.39

109.55

109.55

109.55
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Profit Before  Depreciation (11.54) (11.54) (14.68) (14.68)
Interest and Tax

Less: Depreciation & 514.87 651.30 649.42 785.85
Amortization expenses

Less: Finance cost 0.01 0.037 0.01 0.037
Profit before Taxation and (501.56) (662.88) (640.53) (800.56)
Exceptional Items

Less: Extraordinary and

Exceptional Iltem

Profit before Taxation (501.56) (662.88) (640.53) (800.56)

Less: Provision for Tax for - - - -
Current Year

Less: Provision for deferred Tax (79.39) (127.14) (79.39) (127.14)
Profit for the period (422.17) (535.74) (561.14) (673.42)
Other Comprehensive -- -- -- --
Income(net)

Profit After Tax (422.17) (535.74) (561.14) (673.42)
Dividend 0% 0% 0% 0%
Transferred to Reserves (422.17) (535.74) (561.14) (673.42)
Shareholders' Fund (58334.77) (57912.60) (58623.14) (58062.00)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (0.06) (0.07) (0.08) (0.09)
i) Basic (0.06) (0.07) (0.08) (0.09)
ii) Diluted

The revenue from operations for the year ended 31st March 2023 stood at Rs. 108.39 Lacs (Rupees One
hundred and Eight Lacs Approx.) as compared to Rs. 109.55 Lacs (Rupees One hundred and Nine Lacs
Approx.) for the previous year ending 31st March 2022. The loss before tax for the year ended 31st March
2023 stood at Rs. 501.56 Lacs (Rupees Five Hundred and One Lacs Approx.) as compared to loss of Rs.
662.88 Lacs (Rupees Six Hundred and Sixty Two Lacs Approx.) for the year ending 31st March 2022. The
Loss after Tax stood at Rs. 422.17 Lacs (Rupees Four Hundred and Twenty Two Lacs Approx.) for the year
ending 31st March 2023 as compared to loss of Rs. 535.74 Lacs (Rupees Five Hundred and Thirty Five Lacs
Approx.) for the previous year.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification in the Official Gazette dated February 16 2015
has issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015. Accordingly in compliance with the said
Rules the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the Financial Year 2022-
2023 have been prepared as per Indian Accounting Standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements under the Companies Act 2013
and as stipulated under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“SEBI (LODR)”). A separate section on Corporate Governance under SEBI
(LODR) along with a certificate from the auditors confirming the compliance is marked as Annexure and
forms part of this Directors Report.
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DISCLOSURES OF AMOUNTS IF ANY TRANSFER TO ANY RESERVES

An amount of Rs. (422.17 Lacs) is proposes to transfer to General Reserve from the profits of the year
under review.

DIVIDEND

Your company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process and incurring losses. The Board of
Directors (suspended during CIRP) does not recommend any dividend during the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs. 780000000 consisting of 760000000 Equity Shares of face
value of Rs. 1.00 each and 2000000 Preference Shares of Face value of Rs. 10 each and the Paid up capital
was increased to Rs. 736100000 consisting of 736100000 Equity shares of face value of Rs. 1.00 each.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTSIF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURED AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
AND AS AT THE DATE OF SIGNING THIS REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
after the Balance Sheet Date and as at the date of signing of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans guarantees or investments covered under the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act 2013 during the financial year 2022-2023.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Directors

As on March 31 2023 the Composition of Board of Directors of the Company included total of 5 (Five)
directors comprising of 3 (Three) Executive Directors 2 (Two) Non-Executive Independent Director.

Re-appointment

Mr. Satish Agrawal Director of the Company retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. The detail of the Directors being eligible to be
reappointed is set out in the in the explanatory statement to the notice of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.
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Key Managerial Personals

The Key Managerial Personals (KMPs) of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51)
and Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time
being in force) are as follows:

S.No. Name of KMP’s Designation
1. Gulab Chand Agrawal Chairman & Whole Time Director
2. Ashok Agrawal Whole Time Director
3. Satish Agrawal Whole Time Director
4. Surendra Kumar Jain Independent Director
5. Shilpi Jain Independent Director
6. Anil Kumar Vishwakarma Chief Financial Officer

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company’s policy on programmes and measures to familiarize Independent Directors about the
Company its business updates and development includes various measures viz. issue of appointment
letters containing terms duties etc. management information reports presentation and other
programmes as may be appropriate from time to time. The Policy and programme aims to provide insights
into the Company to enable independent directors to understand the business functionaries business
model and others matters. The said Policy and details in this respect is displayed on the Company’s
website.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Since the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended with effect from 29" May 2020 pursuant
to the orders dated 29" May 2020 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Indore Bench
Ahmedabad evaluation of Board has not taken place for the year 2022-23.

MEETINGS

The corporate insolvency resolution process (CIRP) of the Company has been in effect from 29" May 2020
as per the Orders passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal Indore Bench Ahmadabad. Four co-
ordination meetings was called by Resolution Professional (RP) on 31st May 2022, 13™ August 2022, 14th
November 2022 and 13™ February 2023 which was attended by Executive Director and Independent
Directors.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Since the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended w.e.f. 29" May 2020 pursuant to the
orders dated 29th May 2020 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Indore Bench
Ahmedabad the powers of the various committees have also been suspended with effect from the same
date as per SEBI circular No. SEBI/LADNRO/GN/2018/21 dated 31** May 2018 and hence no meetings have
since been conducted.

Prior to the commencement of corporate insolvency resolution process the Board had Four Committees
viz Audit Committee Nomination and Remuneration Committee Stakeholders Relationship Committee and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as mandated under the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. The details of the role of Audit Committee Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and stakeholders Relationship Committee along with their composition
number of meetings held during the financial year and attendance at the meetings are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report which forms an integral part of this Report.

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS KMPs SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of
SCL formulated in accordance with Section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read
with Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
for the time being in force). The salient aspects covered in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
outlined below:

% To identify the persons who are qualified to become director and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal.

% To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors key
managerial personnel and other employees of SCL.

+*» To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

0

% To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board
for further evaluation of the Board and to determining whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the independent director on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors.

% Torecommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management.

0

% To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort
performance dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

0

% To retain motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

+* To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.
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%+ To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.

< Toimplement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KMP’S

A statement containing the details of the Remuneration of Directors and KMP’s as required under Section
197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 is attached as ‘Annexure’ which forms part of this Annual Report.
However the Company has not paid any Managerial Remuneration for the financial year 2022-2023 to any
of its Whole-Time Directors and Non-Executive Director.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SCL has two wholly owned Subsidiary Companies:

> Sanwaria Singapore Private Limited (Singapore);
> Sanwaria Energy Limited

During the year there has been no business activity by Sanwaria Singapore Private Limited (Singapore)
foreign subsidiary of the Company. The Board has reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary. In accordance
with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and in accordance with the Accounting Standard AS-21
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Consolidated Financial Statements presented by
the Company in this Annual Report include the financial information of its subsidiary.

Further in accordance to the Section 136 of the Companies Act 2013; the Annual Accounts and related
documents of the subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection till the date of AGM during the
business hours at the Registered Office of the Company. The Company will also make available copy
thereof upon specific request by any Member of the Company interested in obtaining the same.

The statement containing the salient features relating to Subsidiary Company in the prescribed format in
AQC-1 is appended as an annexure to this Report.

COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
Your Directors states that Company has complied with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by
Institute of Company Secretaries of India revised and notified on October 01 2017.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 is available on the website of the
Company and shall be made available to the members on request.

ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/COURTS/ TRIBUNALS
Except for commencement of CIRP under the Code no material orders were passed by Regulators/ Courts /
Tribunals during the period impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act 2013 directors (suspended during CIRP) to the
best of their knowledge and belief state that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31 2023 the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
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i.  they have in the selection of the accounting policies consulted the Statutory Auditors and have
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2023 and of
its profits/ losses for the year ended on that date;

ii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

iii.  they have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2023 on a ‘going concern’
basis; and

iv.  they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

v.  they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MAINTAINENCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under Section
148 (1) of the Companies Act 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. Pramod K. Sharma & Co.; Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 007857C 11-12 Sarnath
Complex Opp. Board Office Shivaji Nagar Bhopal (M.P.) were appointed as the statutory auditors of the
Company to hold office for a period of five consecutive years from the conclusion of the 28" Annual
General Meeting held on December 26 2019 of the Company till the conclusion of 33™ Annual General
Meeting to be held in the year 2024.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments. The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is
part of the Annual Report. The Comments on the qualifications in the Auditors’ Report on the financial
statements of the Company for financial year 2022-23 are as provided in the “Statement on Impact of
Audit Qualifications” which is annexed hereafter as Annexure and forms part of this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 the Company has appointed Rakhi Dasgupta &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries having their office at 218, Paschim Daspara, Nischintapur
Road, Sonarpur, Kolkata- 700150 to undertake the Secretarial Audit functions of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by Rakhi Dasgupta & Associates in the prescribed form MR- 3 is
attached as an ‘Annexure’ which forms part of this Annual Report.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal Financial Controls
[IFC] within the meaning of the explanation to Section 134(5] (e) of the Act. The Board has adopted policies
and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to the
Company's policies the safeguarding of its assets the prevention and detection of frauds and errors the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosure.

In terms of SEBI (Listings Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendments)Regulations 2018
dated 31st May 2018 the Resolution professional Mr. Gautam Mittal appointed pursuant to NCLT vide
order dated 29th May 2020 against the Company and all the roles and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors/ Committees shall be fulfilled by the Resolution Professional in accordance with Section 17 and
Section 23 of IBC and powers of the Board of Directors/ Committee stands suspended

The Company management has been completely handed over to the Resolution Professional by the
suspended Board of Directors, on the initiation of the CIRP, as per the requirements under the Code.

The Resolution Professional has a well-placed proper and adequate internal financial control system which
ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are authorized recorded
and reported correctly.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition; the Companies Act 2013 re-emphasizes the need for an effective Internal Financial Control
system in the Company. The system should be designed and operated effectively. Rule 8(5)(viii) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 requires the information regarding adequacy of Internal Financial
Controls with reference to the financial statements to be disclosed in the Board's report.

To ensure effective Internal Financial Controls the Company has laid down the following measures:

e All operations are executed through Standard Operating Procedures in all functional activities for
which key manuals have been put in place. The manuals are updated and validated periodically.

e The Company has a comprehensive risk management framework.

o The Company has in place a well-defined Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy).

e Compliance of secretarial functions is ensured by way of secretarial audit.

e Compliance relating to cost records of the company is ensured by way of cost audit.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate
trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the
Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is
responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board Directors and the designated employees have
confirmed compliance with the Code.
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DISCLOSURE ON VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)

Pursuant to Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations your Company has established a mechanism called
‘Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy)’ for directors and employees to report to the appropriate
authorities of unethical behavior actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy and provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. The
policy permits all the directors and employees to report their concerns directly to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has an elaborate Risk Management procedure which is based on three pillars: Business Risk
Assessment Operational Controls Assessment and Policy Compliance processes. Major risks identified by
the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing
basis. Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing Agreement 2015 the
Company has a Risk Management Committee to monitor the risks and their mitigating actions and the key
risks are also discussed at the Committee. The details of the committee and its terms of reference are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Board Report. At present the company has
not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company. Some of the risks
identified by the Risk Management Committee relate to competitive intensity and cost volatility.

PERSONNEL

During the year under review no employees whether employed for the whole or part of the year was
drawing remuneration exceeding the limits as laid down u/s Section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013
read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules 2014. Hence the details required under Section 197(12) are not required to be given.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is about maximizing shareholders value legally ethically and sustainably. At SCL the
goal of Corporate Governance is to ensure fairness of every stakeholder. We believe sound corporate
governance is critical to enhancing and retaining investor trust. We always seek to ensure that our
performance is driven by integrity.

The Company has adopted the policies in line with new governance requirements including the
+* Policy on Related Party Transactions
+* Policy on Preservation of Documents of SCL.
s Policy on Determining Material Subsidiaries
Policy for Determination of Materiality.
Remuneration Policy
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism)
Code of Fair Disclosure
Code of Conduct to Regulate Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the Board of Directors Senior Management Personnel and
Other Employees.

R/
‘0

R/
0‘0

R/
0’0

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

X3

S

A separate report on Corporate Governance is provided together with a Certificate from the Statutory
Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under
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Listing Regulations. A Certificate of the CEO/CFO of the Company in terms of Listing Regulations inter alia
confirming the correctness of the financial statements and cash flow statements adequacy of the internal
control measures and reporting of matters to the Audit Committee is also annexed.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section 92(3) and Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014 is appended as an Annexure to this Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 and Listing Regulations your Company has
formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting;
approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the Company and Related
Parties.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on
Arm’s Length basis. No Material Related Party as per the last audited financial statements were entered
during the year by the Company. All Related Party Transactions as entered by the Company during the
Year is disclosed in Form AOC-2 as annexed along with this Report.

OPERATIONS PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY

A detailed review of operations and performance and future outlook of the Company is given separately
under the head ‘Management Discussion & Analysis’ pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Part B of
Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations is annexed and forms part of this Annual Report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company is committed to provide a protective environment at workplace for all its women employees.
To ensure that every woman employee is treated with dignity and respect and as mandated under “The
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013” the
Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to prevent prohibit and redress the cases of
sexual harassment of any women at workplace. The Company has designated an external Independent
member as a Chairperson of the Committee. The Company has not received any Complaints on Sexual
Harassment during the year.

ENERGY CONSERVATION RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 the details of activities in the nature of Energy Conservation Research and
Development Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is set out hereunder:

1. ENVIRONMENT SAFETY HEALTH AND ENERGY CONSERVATION
Conservation of Energy:

a. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy : Your Company has not undertaken any manufacturing
activity during the year 2022-23 hence the Company are not much energy intensive.

However, Company continues to implement prudent practices for saving electricity and other energy
resources in day-today activities.
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b. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy Though the activities undertaken
by the Company are not much energy intensive, the Company shall explore alternative sources of energy,
as and when the necessity arises.

c. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment Nil.

2. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

Your Company has not undertaken any manufacturing activity during the year 2022-23 hence the R&D
Expenditure is — Not Applicable

3. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION ADAPTION AND INNOVATION

a. The efforts made towards technology absorption the technology required for the business has been
absorbed as and when required.

b. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution Not Applicable.

4. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The Company has continued to maintain focus and avail of export opportunities based on economics
considerations.

(Inuss$)
Contents For the year ended March For the year ended March
312023 31 2022
Foreign Exchange earned Nil Nil
Foreign Exchange used Nil Nil
Net Foreign Exchange Nil Nil
Earned

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and the relevant rules the Company is having in place
the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee under the chairmanship of Mr. Satish Agrawal
Chairman. The other members of the Committee are Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Surendra Kumar
Jain. The Company has not spent on CSR activity for the financial year 2022-2023 due to loss.

During the year the Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities as the company have
Negative profits calculated in terms of the provisions of Section 135 read with Section 198 of the Act. The
Annual report on CSR activities as required under the Companies Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules 2014 is annexed as Annexure to this Management Report.

DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF STATUS OF APPLICATION OR PROCEEDING
PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE

The Company is undergoing the CIRP which has been initiated vide an order dated 29" May, 2020
(“Order”) of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, Ahmedabad in terms of the
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, Code. Pursuant to the Order, Mr. Rajeev Goel appointed
as the Insolvency Resolution Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional). Further the
committee of creditors (CoC) of the Corporate Debtor pursuant to the meeting held on July 28 2020 and in
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terms of Section 22 (2) of the Code resolved with 100% voting share to replace the existing Interim
Resolution Professional with Mr. Gautam Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the Corporate
Debtor. Accordingly the NCLT has in its hearing dated 4™ September 2020 through video conferencing
pronounced the approval for the appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP (“Resolution Professional”)
of the Corporate Debtor.

The RP has instituted the Transaction Audit for a period of 5 years, on approval by the Committee of
Creditors. The Transaction Audit Report has reported certain findings of Preferential, Undervalued &
Fraudulent Transactions u/s. 43 & 49 of the Code, undertaken by the erstwhile management of the
Corporate Debtor. Accordingly, the Resolution Professional, with approval of Committee of Creditors, has
filed petition with Honble NCLT, Indore Bench against the suspended management of the Company under
section 43 & 49 of IBC.

Sr.No. Particulars of Applicant Type of Creditor Case No. and Forum Status at
before which the the end
matter is pending of the

Financial

year
1 Kishor Ramniklal Unadkat | Operational Creditors (MP) CP(IB) 7 of 2019 | Pending
Sole Proprietor of Shakti NCLT, Indore
Clearing Agency

2 Resolution Professional For Liquidation IA/90(MP)2021  NCLT, | Pending
Indore

3 Resolution Professional For Transaction Audit IA/99(MP)2021  NCLT, | Pending
Indore

4 Rajeev Goel- IRP For Reimbursement of | IA/73(MP)2021  NCLT, | Pending
Expenses Indore

5 Resolution Professional Undervalue Transaction | IA/2 (MP)2021 NCLT, | Pending
Indore

6 Resolution Applicant Re-Consideration of | IA/183 (MP)2023 NCLT, | Pending
Resolution Plan Indore

7 Resolution Applicant Reg. Form H - |1A/212 (MP)2023 NCLT, | Pending
Liquidation Value Indore

8 Resolution Applicant Reg. Status of MSME of | IA/233 (MP)2023 NCLT, | Pending
Company Indore

9 Resolution Professional Non-Corporation IA/6 (MP)2021 NCLT, | Disposed
Indore

10 EPFO Permission of Opening | IA/146 (MP)2020 NCLT, Disposed
of Enquiry u/s 7A Indore

11 Resolution Professional Release of Payment- IA/15 (MP)2021 NCLT, Disposed
MPWLC Indore

12 | Resolution Professional Release of Payment- | IA/20 (MP)2021 NCLT, | Disposed
MP MARKFED Indore
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13 Resolution Applicant Re-Consideration of | IA/123 (MP)2021 NCLT, | Disposed
Resolution Plan Indore

14 Resolution Applicant Re-Consideration of | IA/133 (MP)2021 NCLT, | Disposed
Resolution Plan Indore

15 Resolution Applicant Re-Consideration of | IA/192 (MP)2021 NCLT, | Disposed
Resolution Plan Indore

16 Resolution Professional Release of Payment- | CA (AT) (Ins) 218 /2021 | Disposed
MP MARKFED NCLAT New Delhi

17 Resolution Professional Release of Payment- | CA (AT) (Ins) 219 /2021 | Disposed
MPWLC NCLAT New Delhi

18 Resolution Applicant Re-Consideration of | CA (AT) (Ins) 480 /2022 | Disposed
Resolution Plan NCLAT New Delhi

19 Resolution Applicant Re-Consideration of | Dairy No. 31131/22 | Disposed
Resolution Plan Supreme Court of India

New Delhi

20 Resolution Professional Release of Payment- | Civil suit before District | Pending

MPWLC Court Bhopal

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH
THE REASONS THEREOF

During the year under review, no such valuation was done at the time of one time settlement and while
taking loan from Financial Institutions.

APPRECIATION

The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance provided to your company by its
bankers financial institutions and Government as well as Non-Government agencies. The Board wishes to
place on record its appreciation to the contribution made by employees of the company during the year
under review. The Board also takes this opportunity to express its deep gratitude for the continued co-
operation and support received from its valued shareholders.

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company pursuant to the admission of application for CIRP

against the company, the Hon’ble NCLT, Indore bench vide its said order dated 29/05/2020 has appointed the Mr. Rajeev Goel,

as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Company, Further, this is to inform you that Mr. Gautam Mittal, was

appointed as the resolution Professional in second COC meeting and his appointment was confirmed vide order dated
04.09.2020 for conducting the CIRP and to exercise all powers and duties in pursuant to the provisions of the IBC.

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal (Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report - |

Form AOC-2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

As on Financial Year ended 31.03.2023
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014]

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act 2013 including certain arms length
transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length

basis.
Particulars Details
Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship
Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Not
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Applicable

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value if any
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under 1%
proviso to Sec 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

S.N Nature of Category Salient Terms including the value if | Tenure | Amount
Contracts any paid as
/Arrangement/ advance
Transaction if any

1 Lease Associates & Lease Rent Received amounting to Rs. - -

Subsidiary 100.80 Lakhs
2 Loan Associates & | Loan taken amounting to NIL Lakhs from - -
Subsidiary Associates & Subsidiary.
Loan repaid amounting to NIL to
Key Associates & Subsidiary.
Management Loan taken amounting to nil from Key
Personnel
Management Personnel.
Relatives Loan repaid amounting to nil to Key
Management Personnel.
Loan taken amounting to nil from Relatives.
Loan repaid amounting to nil to Relatives.
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Closing Balance amounting to Rs. 6011.46
Lakhs Rs. 24.12 Lakhs and Rs. 574.24 Lakhs
to  Associates &  Subsidiary  Key
Management Personnel and Relatives
respectively

Note:

> All the transactions are as per the policy laid down by the Audit Committee and approval of the Audit
Committee is sought at every meeting of the Audit Committee as required under the provision of the
Companies Act.

» Since the Company is under CIRP all the related party transactions are subject to transaction and
forensic audit and hence the authenticity of above mentioned transactions may vary accordingly.

Associates:
N.S. Agrawal Trading Corporation
Sanwaria Globfin Pvt. Ltd.
Ashok Dal and Qil Mills Itarsi
Sanwaria Infrastructures Ltd.
Sanwaria Warehousing & Logistic Ltd.
Sanwaria Foods Limited
Seth Shree Narayan Agrawal Charitable
Trust
Surya Trading Corporation
Shreenathji Solvex Limited

Key Management Personnel
Gulab Chand Agrawal Chairman
Satish Kumar Agrawal Director
Ashok Kumar Agrawal Director
Anil Agrawal Professional Director (died on
29.05.2021)
Relatives

Ashok Kumar Agrawal HUF
Gulab Chand Agrawal HUF
Satish Kumar Agrawal HUF
R.N. Agrawal HUF

Anil Agrawal (Died on 29.05.2021)
Anju Devi Agrawal

Sadhna Devi Agrawal
Bobby Agrawal

Rita Devi Agrawal
Ashutosh Agrawal
Abhishek Agrawal

Rajul Agrawal

Subsidiary Company
Sanwaria Singapore Private Ltd
Sanwaria Energy Ltd.

o Geeta Devi Agrawal
e Anil Kumar Agrawal HUF

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company pursuant to the admission of application for CIRP against the company,
the Hon’ble NCLT, Indore bench vide its said order dated 29/05/2020 has appointed the Mr. Rajeev Goel, as the Interim Resolution Professional
(“IRP”) of the Company, Further, this is to inform you that Mr. Gautam Mittal, was appointed as the resolution Professional in second COC meeting
and his appointment was confirmed vide order dated 04.09.2020 for conducting the CIRP and to exercise all powers and duties in pursuant to the
provisions of the IBC.

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited Bhopal
(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL
IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report - 1l

FORM NO. AOC -1

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF SUBSIDIARY
COMPANIES

(As on Financial Year ended March 31 2023)
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014)

Name of Subsidiary Company Sanwaria Energy Limited Sanwaria Singapore
(InRs.) Pte. Ltd
(InUS $)

Issued & Subscribed Capital 311754100 1
Reserves (28836524) 0
Total Assets 293381675 0
Total Liabilities 293381675 0
Investments 0 0
Turnover 0 0
Profit/(Loss)before Tax (13896429) 0
Provision for Tax - 0
Profit/(Loss) After Tax (13896429) 0
Proposed Dividend - 0

Cash Profit - 0

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company. Pursuant to
Hon’ble NCLT Indore Bench Order dated 29.05.2020

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal (Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report -1l

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2023)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014]

To

The Members

Sanwaria Consumer Limited

Office Hall No. 1. First Floor, Metrowalk
Bittan Market

Bhopal MP 462016 IN

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Sanwaria Consumer Limited (hereinafter
called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books papers minute books forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company its officers agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit we hereby report that in our opinion the Company has during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books papers minute books forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023 according to the
provisions of:

1. The Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

3. The Depositories Act 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations 2011;
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations 2018
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2018. (Not Applicable)
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 2014 and The Securities and Exchange
Board of India(share based Employee benefits and sweat Equity) Regulations,2021
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations 2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India(issue and listing of
Non convertible Securities), 2021 (Not Applicable)
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations
2021 (Not Applicable)
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations2018
(Not applicable)
6) Other Laws applicable to the Company;
a) The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules 1989;
b) The Insecticide Act 1968;
c) Factories Act 1948 and Rules made there under
d) Payment of Bonus Act 1965 & Rules 1965
e) Maternity Benefit Act 1961 & Rules
f) Employee compensation Act 1923,& Rules,
g) minimum wages Act,1948,M.W.(C) Rules,1950
h) Child Labour (P&R) Act 1986 & Rules
1) Air ( prevention and control of pollution) Act 1981
])  Water (prevention and control of pollution)Act 1974
k) Payment of Wages Act 1936
I) Employee state insurance Act 1948
m) Employee pf& miscellaneous provisions Act 1952
n) Contract Labour (Regulation &abolition) Act 1970
0) Bureau of Indian standards Act.
p) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
g) Indian contract Act 1872
r) Environment protection Act, 1986and other environmental laws
s) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
t) Sexual harassment of women at work place(Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial standards issue by the institute of company secretaries of India .

(ii) The listing agreements entered into by the company with BSE Limited.
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During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the act rules
regulations ,Guidelines, standers, etc mentioned above.

We further report that

» The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and non-executive directors and Independent directors as per
Regulation 17 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

» Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal Indore Bench (“NCLT”) had vide
its order dated May 29 2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (“CIRP”) of Corporate Debtor in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016
read with the rules and regulations framed there under as amended from time to time (“Code”).
Accordingly pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the IBC the powers of the Board of Directors of
the Corporate Debtor stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev Goel
appointed as the Insolvency Resolution Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional).
Further the committee of creditors (CoC) of the Corporate Debtor pursuant to the meeting held on July
28 2020 and in terms of Section 22 (2) of the Code resolved with 100% voting share to replace the
existing Interim Resolution Professional with Mr. Gautam Mittal as the Resolution Professional (RP) for
the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly the NCLT has in its hearing dated 4" September 2020 through video
conferencing pronounced the approval for the appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP
(“Resolution Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor.

We further report that the company had not spent the required amounts on corporate social
responsibility (CSR) within the time period for the year 2017-18, 2018-19 2019-20, 2020-21
2021-22 and 2022-23.

We further report that the company had not complied with the provisions of Section 148 of
the Companies Act 2013 relating to the cost records and cost audit.

We further report that the company had not filed theDPT-3 (return of deposits) as per
Companies Act, 2013

We further report that we have observed delays in compliance of the following regulations of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015.

e Regulation 6

e Regulation 7 (2)

e Regulation 7(3)

e Regulation 23 (9)

e Regulation 29(2)

e Regulation 31

e Regulation 27 (2)
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e Regulation 33

e Regulation 55A

e Regulation40(9)

e Regulation 7(3)
We further report that we have observed non-compliance of regulation 14 i.e. nonpayment of
listing fee to stock exchanges (BSE and NSE).

We further report that we have observed non- compliance of Regulation 21 i.e. the Risk
Management Committee is not duly constituted.

We further report that we have observed non-compliance of regulation 46 i.e. maintaining a
functional website containing the basic information about the listed entity.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws rules regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there are no specific events / actions having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the laws rules regulations guidelines
standards etc referred to above except for the following:-

Name of the Nature of | Amount | Period to Forum where Status
statute Dues (Rs. In which dispute is pending
Lakhs) the
amount
relates
Income Tax Disputed 7297.33 | Various | CIT(A)/Tribunal/ Demand Stayed by
Act Years High court department
Central Sales Disputed 72.08 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Tax Act Years tribunal/ Appellate high court demand
Authority pending for grant of
exemption and their
effect.
Madhya Disputed 932.75 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Pradesh Entry Years tribunal/ Appellate | high court demand
Tax Act Authority pending for grant of
exemption and their
effect.
Madhya Disputed 2575.21 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Pradesh VAT Years tribunal/ Appellate high court demand
Tax Act Authority pending for grant of
exemption and their
effect.
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EPFO Disputed 150.22 | Various | CGIT Jabalpur Stay by CGIT
Years

Central Excise | Disputed 100.26 | Various | Cestate/ Stay Being Apply
Years Commissioner (A)

MPIDC Disputed 19.01 | Various | MPIDC Mandideep | Stay Being Apply
Years

DTIC Disputed 28.77 | Various | MP Govt. Stay Being Apply
Years

Municipal Disputed 3.78 | Various | Municipal Stay Being Apply

Corporation Years Corporation Itarsi

MP Electrical Disputed 44.98 | Various Stay Being Apply

Department Years High Court

For

Practicing Company Secretary
CS Rakhi Dasgupta

M. No. : 28739

C.P. No.: 20354

Place: Kolkata

UDIN : A028739E001081318
Peer Review No.: 1342/2021
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Annexure to Directors’ Report -1V

Form MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended 31.03.2023
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

L15143MP1991PLC006395

Registration Date

22" April 1991

Name of the Company

Sanwaria Consumer Limited

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Public Company Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered office & contact
details

Office Hall No. 1 First Floor Metro Walk Bittan
Market Bhopal-462016

Telephone: 0755-4294878

Email: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com

Whether listed company

Yes

Name Address & contact details of the
Registrar &Transfer Agent if any.

Sanwaria Consumer Limited (In House)

Office Hall No. 1 First Floor Metro Walk Bittan
Market Bhopal-462016

Telephone: 0755-4294878

Email-id: rta@sanwariaconsumer.com

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated)
S. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products / services Product/service of the company
1 Lease Rent of manufacturing Units 7730 100.00

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applica
of the Company Subsidia Shares Sectior
Associat held
1.| Sanwaria Energy Limited U04010MP2005PLC018218 Subsidiary | 100.00 2(87)(ii)
E-1/1 Arera Colony
Bhopal- 462016 (M.P.)
2.| Sanwaria Singapore Pte Ltd. | Foreign Subsidiary Subsidiary | 100.00 2(87)(ii)
8-2 One Raffles Place
Singapore- 048616
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares held at the beginning of { No. of Shares held at the end of the % of
Category of Year[As on 31-March-2022] year[As on 31-March-2023] Change
Shareholders during
the yea
Physic % of %of
Demat Total Total Demat Physicz Total Total
Shares shares
A. Promoters
1. Indian
- Individual 118343391 - 118343391 | 16.09 10808339 - 108083391 | 14.68 (1.39)
- Body Corporg 4800000 - | 4800000 0.65 4800000 - 4800000 0.65 (0.00)
2. Foreign - -
Total Promoter | 12314339] - 123143391 16.73 11288339 - 112883391 | 15.34 | (1.39)
Shareholding(A)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions 4862 - 4862  |0.0 862 - 862 0.0 (0.00)
- Banks/FI’s
2.Non-Institution
-Body Corporate 5182915 26172000 |31354915 4.26 6448881 26172000(32620881  |4.43 0.17
-Individual holding
Shares upto Rs. 2lac  |454097980  [202779 454097980 |61.69 |448805888 |202779 449008667 |61.00 (0.69)
-Individual holding
Shares above Rs.2lac | 91639385 - 91639385 12.45 |109532965 |- 109532965 | 14.88 2.43
- Others ) i ) i i i i
Trusts 150 150 0.0 150 150 0.0 0.00
NRI 20227887 - 20227887 2.75 19451044 |- 19451044  |2.64 (0.12)
Clearing Members| 3013419 - 3013419 0.41  |550427 - 550427 0.07 (0.34)
HUF 12618011 - 12618011 1.71  |12051613 |- 12051613 1.64 (0.07)
Total Public 586576968 |26374779 |612951747 |83.27 |596841830 |26374779/623216609 |84.66 1.39
Shareholding (B)
C. Shares held by Custodian for ADR/GDR
Grand Total 709928000 (26172000 |736100000 (100.00 [709725221|2637477)736100000 (100.00 -
(A+B+C)
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B) Shareholding of Promoter-

Shareholding at the beginning of the

Shareholding at the end of the year

%

year[As on 31-March-2022] [As on 31-March-2023] change in
shareholdi
Shareholder’s No. of % of %of Shares| No. of % of %of ng during
Name Shares total Pledged Shares total Shares the year

Shares of | encumbered to Shares of | Pledged /

the total shares the encumbere

company company | d to total

shares
Body Corporate
NS  Agrawal Trading | 4800000 0.65 Nil 4800000 0.65 Nil Nil
Corporation Ltd
Individuals

Gulab Chand Agrawal 24000 0.003 Nil 24000 0.003 Nil Nil
Satish Kumar Agrawal 24000 0.003 Nil 24000 0.003 Nil Nil
Anil Kumar Agrawal 57999334 7.88 Nil 57999334 7.88 Nil Nil
Ashok Kumar Agrawal 0.00 0.00 Nil 0.00 0.00 Nil Nil
Rita Devi Agrawal 21480000 2.92 Nil 21480000 2.92 Nil Nil
Bobby Agrawal 16080000 2.18 Nil 16080000 2.18 Nil Nil
Anju Devi Agrawal 10260000 1.39 Nil 0 0.00 Nil (1.39)
Geeta Devi Agrawal 0.00 0.00 Nil 0.00 0.00 Nil Nil
Sadhna Devi Agrawal 0.00 0.00 Nil 0.00 0.00 Nil Nil
Rajul Agrawal 3398000 0.46 Nil 3398000 0.46 Nil Nil
Ashutosh Agrawal 2820000 0.38 Nil 2820000 0.38 Nil Nil
Abhishek Agrawal 2356800 0.32 Nil 2356800 0.32 Nil Nil
Vasu Agrawal 1640000 0.22 Nil 1640000 0.22 Nil Nil
Chanda Agrawal 1560000 0.21 Nil 1560000 0.21 Nil Nil
Dagdoolal Goyal 701257 0.10 Nil 701257 0.10 Nil Nil
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Total 123143391 16.73 Nil 112883391 | 15.34 Nil (1.39)
C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Particulars No. of shares % of total | No. of | % of total
shares of | shares shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year 123143391 16.73 123143391 16.73
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the -NIL-
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):
At the end of the year 112883391 ‘ 15.34 ‘ 112883391 ‘ 15.34
D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
S.NO. NAME/ADDRESS TOTAL % OF TOT
HOLDING EQUITY
1 OFFICIAL LIQUIDATOR CRB CORPORATION LTD 26172000 3.56
2 RAVICHANDRAN RAVICHANDRAN 3805000 0.52
3 SAURABH VIJ 2772246 0.38
4 DIVYESH CHANDRAKANT SEJPAL 2700071 0.37
5 MANPREET SINGH DHALIWAL 2687192 0.37
6 SANJAY GUPTA 2645000 0.36
7 PRADIP KIRTILAL DESAI 2081068 0.28
8 THIRUGNANAM V 2002750 0.27
9 ANAND OMPRAKASH SARDA 1180000 0.16
10 MANAS RANJAN DASH 1040021 0.14

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN Shareholding of each Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Directors and each Key beginning during the
Managerial Personnel of the year year
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No. of | % of total No. of | % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1. Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal- Executive Chairman
At the beginning of the year 24000 0.003 24000
At the end of the year 24000 0.003
2. Mr. Satish Agrawal- Executive Director
At the beginning of the year | 24000 0.003 24000
At the end of the year 24000 0.003
3. Mr. Anil Agrawal- Non-Executive Director
At the beginning of the year | 57999324 7.88 -
At the end of the year 57999334 7.88
4. Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain - Independent Director

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

6. Mrs. Shilpi jain - Independent Director

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

7. Mr. Anil Kumar Vishwakarma — Chief Financial Officer

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rs. In lakhs)
Secured Unsecured | Deposits | Total
Particulars Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 88988.04 2305.20 - 91293.23
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
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i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

88988.04 2305.20

91293.23

Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year

* Addition

* Reduction

Net Change Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

88988.04 2305.20

91293.23

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

88988.04 2305.20

V. REMUNERATION OF PROMOTER /DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL

91293.23

PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director Whole-time Directors Non-Executive Directors and/or
Manager:
(Amount in Rs. lakhs)
S Particulars of Remuneration Executive Directors Non-
N. Executive | Total
Directors | Amount
Ashok Gulab Satish | Anil
Kumar Chand | Agrawal | Agrawal
Agrawal | Agrawal
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Income-tax Act 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
17(3) Income- tax Act 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others specify...
5 Others please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (A) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ceiling as per the Act

Within the overall limits of
10% of net profits of the
Company
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS
Remuneration of Rs. NIL is paid to Directors

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD (Rs.
In Lakhs):

S. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No. Remuneration
CFO CS Total
1. Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 8.40 0.00 8.40

contained in Section 17 (1) of
the Income tax Act 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s - - -
17 (20 Income tax Act 1961

2. Stock Option - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission - - -

- as % of profit - - -

5. Others please specify - - -
Total 8.40 0.00 8.40

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties/ punishments/compounding of offences for the year ending March 31 2023.

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company pursuant to the admission of application for
CIRP against the company, the Hon’ble NCLT, Indore bench vide its said order dated 29/05/2020 has appointed the Mr.
Rajeev Goel, as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Company, Further, this is to inform you that Mr. Gautam
Mittal, was appointed as the resolution Professional in second COC meeting and his appointment was confirmed vide
order dated 04.09.2020 for conducting the CIRP and to exercise all powers and duties in pursuant to the provisions of the
IBC.

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal (Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Annexure to Directors’ Report -V
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31 2023
[See Regulation 33/52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations 2016]

All figures are Rs. In Lakhs Except EPS

.| Sr. Particulars Audited Figures Adjusted Figures
No. (as reported before (audited figures
adjusting for after adjusting for
qualifications) qualifications)
1 Turnover / Total Income 0 0
2 Total Expenditure 609.95 776.96
(Excluding OCl)
3 Net Profit/(Loss) (501.67) (668.68)
4 Earnings Per Share (EPS) -0.06 -0.09
5 Total Assets 36694.97 36694.97
6 Total Liabilities 95029.86 95,196.87
7 Net Worth (58334.89) (58,501.90)
8 Any other financial item(s)
(as felt appropriate by the
management)
(i) Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

I' a. Details of Audit Qualification: We noticed that Company follows accrual basis
of accounting but in the following cases it has followed cash basis of accounting
hence loss has been reduced by Rs. 167.01 Lacs :

Sr. No. Name of Parties Amount not taken as
Expenses (Rs. In Lacs)
1 Advertising and Publicity 0.25
2 Professional Expenses 40.26
3 Security Expenses 94.68
4 Salary 30.32
5 Audit Fees 1.50
b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion / BisclaimerofOpinien /
Adverse-Opinien
c. Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time / repetitive / since
I I o




SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor
Management’s Views: As the Company is under CIRP w.e.f. 29.05.2020 and Due
to liquidity crunch during the year 20-21 we have switched our accounting
policy from Mercantile to Cash basis. Hence following expenses that are related
to the current financial year but have not been paid hence are not being
provided in books of accounts

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

-Not Applicable-

(i) Management’s estimation on the impact of audit qualification:

-Not Applicable-

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact reasons for the same:

-Not Applicable-

(iii) Auditor’'s Comments on (i) or (ii) above:

-Not Applicable-

Il. Signatories:

CFO Anil Vishwakarma
Bhopal
24-05-2023

Auditor

Refer our Independent Auditors’ Report dated 24 May 2023 on Standalone Financial
Results of the Company

For PRAMOD K SHARMA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

CA PRAMOD SHARMA

Partner

M. No.: 076883;

FRN: 007857C
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Annexure to Directors’ Report - VI

Corporate Social Responsibility
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014]

1. Company’s Policy on CSR — An Overview

Every organization has the right to exist in a society. With the right there comes a duty to give back the
society a portion of what it receives from it. As a corporate citizen we receive various benefits out of
society and it is our co-extensive responsibility to pay back in return to the society. SCL believes that
creation and maximization of value to stakeholders is paramount and it generates profit in long term.
The Company is committed to improve the quality of life of the workforce and their families as well as
of the local community and society at large. With the Companies Act 2013 mandating the corporate to
contribute for social development and welfare SAOL would fulfil this mandate and supplement the
government’s efforts.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Name of Committee Member Designation Category

Mr. Satish Agrawal Chairman Executive Director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Member Executive Director
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Member Independent Director

3. Average Net Profit
Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: not calculates as there is loss in the
immediately preceding financial year.

4. Required CSR Expenditure: Nil (due to loss)

5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year:
Amount spent for the financial year: Nil; Amount unspent: Rs. 190.97 Lakhs;

5. Justification for unspent money out of 2% of the average net profit of the last
three financial years.

The Companies Act 2013 was implemented in various stages during the year 2014-2015. The provisions
with regard to CSR activity came into force on April 1 2014. The Company in pursuance of the
requirements of the Companies Act 2013 had constituted the CSR Committee and is in the process of
identifying feasible projects/ programmes wherein it can deploy the CSR expenditure amount. As per
Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 the Company had to spend Rs. 190.97 Lakhs on activities under
Corporate Social Responsibility in the year ended March 31 2019 which the company was unable to
spend.

Since the company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution process (CIRP) the power of Board of
Directors have been suspended.

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company p to the admission of application for CIRP against the company, the
Hon’ble NCLT, Indore bench vide its said order dated 29/05/2020 has appointed the Mr. Rajeev Goel, as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the
Company, Further, this is to inform you that Mr. Gautam Mittal, was appointed as the resolution Professional in second COC ing and his appointment

was confirmed vide order dated 04.09.2020 for conducting the CIRP and to exercise all powers and duties in pursuant to the provisions of the IBC.

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited Bhopal
(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL
IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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Management Discussion & Analysis Report

Industry structure and Development

The fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) sector is an important contributor to India’s GDP growth. The
sector includes food & dairy products packaged food products household products drinks and others.
The fast moving consumer goods (FMCG) is the fourth largest sector in the Indian economy. The
growth in edible oil consumption presents an opportunity to build around a sustainable business model
to capitalise the growing business prospects. The rising income level and improvement in living
standards has led to steady increase in demand for edible oils. Your Company’s primary business is
food processing - processing of oilseeds refining of crude edible oil for use as cooking oil manufacturing
of soya products and other consumer products. Considering the growing population and the food
habits across India edible oils form an essential part of the modern diet. The total consumption of
edible oil in India is estimated to be more in the coming days out of which domestic supply is much less
due to stagnant production of edible oil seeds leaving demand-supply gap.

India ranks sixth in the world in terms of nominal gross domestic product (“GDP”) and is the third
largest economy in the world in terms of purchasing power parity (“PPP”). India is estimated to be
among the top three global economies in terms of nominal GDP by Fiscal 2050. Since FY 2005 Indian
economy’s growth rate has been twice as that of world economy and it is expected to sustain the
growth momentum in the long term. In the wake of COVID-19 India’s normal GDP has contracted by
approximately 3% in FY2021 and is expected to bounce back and reach USS 4 Tn by FY 2025. It is also
expected that the growth trajectory of Indian economy will enable India to be among the top 3 global
economies by FY 2050

MARKET SIZE

Edible oils are indispensable to Indian cooking. The four key edible oils palm soybean mustard and
sunflower constitute 85-88% of the total consumption in India in terms of volume. Palm oil is primarily
used by the food processing enterprises. It is also used in blended oils for domestic consumption. Palm
and soybean are also being used by the Hotels Restaurants and Caterers segment. India imports most
of its palm oil consumption. Soybean oil mustard oil and sunflower oil is largely used for domestic
consumption. The other oils include sesame oil coconut oil groundnut oil rice bran oil amongst others.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Some of the major initiatives taken by the Government of India to improve the food processing sector
in India are as follows:

Goods and Service Tax (GST)

GST upon being implemented shall replace the multiple indirect taxes levied on FMCG sector with a uniform
simplified and single-point taxation system. A swift move to the proposed GST may reduce prices bolstering
consumption of FMCG products.

Food Security Bill

The Food Security Bill has been passed recently by the Union Cabinet. As per the bill 5Kg of food grains per
person per month will be provided at subsidized prices by the State Governments under the targeted public
distribution system. This is expected to result in higher inflow of investments into the agriculture sector in the
coming years.
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Excise Duty

Excise duty on other beverages and lemonade would be decreased to reduce retail sale price by 35%. Excise duty
on various tobacco products other than beedi would be increased resulting in retail price of tobacco products
going up by 10-15%.

Relaxation of License Rules

Industrial license is not required for almost all food and agro-processing industries barring
certain items such as alcoholic beverages cane sugar and hydrogenated & animal fats as well
as items reserved for exclusive manufacture in the small-scale sector

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The primary Business of the company is processing of Oils seeds and paddy Currently the Company is
having capacity of 2500 TPD of Solvent Extraction Plant Soya Refinery of 225 TPD and 500 TPD of Paddy
processing Plant. SCL has adopted strategy to convert its conventional commodity and agro based
business into an FMCG Business.

STRENGTHS OF THE BUSINESS

Strong Management team:

While promoters remain closely involved preserving the heritage and culture of the organisation the
business is strongly steered and navigated by a highly experienced and professional management
team. In addition its strong advisory team is also helping the organisation to drive its strategic agendas
for future growth of the Company.

Enduring relationships:

The Company is involved in the food business for more than 30 years and has built very strong sourcing
capabilities by direct procurement of agricultural produce. This has lead to significant cost economies
in procurement.

Presence in a large and fast growing segment:

R/

«» The Company is amongst food producers of soya/Paddy/Wheat products in India.

% The Group has sustained exposure in trading of food grains and pulses apart from soyabean
products wheat products rice oils and other food products.

Location Advantage:

% The company’s operations in the heartland of the soya & Paddy & wheat belt of India gives it a
major Locational advantage reducing the logistics costs substantially.

% The plants are located in Madhya Pradesh which is a power surplus state and hence the Company
has access to cheap and uninterrupted power supply.

«» The region has good access to skilled and semi skilled labour.

Consistent Quality

By way of stringent quality assurance norms and state of-the-art technology with a high degree of
automation the Company ensures robust quality control. Critical tests are performed at each stage of
manufacturing. The Company’s unwavering focus on quality and innovation backed by deep consumer
insights world-class R&D and an efficient and responsive supply chain will further strengthen its
leadership position.
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To achieve successful growth and profitability the Company relies on its greatest assets - its intellectual
capital. The Company’s human resource practice revolves around LET: Learning Empowermssent and
Togetherness. SCL values its employees and invests towards capability building with a long-term
orientation. The Company has been building its skill-sets by adding new competences through hiring
grooming of internal talent and functional capability building. The Company’s value-system guides its
actions and behaviour in everyday business which creates a unique culture at Sanwaria Consumer
Limited. These values are the DNA of the organisation which are ingrained in every member across
hierarchies and geographies.

Information Technology

The Company is enhancing the use of Information Technology tools and applications in their business
processes to become more competitive efficient and effective. Its robust IT infrastructure acts as a
growth enabler and helps achieve cost leadership process orientation and higher productivity. Better IT
applications are helping us reach target market segments more cost effectively track data improve
productivity levels and maximise our returns on investment. The Company has made investments
towards various modules in line with Goods and Service tax (GST).

Research and Development

The Company’s research and development programme are central to expanding value to its products
and to keeping aligned to new global flavour trends and technologies. The R&D team is dedicated
towards deepening the Company’s pipeline of products focused on consumers looking for health and
convenient options.

Opportunities

In the wake of COVID-19 India’s normal GDP has contracted by approximately 3% in FY2021 and is
expected to bounce back and reach USS$ 4 Tn by FY 2025. It is also expected that the growth trajectory
of Indian economy will enable India to be among the top 3 global economies by FY 2050.

Growing awareness easier access and changing lifestyle are the key growth drivers for the consumer
market. The focus on agriculture MSMEs education healthcare infrastructure and tax rebate under
Union Budget 2019- 20 was expected to directly impact the FMCG sector. Initiatives undertaken to
increase the disposable income in the hands of common man especially from rural areas will be
beneficial for the sector. (source https://www. ibef.org/archives/industry/fmcg-reports/indian-
fmcgindustry-analysis-september-2020)

Increasing presence on e-commerce platform:
It is estimated that 40% of all FMCG purchases in India will be online by 2020 thereby making it a US$S
5-6 billion business opportunity. Owing to their innate desires to live independently and well Indians

are spending like never before on platforms like e-commerce. They are now looking for products and
services that can be bought with convenience.

RISK AND CONCERNS

As per the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) Indore Bench the Company was
under CIRP with effect from May 29 2020.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMEN

Certain statements in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section may be forward-looking and
are stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results
which would be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future performance and
outlook. Investors are cautioned that this discussion contains forward looking statement that involve
risks and uncertainties including but not limited to risks inherent in the Company’s growth strategy
dependence on certain businesses dependence on availability of qualified and trained manpower and
other factors discussed. The discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
financial statements and notes on accounts.

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company pursuant to the admission of application for
CIRP against the company, the Hon’ble NCLT, Indore bench vide its said order dated 29/05/2020 has appointed the Mr.
Rajeev Goel, as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Company, Further, this is to inform you that Mr. Gautam
Mittal, was appointed as the resolution Professional in second COC meeting and his appointment was confirmed vide
order dated 04.09.2020 for conducting the CIRP and to exercise all powers and duties in pursuant to the provisions of the
IBC.

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal (Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sanwaria Consumer Limited (‘SCL’ or ‘the Company’) beliefs that good corporate governance is about
ensuring that companies are managed as efficiently as possible in the interests of the shareholders.
Efficient corporate governance requires a clear understanding of the respective roles of the Board and
of senior management and their relationships with others in the corporate structure. The relationships
of the Board and management shall be characterized by sincerity their relationships with employees
shall be characterized by fairness their relationships with the communities in which they operate shall
be characterized by good citizenship and their relationships with government shall be characterized by
a commitment to compliance.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (“CIRP”)

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal Indore Bench (“NCLT”) had vide its order dated May 29
2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”)
of Corporate Debtor in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 read with the rules and
regulations framed thereunder as amended from time to time (“Code”). Accordingly pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17 of the IBC the powers of the Board of Directors of the Corporate Debtor stands
suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev Goel appointed as the Insolvency
Resolution Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional). Further the committee of creditors
(CoC) of the Corporate Debtor pursuant to the meeting held on July 28 2020 and in terms of Section 22
(2) of the Code resolved with 100% voting share to replace the existing Interim Resolution Professional
with Mr. Gautam Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly the
NCLT has in its hearing dated 4™ September 2020 through video conferencing pronounced the approval
for the appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP (“Resolution Professional”) of the Corporate
Debtor.

As per Notification no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/21 dated May 31 2018 regulations 17 18 19 20 and 21
of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 related to Board of Directors Audit Committee Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee respectively shall not be applicable during the
insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing CIRP under the
Code provided that the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under
regulation 17 shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional in
accordance with sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. Hence the status of the
Board of Directors and Committees provided in this Report is as on the date of commencement of
CIRP i.e. 29" May 2020.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Introduction

The Board of Directors of the Company (Suspended during CIRP). The Company’s policy is to maintain
an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on March 31 2023 the Board
consists of 5 (Five) directors out of whom 3(Three) are Executive Directors and 2(two) are Non-
Executive Independent. The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director.
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All Independent Directors of the Company adhere to the criteria defined under Regulation 16 of SEBI
Listing Regulations read with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013.

In compliance with Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; the Directors on the Board of the
Company does not serve as Independent Directors in more than 7 (Seven) Listed Companies or in case
he/she is serving as a Whole Time Director in any Listed Company does not hold such position in more
than 3 Listed Companies.

As mandated by Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations none of the directors of the Company are
members of more than 10 (ten) mandatory committees and do not act as chairman of more than 5
(five) mandatory committees among all companies in which they are directors.

Appointment and Tenure

The Directors of the Company are appointed by Members at the General Meetings. The Executive
Directors on the Board serve in accordance with the terms of their contract of service with the
Company. As regards the appointment and tenure of Independent Directors following is the policy
adopted by the Board:

®,

% The Company has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of
Independent Directors which are consistent with the Companies Act 2013 and Listing Regulations.

< The Independent Directors will serve a maximum of two terms of five years each.

% The Company would not have any upper age limit of retirement of Independent Directors from
the Board and their appointment and tenure will be governed as per the provisions of the

Companies Act 2013.

Rotation of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013 and as per amended
Articles of Association of the Company Mr. Satish Agrawal (DIN: 00256583) retiring by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment. This shall not constitute a break in
office of Mr. Satish Agrawal as Executive director in the Company.

Board Meetings

The corporate insolvency resolution process (CIRP) of the Company has been in effect from 29" May
2020 as per the Orders passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal Indore Bench Ahmadabad.
since May 29 2020 the powers of the Board of Directors have been suspended during the CIRP period.
Four co-ordination meetings was called by Resolution Professional (RP) on on 31st May 2022, 13"
August 2022, 14th November 2022 and 13" February 2023 which was attended by Executive Director
and Independent Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary role of the Board is that of trusteeship i.e. to protect and enhance shareholder value
through strategic direction to the company. As trustee the Board of Directors has fiduciary
responsibility to ensure that the company has clear goals aligned to shareholder value and its growth.
The Board exercises its duties with care skill and diligence and exercises independent judgment. The
Board sets strategic goals and seeks accountability for their fulfillment. The Board also directs and
exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfills
stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations.
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The normal business of the Board includes:

X3

*

framing and overseeing progress of the Company’s annual plan and operating framework;

* framing strategies for shaping of portfolio and direction of the Company and for corporate

resource allocation;

reviewing financial plans of the Company;

reviewing quarterly and annual business performance of the Company;

reviewing the Annual Report and accounts for adoption by the Members;

reviewing the progress of various functions and businesses of the Company;

reviewing the functioning of the Board and its Committees;

reviewing the functioning of the subsidiary companies;

board monitors the effectiveness of the Company’s governance practices and making changes

as needed

% considering and approving declaration / recommendation of dividend;

% reviewing and resolving fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences any materially
significant effluent or pollution problems or significant labour issues if any;

% reviewing the details of significant development in human resources and industrial relations
front;

< reviewing details of foreign exchange exposure and steps taken by the management to limit
the risks of adverse exchange rate movement;

< reviewing compliance with all relevant legislations and regulations and litigation status as well

as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliance including materially

important show cause demand prosecution and penalty notices if any;

reviewing Board Remuneration Policy and individual remuneration packages of Directors;

advising on corporate restructuring such as merger acquisition joint venture or disposals if any;

appointing Directors on the Board and Members of Management Committee;

reviewing and approving the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company and

monitoring implementation thereof;

reviewing details of risk evaluation and internal controls;

reviewing reports on progress made on the ongoing projects;

monitoring and reviewing Board Evaluation framework.

The Board and Senior Management facilitate the Independent Directors to perform their role

effectively as a Board member and also a member of a committee.
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Board Evaluation

In terms of the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations the Board carried out the annual
performance evaluation of the Board as a whole Board Committees and the Directors. During the year
in terms of the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations Board Evaluation cycle was completed
by the Company internally which included the Evaluation of the Board as a whole Board Committees
and Directors. The exercise was led by the Non-Executive Chairman along with a Senior Independent
Director of the Company. The Evaluation process focused on various aspects of the functioning of the
Board and Committees such as composition of the Board and Committees experience and
competencies performance of specific duties and obligations governance issues etc. Separate exercise
was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors on parameters such as attendance
contribution and independent judgement. The results of the Evaluation were shared with the Board
Chairman of respective Committees and individual Directors.

Based on the outcome of the Evaluation the Board and Committees have agreed on an action to
further improve the effectiveness and functioning of the Board and Committees. The Chairman of
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respective Board Committees also shared the results of evaluation with the respective Committee
Members.

Attendance Directorships and Committee Positions

The names and categories of the directors on the Board their attendance record the number of
directorships and committee positions as on March 31 2023 are noted below:

Name of the Director No. of | No. of | AGM Particulars of Committee
Board Board Attended | Other Membership/ Chairmanship
Meetings Meeting Directorshi
held during | s p Committee Committee
their attende Membership Chairmanship
tenure d

Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal 4 4 Yes 3 1 0
Mr. Satish Agrawal 4 4 Yes 2 3 1
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal 4 4 Yes 2 2 0
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain 4 4 Yes 0 0 0
Mrs. Shilpi Jain 0 0 Yes 0 0 0

Notes:

i. While considering the total number of directorships; directorships of Indian public and private Limited
Company other than Sanwaria Consumer Limited have not been taken into account.

ii. In terms Listing Regulations it is hereby disclosed that Mr. Satish Agrawal Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal and
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal are brothers. Except for the above mentioned relationship there is no other inter-se
relationship amongst other directors.

Shareholding of Directors

Name No. of Shares held % of Total Equity
Gulab Chand Agrawal 24000 0.003
Satish Agrawal 24000 0.003
Anil Agrawal 57999334 7.879
Ashok Agrawal 0 0.00

Separate Meetings of the Independent Directors

During the reporting Financial Year a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company
was held on February 13 2023 at the Registered Office of the Company at Office Hall No. 01 First Floor
Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal -462016 Madhya Pradesh where the following items as enumerated
under Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 read with Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
were discussed:

0.0

*,

Review of Performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole.
Review of Performance of the Chairman of the Company after taking into consideration the views of
Executive and Non- Executive Directors.

0.0

*,
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¢ Assessment of the quality quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations All Independent
directors are familiarized about the company through various programmes from time to time
including the following:

X3

%

nature of the industry in which the company operates;
business model of the company;

roles rights responsibilities of independent directors; and
any other relevant information

X3

%

X3

%

X3

*

Role of Independent Directors

Independent Directors have emerged as the cornerstones of the worldwide Corporate Governance
movement. Their increased presence in the boardroom has been hailed as an effective deterrent to
fraud and mismanagement inefficient use of resources inequality and unaccountability of decisions and
as a harbinger for striking the right balance between individual economic and social interests.

Independent Directors play a key role in the decision-making process of the Board. The Independent
Directors are committed to act in what they believe to be in the best interest of the Company and its
Shareholders. Their wide knowledge in their respective fields of expertise and best-in-class boardroom
practices helps foster varied unbiased independent and experienced perspective.

3. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been
constituted to deal with specific areas /activities which concern the Company and need a closer review.
The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined
roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board as a part of good governance
practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees. The Chairman of
the respective Committees informs the Board about the summary of the discussions held in the
Committee Meetings. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for
review. The Board Committees can request special invitees to join the meeting as appropriate. The
Board has currently the following statutory and non-statutory Committees.

I. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board has been constituted as per the requirements of Section 177 of the
Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015.

Composition
As on March 31 2023 the Audit Committee of SCL comprises of following Members:

Name Designation Category

Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman Non-Executive Independent director
Mr. Satish Agrawal Member Executive Non-Independent director
Ms. Shilpi Jain Member Non-Executive Independent director
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The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor attend the meeting of the Committee on invitation of
Chairman.

Terms of Reference
The roles powers and functions of the Audit Committee of SCL are in accordance with the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Regulation 18 and Part-C of Schedule Il of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process and inter alia performs the
following functions:

%+ Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information to

ensure that the financial statements are correct sufficient and credible;

< Reviewing and examining with management the quarterly financial results before submission to the

Board;

«*» Reviewing and examining with management the annual financial statements before submission to

the Board and the auditors’ report thereon.

%+ Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments if any made by the Company;

«*» Reviewing with management the annual financial statements as well as investments made by the

unlisted subsidiary companies;

«*» Reviewing approving or subsequently modifying any Related Party Transactions in accordance with

the Related Party Transaction Policy of the Company;

< Approving the appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications experience

and background etc. of the candidate;

«» Recommending the appointment remuneration and terms of appointment of Statutory Auditors of

the Company and approval for payment of any other services;

% Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit

process;

< Reviewing management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory

Auditors;

«»+ Discussing with Statutory Auditors before the commencement of audit on the nature and scope of

audit as well as having post-audit discussion to ascertain area of concern if any;

«» Reviewing with management Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor the adequacy of internal

control systems;

% Review management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

«» Recommending appointment remuneration and terms of appointment of Internal Auditor of the
Company;

* Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function and discussing with Internal Auditor any
significant finding and reviewing the progress of corrective actions on such issues;

» Evaluating internal financial controls and risk management systems;

» Valuating undertaking or assets of the Company wherever it is necessary;

» Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blowing mechanism;

» Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company wherever it is necessary.

» Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee.

*0

0’0

0’0

0’0

0‘0

0’0

The Audit Committee ensures that it has reviewed each area that it is required to review under its
terms of reference and under applicable legislation or by way of good practice. This periodic review
ensures that all areas within the scope of the Committee are reviewed.
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Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2022-2023 the Audit Committee met four times on 31st May 2022, 13"
August 2022, 14th November 2022 and 13" February 2023. The attendance of the members for the
year ended March 31 2023 is noted below:

Name of the Member Chairman/Member |Meetings held | Meetings
attended
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman 4 4
Mr. Satish Agrawal Member 4 4
Ms. Shilpi Jain Member 4 4

Il. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted as per the requirements of Section
178(5) of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015

Composition

The composition of Company’s Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in compliance with Companies
Act 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 comprising of
two Executive non-Independent Director including the Independent Chairman. As on March 31 2023
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL comprises of following members in its
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

Name Designation Category

Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman Non-Executive Independent director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Member Executive non-Independent director
Mr. Satish Agrawal Member Executive non-Independent director

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference and the ambit of powers of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as per
Regulation 20 and Part-D of Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of the
Companies Act 2013 and allied rules as may be notified from time to time.

The broad terms of reference of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee includes the following:

R

+» Redressal of grievances of shareholders debenture-holders deposit-holders and any other
security holders including but not limiting to transfer of shares and issue of duplicate share
certificates non-receipt of balance sheet non-receipt of declared dividends non-receipt of Annual
Reports; and any other related grievances;

*» Monitoring transfers transmissions dematerialisation rematerialisation splitting and
consolidation of shares issued by the Company;

++ Evaluate performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company;

+»* Provide guidance and make recommendations to improve investor service levels for the
investors.

+» And such other acts deeds matters and things as may be stipulated in terms of the Companies
Act 2013 and the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges and / or such other regulatory
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provisions as also as the Board of Directors may consider think fit for effective and efficient
redressal of grievances of the security holders of the Company.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2022-2023 the Stakeholder Relationship Committee cannot meet due to
undergone CIRP Process.

Investors Grievance Redressal

Pursuant to the Regulation 13 of SEBI Listing Regulations SCL has duly filed with the recognized stock
exchange(s) on a quarterly basis a statement giving the number of investor complaints pending at the
beginning of the quarter those received during the quarter disposed off during the quarter and those
remaining unresolved at the end of the quarter.

The Sanwaria Consumer Limited (In House RTA) attend all grievances of the Shareholders and Investors
received directly through SEBI Stock Exchanges Ministry of Corporate Affairs Registrar of Companies
etc. The Company maintains continuous interaction with the RTA and takes proactive steps and actions
for resolving complaints/queries of the shareholder’s/ Investors and also takes initiatives for solving
critical issues. Shareholders are requested to furnish their telephone numbers and / or e-mail
addresses to facilitate prompt action.

Separate email-id for the Redressal of Investors Complaints
As per the Listing Regulations 2015 the Company has designated a separate email
compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com for the redressal of investor’s complaints.

Ill. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has been constituted as per the
requirements of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and as per the Regulation 19 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

Composition

According to Section 178(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee should comprise of at least three directors; all of whom should be Non-Executive Directors.
At least half of the Committee members should be Independent with an Independent Director acting
as the Chairman of the Committee. Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises
of three Non-Executive Independent Director including the Chairman. As on March 31 2020 the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL comprises of following 3 (three) Members all three
are Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Name Designation Category

Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Chairman Non-Executive Independent director

Mr. Anil Agrawal Member Non-Executive Non-Independent director
Mr. Gulab Chand Agrawal Member Executive Non-Independent director

The purpose of the committee is to screen and to review individuals qualified to serve as executive
directors non-executive directors and independent directors consistent with criteria approved by the
Board.

Terms of Reference
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The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL covers such functions and scope as
prescribed under Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 read with allied Rules framed there under
and Regulation 19 and Part-D of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SCL includes the following:

7

* Determine/ recommend the criteria for appointment of Executive Non-Executive and
Independent Directors to the Board;
% Determine/ recommend the criteria for qualifications positive attributes and independence of
Director;

< Identify candidates who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in the
Management Committee and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

< Review and determine all elements of remuneration package of all the Executive Directors i.e.
salary benefits bonuses stock options pension etc;

«» Review and determine fixed component and performance linked incentives for Directors along
with the performance criteria;

* Determine policy on service contracts notice period severance fees for Directors and Senior
Management;

«» Formulate criteria and carry out evaluation of each Director’s performance and performance of
the Board as a whole;

< To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

*

% To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to
their effort performance dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2022-2023 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee cannot meet due to
undergone CIRP Process.

Remuneration of Directors
During the vyear; no remuneration/sitting fees was given to any executive and non
executive/independent directors.

Mechanism for evaluating Board members

The Board of Directors are collectively responsible for selection of a member on the Board. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company follows defined criteria for identifying
screening recruiting and recommending candidates for election as a Director on the Board. The criteria
for appointment to the Board include:

7

< Composition of the Board which is commensurate with the size of the Company its portfolio
geographical spread and its status as a listed Company;

«» Desired age and diversity on the Board,;

< Size of the Board with optimal balance of skills and experience and balance of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors consistent with the requirements of law;

< Professional qualifications expertise and experience in specific area of business;

Balance of skills and expertise in view of the objectives and activities of the Company;
Avoidance of any present or potential conflict of interest;

*  Availability of time and other commitments for proper performance of duties;

< Personal characteristics being in line with the Company’s values such as integrity honesty

transparency pioneering mindset.

*,

3

A

3

A

0‘0
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company adopted a differential “Nomination and Remuneration Policy” to set the common
guidelines for the working of the Committee. The Broad framework of the Policy is laid down for the
Members’ reference:

I. Introduction

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement the Board
of Directors of every listed Company shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The Company already constituted Remuneration Committee comprising of three non-executive
Independent Directors as required under Listing Agreement. In order to align with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the amended Listing Agreement from time to time the Board changed the
nomenclature of the “Remuneration Committee” as “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” and
reconstituted the Committee with three non-executive Independent Directors. The chairman of the
Committee is an Independent Director

This Committee and the Policy is formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Il. Objectives

The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of directors KMP

senior management personnel and other employees. The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:
¢ To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors Key Managerial

Personnel and Senior Management.

%+ Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications positive attributes and independence of a

director and Recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors key

managerial personnel and other employees.

R

+» Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.
+» To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.
% To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.
¢+ To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to
their effort performance dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.
+» To retain motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.
¢+ To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

* To assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities.
% To Implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate

governance.

C R )

*,

(R )

lll. Applicability
» Directors (Executive and Non-Executive);
Key Managerial Personnel;
* Senior Management Personnel

0‘0

X3

S

0‘0

IV. Definitions
% “Act” means the Companies Act 2013 and Rules framed there under as amended from time to
time.

®,

% “Company” means “Sanwaria Consumer Limited.”
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“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
“Directors” mean Directors of the Company.
“Key Managerial Personnel” means:

= Managing Director Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a Whole-time
Director;

= Chief Financial Officer;

= Company Secretary; and such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Management” means Senior Management means the personnel of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of
management one level below the executive directors including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires words and expressions used in this policy and not defined
herein but defined in the Companies Act 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the
meaning respectively assigned to them therein.
“Policy” means “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”
“Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors officers or employees of a
company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies if any which gives such
directors officers or employees the benefit or right to purchase or to subscribe for the shares of the
company at a future date at a pre-determined price.
“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act 1961.

V. Constitution of Committees

VI.

®,
0.0

The Board of Directors of the Company (the Board) constituted the committee to be known as the
Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation Committee consisting of three non-executive
Independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. There shall be
minimum two members required to constitute Quorum.

However the chairperson of the company (whether executive or nonexecutive) may be appointed as
a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee.
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such intervals as may be required. The matters
arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by the majority of votes of
Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of
the Committee and in case of equality of votes the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

Appointment and Removal of Directors KMP and Senior Management Personnel

Appointment Criteria and Qualifications

R/

+» The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity qualification expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Director KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to
the Board his / her appointment.

«» A person should possess adequate qualification expertise and experience for the position he /
she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification
expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned
position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time

Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by
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passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

Term / Tenure

<& Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman Managing Director or
Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made
earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

®,

< Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and
disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5
years each but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years
of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not during the said period of three years be appointed in
or be associated with the Company in any other capacity either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

Evaluation
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act rules
and regulations there under the Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in
writing removal of a Director KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and
compliance of the said Act rules and regulations.

Retirement

The Director KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the
Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director
KMP Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after
attaining the retirement age for the benefit of the Company.

VIl. Remuneration to Directors KMP and Senior Management Personnel

<& Remuneration to Managing/ Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director KMP and Senior
Management Personnel
The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director /Managing Director etc.
shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under or any
other enactment for the time being in force.
¢ Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:
The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation /commission

as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/
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limits as provided under Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment
for the time being in force.

VIII. Duties in Relation to Nomination Matters
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

«  Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of
Senior Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

< Ensuring that on appointment to the Board Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

% Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;

< Determining the appropriate size diversity and composition of the Board;

< Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing
the plan;

< Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of
the Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

% Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in
office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive
Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service
contract.

«» Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;
< Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

< Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

IX. Duties in Relation to Remuneration matters
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

* Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy based on the performance and also
bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate
members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements

of the remuneration of the members of the Board.

«»  Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of
the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company.

7

< Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.

7

< Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board.
X. Review and Amendment

0’0

*» The NRC or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary.

The NRC may issue the guidelines procedures formats reporting mechanism and manual in
supplement and better implementation to this Policy if it thinks necessary.

< This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required
and also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the
change in the policy.

3

A

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been constituted as per the requirements of

Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.
Composition

According to Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014; the Company is required to have a Corporate Social Responsibility
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Committee of the Board consisting of three or more directors out of which at least one director should
be an Independent Director.

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of three Directors including the
Chairman. As on March 31 2023 the Committee is headed by Mr. Satish Agrawal and has Mr. Ashok
Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain as its members.

Name Designation Category

Mr. Satish Agrawal Chairman Executive Non-Independent director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Member Executive Non-Independent director
Mr. Surendra Kumar Jain Member Non-Executive Independent director

Terms of Reference

The broad terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the company includes
the following:

7

«» Formulating and recommending to the Board the CSR Policy and activities to be undertaken by
the Company;

< Recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities of the Company;

» Reviewing the performance of Company in the area of CSR;

*  Providing external and independent oversight and guidance on the environmental and social
pact of how the Company conducts its business;

» Monitoring CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

*  Monitoring the implementation of the CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken by the
Company.

< Prepare Transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the projects
programmes activities proposed to be undertaken by the SCL.

*,

0’0

0‘0
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¢
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Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2022-2023 the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee cannot meet due to
undergone CIRP Process.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES - MONITORING FRAMEWORK

SCL does not have any material subsidiary as defined under Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. Material Subsidiary means a Subsidiary Company whose income or net worth (i.e. paid-up
capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated income or net worth respectively of the
listed holding Company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. The
Company’s Audit Committee reviews the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as well as
the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries including the investments made by the subsidiaries. The
minutes of the Board Meetings along with a report of the significant transactions and arrangements of
the unlisted subsidiaries of the Company are periodically placed before the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Company has formulated a policy for determining its Material Subsidiaries.
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DISCLOSURES

i.) Subsidiary Companies: The requirements with respect to subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 24 of
the Listing Regulations have been complied with. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company has approved the ‘Policy on Material Subsidiary.’

ii.) Disclosure of Related Party Transactions — Related party transactions as required by the Accounting
Standard AS-18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) disclosed in Notes to the Annual Accounts. Members may refer to the notes to accounts for
details of Related Party Transactions. However these are not having potential conflict with the interest
of the Company at large.

The Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party
Transactions in accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 read with the
provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ili.) Details of non-compliance by the Company penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by
the Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets
during the last three years - some penalties or stricture was imposed by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or
any other authority during the last 3 (three) years since all applicable requirements were not fully
complied with.

iii.)Accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements -The guidelines/ accounting
standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 have been followed in preparation of the financial statements
of the Company in all material respects.

iv.) Corporate Social Responsibility: The detailed Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility has
been disclosed as an annexure appended to the Directors’ Report.

v.) Code of Conduct

Your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for all the Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company. All Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company have affirmed compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for the financial year ended
March 31 2019. A declaration signed by the Chairman to this effect forms part of the Annual Report.

vi.) Risk management -The risk assessment and minimization procedures are in place and the Audit
Committee of the Board is regularly informed about the business risks and the steps taken to mitigate
the same. The Board of Directors though not mandatorily required has constituted a Risk Management
Committee and also approved Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of Regulation
21 of the Listing Regulations.

vii.) Management Discussion and Analysis Report - The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
on the operations and financial position of the Company has been provided in a separate section which
forms part of this Annual Report.

viii.) Profile of directors seeking appointment / re-appointment -Profile of the directors seeking
appointment / re-appointment as required to be given in terms of Listing Regulations 2015 forms part
of the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

ix.) Certification from CEO/CFO -The requisite certification from the Chief Financial Officer for the
financial year 2022-23 as required in terms of the Listing Regulation was placed before the Board of
Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 10 2023 and taken in records
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x.) Payment of fees to stock exchanges / depositories -The Company has not paid listing fees to the
stock exchanges and annual custodial fees to the depositories for the financial year 2019-20 2020-21,
2021-22 and 2022-23 in terms of Listing Regulations 2015.

xi.) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory
requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 - A
certificate from the statutory auditors of the Company to this effect has been included in this report.

xii.) Whistle Blower Policy — In terms of Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations and the Companies
Act 2013 the Company has adopted a whistle blower policy. The employees vendors and customers
are free to express their concerns through e-mail telephone fax or any other method to the persons as
mentioned in the policy.

xiii.) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit -The 'Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit' was undertaken
on a quarterly basis and the audit covers the reconciliation of the total admitted capital with NSDL and
CDSL and the total issued and listed capital.

The audit has also confirmed that the aggregate of the total issued/ paid-up-capital is in agreement
with the total number of shares in physical form shares allotted & advised for demat credit but pending
execution and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

xiv.) Means of Communication -
a) Quarterly / Annual Results -The quarterly / annual results as required under the Listing
Agreement are normally published in the ‘The Financial Express’ and also sent immediately to all
the Stock Exchanges on which the Company is listed i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.
b) Posting of information on the website of the Company: The annual / quarterly results of the
Company Balance Sheet Profit and Loss Account Directors’ Report Cash Flow Statements Corporate
Governance Report Management Discussion and Analysis Report Shareholding Pattern the official
news releases notifications to the stock exchanges the presentations made by the Company to
analysts and institutional investors etc. are regularly posted on the website of the Company
WWWw.sanwariaconsumer.com.

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

General Body Meetings

Details of General Meetings held in last three Financial Year of the Company

** Financial Year: 2019-20
Type of General Meeting: 29" Annual General Meeting
Venue: Office Hall No.1 First Floor Arera Colony Bhopal- 462016
Day date and venue: Friday December 25 2020 at 10.00 AM
+* Financial Year: 2020-21
Type of General Meeting: 30" Annual General Meeting
Venue: Office Hall No.1 First Floor Arera Colony Bhopal- 4620164
Day date and venue: Friday December 31 2021 at 10.00 AM
** Financial Year: 2021-22
Type of General Meeting: 31" Annual General Meeting
Venue: Office Hall No.1 First Floor Arera Colony Bhopal- 4620164
Day date and venue: Thursday December 29 2022 at 12.00 PM
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Financial Reporting

The Company follows April-March as the financial year. The meetings of Co-ordination of Resolution
Professional attended by Suspended Board of Directors for approval of quarterly financial results
during the financial year ended 31st March 2023 were held on the following dates:

First Quarter Unaudited Results August 13 2022
Second Quarter and Half yearly Unaudited Results November 14 2022
Third Quarter Unaudited Results February 13 2023
Fourth Quarter and Audited Annual Results May 29 2023

Tentative Calendar for financial year ending 31st March 2024

The tentative dates of meeting of Board of Directors for consideration of quarterly financial results for
the financial year ending 31st March 2024 are as follows:

First Quarter Results within 45 days from the close of quarter or such extended
time as permitted by the Regulator
Second Quarter and Half yearly Results | within 45 days from the close of quarter or such extended
time as permitted by the Regulator

Third Quarter Results within 45 days from the close of quarter or such extended
time as permitted by the Regulator

Fourth Quarter and Annual Results within 60 days from the close of quarter

Annual General Meeting for FY 2023- In accordance with Section 96 of Companies Act 2013.

2024

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31 2023

Share Holding of No. of % of No. of Share Amount (In Rs.) Total % of
S.No. | Nominal Value Share Total Share E° uit
(Rs.) Holders Holders . Amount quity
Physical NSDL CDSL
1 UPTO 5000 121634 85.44 88793 41969774 81501487 | 123560054 16.79
2 5000 - 10000 9669 6.79 40200 30207216 45904362 76151778 10.35
3 10000 - 20000 5426 3.81 24000 32531116 47119061 79674177 10.82
4 20000 - 30000 2093 1.47 49786 22802480 29736508 52588774 7.14
5 30000 - 40000 907 0.64 0 14557115 17529107 32086222 4.36
6 40000 - 50000 688 0.48 0 14800496 17392880 32193376 4.37
7 50000 - 100000 1225 0.86 0 40304841 49410337 89715178 12.19
100000 AND 721 0.51 | 26172000 120710233 | 103248208 | 250130441 33.98
8 ABOVE

Grand-Total 142363 100.000 26374779 | 317883271 | 391841950 | 736100000 100.000
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Shareholding Pattern as on March 31 2023

Category Of Shareholders | No. of Folios Number Of Shares %
Banks 1 862 0.00
Clearing Members 12 550427 0.07
Director and their Relatives 12 112883391 15.34
HUF 1113 12051613 1.64
Body Corporate 168 32620881 4.43
Non Resident Indians 990 19451044 2.64
Resident Individuals 140066 558541632 75.88
Trusts 1 150 0.00
Total 142363 736100000 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 31 of SEBI Listing Regulations the equity shares of the
Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading under National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The
International Security Identification Number (ISIN) of the Company under Depository System is
INE890C01046.The Annual Custodial Fees for the Financial Year 2022-2023 has not been paid to both
the depositories.

For guidance on depository services shareholders may write to the Company or to the respective
depositories:

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
Trade World 4th Floor Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers

Kamala Mills Compound 28th Floor Dalal Street

Senapati Bapat Marg Lower Parel Mumbai - 400 023

Mumbai—400 013 Telephone: (022) 22723333

Telephone: (022) 24994200 Facsmile: (022) 22723199

Facsmile: (022) 24972933 E-mail: info@cdslindia.com

E-mail: investor@nsdl.co.in Website: www.cdslindia.com

Website: www.nsdl.co.in

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADR/Warrants or any convertible instruments till March 31 2023
till date of this report

Mergers and Demergers
Your Company has not made any mergers and demergers during the year 2022-2023.

Plant Locations:

Plant Division Address

Soya Qil Division | Unit-1 & Unit-1153 A 53 B Sec-A Industrial Area- Mandideep (M.P.)
Soya Qil Division I 19-30 Industrial Area Kheda Itarsi (M.P.)

Soya Oil Division Il Kosmi Industrial Area Betul (M.P.)

Soya Flour Division Unit —I 53A 53B Sec-A Industrial Area Mandideep (M.P.)

Soya Chunks (Soya Bari) Division Unit —I 53A 53B Sec-A Industrial Area Mandideep (M.P.)
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Rice Division | Plot No. 55 Sec- A Industrial Area- Mandideep (M.P.)

Rice Division Il Vill. Kiratpur Teh. Itarsi Distt. Hoshangabad

Listing Details

Securities Name and Address of the Stock Exchanges on which listed Stock Codes
Equity National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) SANWARIA
Exchange Plaza Bandra Kurla Complex Bandra East Mumbai -400 051
BSE Limited 519260
Floor 25P.J. Towers Dalal Street Mumbai- 400 051
ISIN INE890C01046

The listing fee for the financial year 2022-23 has not been paid to the above Stock Exchange

Corporate Identification Number: L15143MP1991PLC006395
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

Sanwaria Consumer Limited (In House)

Office Hall No. 1 1* Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal M.P. — 462016.
Telephone: +91-755-4294878

Fax: +91-755-4295038

Email-id: rta@sanwariaconsumer.com

Market Price Data:
Monthly high and low prices of the Company’s equity shares at BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited during the financial year 2022-2023 at BSE and NSE are noted below:

Stock BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange
Month High(R Low No.of Shares Turnover High( Low No. of Turnover
s.) (Rs.) Traded (Rs.) Rs.) (Rs.) Shares (Rs.)
Traded
Apr-22 1.23 1.01 18941242 21345979 | 1.20 | 1.00 33548613 37870223
May-22 1.08 0.84 15215619 14846397 | 1.10 | 0.80 32450774 31562867
Jun-22 1.04 0.80 10140916 8981342 | 1.05 | 0.80 17186350 15365228
Jul-22 0.89 0.77 8569652 7160450 | 0.90 | 0.80 14953480 12529738
Aug-22 0.82 0.75 10217357 7912225 | 0.85 | 0.75 16583512 12881568
Sep-22 1.03 0.73 18821606 15700061 | 1.05 | 0.75 30817499 27281687
Oct-22 0.84 0.71 9412241 7215327 | 0.85 | 0.70 13843002 10646683
Nov-22 0.80 0.71 10826777 8154892 | 0.80 | 0.70 13161539 9887410
Dec-22 0.79 0.67 10797440 7915868 | 0.80 | 0.65 20867134 15181332
Jan-22 0.76 0.63 10753010 7495408 | 0.75 | 0.60 12586248 8668879
Feb-23 0.68 0.53 8726372 5318693 | 0.70 | 0.50 16888816 10148748
Mar-23 0.60 0.40 11890005 5941250 | 0.60 | 0.40 26326527 12994597
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Share Transfer System

The share transfer requests received in physical form are registered within the statutory time limit. The
requests for dematerialization (demat) received from the Shareholders are affected within statutory
time limit. The Shareholders/Investor Grievance Committee takes care of the fact that all the transfers
are processed within the Statutory Time Limit. The applications for transfer transmission and
transposition of shares are received by the Company at its registered Office or at the Office of its
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents

All communications regarding change of address (if the shares are held in physical form) transfer of
shares and change of mandate (if the shares are held in physical form) can be addressed to Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (In House RTA) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Registered Office and Address for Correspondence
Office Hall No. 1 1* Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal-462016;
Tel.:0755-4294878;
Fax: 0755-4295038
Email: compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com;
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company pursuant to the admission of application for
CIRP against the company the Hon’ble NCLT Indore bench vide its said order dated 29/05/2020 has appointed the Mr.
Rajeev Goel as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Company Further this is to inform you that Mr. Gautam
Mittal was appointed as the resolution Professional in second COC meeting and his appointment was confirmed vide order
dated 04.09.2020 for conducting the CIRP and to exercise all powers and duties in pursuant to the provisions of the IBC.

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal (Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLAINCE WITH THE CODE OF
CONDUCT

To

The Management

Sanwaria Consumer Limited

Office Hall No. 1 1* Floor Metro Walk
Bittan Market Bhopal- 462016 (M.P.)

Sanwaria Consumer Limited the Company has laid down a code of conduct for all the Board Members
and Senior Management of the Company. The Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed
compliance with the code of conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management personnel for
the financial year 2022-2023.

These documents signed by Resolution Professional on behalf of Company pursuant to the admission of application for
CIRP against the company the Hon’ble NCLT Indore bench vide its said order dated 29/05/2020 has appointed the Mr.
Rajeev Goel as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Company Further this is to inform you that Mr. Gautam
Mittal was appointed as the resolution Professional in second COC meeting and his appointment was confirmed vide order
dated 04.09.2020 for conducting the CIRP and to exercise all powers and duties in pursuant to the provisions of the IBC.

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Bhopal (Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
Sd/-
GAUTAM MITTAL

IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

[Issue in accordance with provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015

Dear Sir

| the undersigned do hereby certify that:
a. | have reviewed financial statement and the cash flow statement of Sanwaria Consumer

Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March 2023 and that to the best of
my knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading.

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards applicable laws and
regulations.

b. There are to the best of my knowledge and belief no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent illegal or violative of the Company’s code
of conduct.

¢. | accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that | have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control system of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and | have disclosed to the auditors
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls if any of which | am
aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d. Ihave indicated to the auditors
i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the
involvement therein if any of the management or an employee having a significant
role in the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Yours faithfully
For Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Date: 10.05.2023
Anil Vishwakarma
Place: Bhopal (Chief Financial Officer)
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY PRACTICING CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

[As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(E) of The SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To THE MEMBERS OF SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the standalone financial statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (the ,Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31°
March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Qualified opinion

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph below, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ,Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (,,Ind AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of
affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its Loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified opinion

The Company has shown all expenses and Income on the accrual basis which were
related to current financial year as it was shown in the policy of company that the
Company follows accrualbasis of accounting, but in the following cases it has followed
cash basis of accounting, hence loss has been reduced by Rs. 167.01 Lacs

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lacs)

1 Advertising and Publicity 0.25
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2 Professional Expenses 40.26
3 Security Expenses 94.68
4 Salary Exp. 30.32
5 Audit Fee 1.50

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor*s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (,,ICAI*) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

i. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

ii. One creditor Mr. Kishor Ramniklal unadikat, sole proprietor of M\s Shakti Clearing
Agency has filed company petition under section 9 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 read with the rule 6 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Rules, 2016 to
initiate Corporate Insolvency Resolution process against the Company before the
NCLT and the said application has been admitted by the Authority wide no. (MP) CP
(IB) No.7 /9 /NCLT / AHM / 2019 at 29th of May 2020 and NCLT has appointed Mr.
Rajiv Goyal as Insolvency Resolution Professional (IRP). The CoC approved the
replacement of IRP with 100% voting and IA No. 111 of 2020 is allowed as prayed by
the Applicant. With the Order of National Law Company tribunal (NCLT), no. (MP)
CP (IB) 7 of 2019 with IA 111 of 2020, Dated 04 September 2020, and The Court give
order to Mr. Rajiv Goyal, IRP to handed over the documents/papers & give charge to
Mr. Gautam Mittal, as Resolution Professional.

iii. RP had invited expression of interest from interested parties for revival of the
Company. Five eligible EOl's were received after-which Resolution Plans were
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invited. The Resolution Plans received from these PRAs were discussed and put on
vote before the COC for approval. None of the Resolution Plans were approved by
the members of the COC. While rejecting the Resolution Plans, the COC further
decided to Liquidate the Company for the initiation of Liquidation Process of the
Company has been filed with hon'ble NCLT.

Information other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report thereon

iv. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements our responsibility is to read the other information and in doing so consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the standalone
financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” of the state of affairs
(financial position) profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income) changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view subject to
observations given in Schedule “A” and are free from material misstatement whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern disclosing as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if individually or
in the aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
whether due to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion forgery intentional
omissions misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act
we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
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report. However future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the financial statements
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and where applicable related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when in extremely rare circumstances we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and
limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (the ‘Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act we give in the
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure B as required by Section 143(3) of the Act we
report that:

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

in our opinion the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of
the Company as on 31°* March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report as
per Annexure C expressed an unmodified opinion;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 (as amended) in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
the standalone financial statements;

the Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or Ind AS for
material foreseeable losses if any on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

Date: 24/05/2023 For PRAMOD K SHARMA & CO.
Place: Bhopal Chartered Accountants

CA PRAMOD SHARMA

Partner

M. No.: 076883; FRN: 007857C
UDIN: 23076883BGTNCQ3992
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS
OF SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

ANNEXURE A
Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of Audit we have found some
observation which individually or collectivity were not material for modifying our opinion but

should be consider while taking decision on the basis of Report. Details are following:

1. In the following cases we noticed that the Company have not given any effect in the books
of accounts. The Company is following cash basis system in the same cases:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lacs)
1 Adpvertising and Publicity 025
2 Professional Expenses 4026
3 Security Expenses 94.68
4 Salary Exp. 30.32
5 Audit Fee 1.50

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS
OF SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

ANNEXURE B

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view
subject to observations given in Schedule “A” on the standalone financial statements of the
Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief we report that:

i.  (a) The Company has maintained proper records of Fixed Assets which provided block
wise detail of the Fixed Assets but it should be more descriptive.

(b) As per the information and explanation given to us the Company has a regular
program of physical verification of its property plant and equipment under which
property plant and equipment are verified annually which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance
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Vi.

Vii.

with this program property plant and equipment were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) As per the information and explanation given to us the title deeds of all the
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is maintaining proper record of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between physical stocks and the book records were not material and have
properly dealt with in the books of accounts. No material discrepancies were noticed
on the aforesaid verification.

The Company has granted secured or unsecured loans to companies firms and others
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act; and with
respect to the same:

a. In our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not prima
facie prejudicial to the Company’s interest;

b. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayment/ receipts of the principal amount and the
interest are regular;

In our opinion the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186
of the Act in respect of loans investments guarantees and security.

In our opinion the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014
(as amended). Accordingly the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products and
services and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However we have not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund employees’ state insurance income-tax sales-tax goods and services tax
service tax duty of customs duty of excise value added tax cess and other material
statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities though there has been
slight delay in few cases. Further no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof
were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax sales tax duty of customs duty of
excise and value added tax on account of any dispute are as follows:
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viii.

Name of the | Nature of | Amount | Period Forum where Status
statute Dues (Rs. In to dispute is pending
Lakhs) which
the
amount
relates
Income Tax Disputed 7297.33 | Various | CIT(A)/Tribunal/ Demand Stayed by
Act Years High court department
Central Sales | Disputed 72.08 Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Tax Act Years tribunal/ Appellate | high court demand
Authority pending for grant
of exemption and
their effect.
Madhya Disputed 932.75 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Pradesh Years tribunal/ Appellate | high court demand
Entry Tax Act Authority pending for grant
of exemption and
their effect.
Madhya Disputed 2575.21 | Various | Commercial tax Demand stayed by
Pradesh VAT Years tribunal/ Appellate | high court demand
Tax Act Authority pending for grant
of exemption and
their effect.
EPFO Disputed 150.22 | Various | CGIT Jabalpur Stay by CGIT
Years
Central Disputed 100.26 | Various | Cestate/ Stay Being Apply
Excise Years Commissioner (A)
MPIDC Disputed 19.01 | Various | MPIDC Stay Being Apply
Years Mandideep
DTIC Disputed 28.77 | Various | MP Govt. Stay Being Apply
Years
Municipal Disputed 3.78 Various | Municipal Stay Being Apply
Corporation Years Corporation itarsi
MP Electrical | Disputed 44.98 | Various Stay Being Apply
Department Years High Court

The Company has made default in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions and banks during the year and all CC limits has been withheld by Banks
and accounts have been declared as NPAs.

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). In our opinion the term loans were applied for the
purposes for which the loans were obtained.
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Xi.

xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

As per information and explanation given to us by the management we report that we
have neither come across any instances of fraud by the company or on the Company by
its officers or employees noticed or reported during the year nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

Managerial remuneration has been paid and provided by the Company in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read
with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly provisions of clause
3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of Act where applicable and the requisite details have been disclosed in
the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable Ind AS.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures. Accordingly provisions
of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS
OF SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

ANNEXURE C

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 (the “Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (the “Company”) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 we
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as
of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAIl). These responsibilities include the design implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business including adherence to
Company’s policies the safeguarding of its assets the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design
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and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting.

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that internal financial controls over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion the Company has in all material respects adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023 based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.




SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes tothe accounts

Fer financial year ended 31st March 20223

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

1 Corporate Informatien
Sanwaria Consumer Limited. (e company] (Fomery known as Sanwaria Agro Gils Limiled) is a public company incorporated in India
having its Registered and Corporate ofice al Office Hall No. 1 First Floor, Mefro Walk, Billan makel Bhopal - 462016, The company s
engaged in the manufacturing and rading of Soya, Rice Bran and their products, De-oflled Cake, Grude/refined Edible Ol Manufacturing
of Basmall Rice, and Other Foods Graing and Food Products and Retalling of varlous Products. The Equity shares of the company are
listed on the Bombay stock exchange (BSE) and Mational Stock Exchange (NSE).

Corporate hisolvency Resolution Process ("CIRPT) has been inifated In case of the Company vide an order dated 29 08 2020 of Hon'able
Mational Company Law Tribunal ("MCLT™), Indore Bench under the Provisions of the Insolvency and Bankupicy Code, 20168 [the Code)
Pursuant io the order, the management of affairs of the Company and powers of board of directors of the Company vested with Mr. Rajeey
Goel (Inscivency Professional having registraion no. IBENFA-001AP-POOZE32017-1810507) who IS app as the Interim

i (“IRP*) in rdance with Section 16 of The Insolvency Bankruptcy Cede, 2016 (“Code”) Further, as per the order, dated
04 082020 passed by above mentioned Bench. Mr. Gaulam Mitlal (P Regn No [BBYIPA-DQ1AP-PO133172018-1971 2058) was appointed
as Resolution Professional ("RP") replacing the IRP, Mr. Raeev Goel in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited. These financial
statements have been prepared by the management of the Company and certifiad by Mr Anil Vishwakarma, Chief Financial Gfficer and
approved by Resclution Professional Mr. Gautam Mittal (IP Regn Neo. IBBUIPA-D01/P-P01321/2018-19/12058).

2 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation
These financial sk 15 have been prep to comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified
under the Companias (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018
nolified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {'Ihe Act') and other relevant pravisions of the Act

Company's financial statements are presented In Indian RUpees (), which 15 aiso its Tunctional curency.

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for cerfain financal assets and lizbiliies thal are measured at fair
value

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost pet of taxfduty credit availed, less accumulated depreciation and accumulaied
impairment losses. If any. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment ame required io be replaced ai Inlervals, the Gompany de-
recognizes the replaced part, and recognises the new part with s own associaled useful ife and It s depreciated accordingly. All repair
and maintenance costs are recognised In the statement of profit and I0ss as Incumed.

Property, plant and equif ik are el from financial ks, either on dispesal or when retired from aclive use Lossas arising
in the case of retirement of property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from dispesal of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occumence.

Depreciaton on assets has been proviced on a sraight ine basis at the usetul lives sp Inthe 11 af the Comp Act,
2013. Depl on 1515 pro-rata from/ to the penod of additions! deductions.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecaion are reviewed al ach financial year end and adjusted prospectivery,
appropriate. Currently the residual life is considered as 5% of the value of property plant and equipment

2.3 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company assesses al each reporfing date as o whether there is any indication thal any property, plant and equipmentand intangible
assets or group of assets, called cash generating unils (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an
asset or CGU is estimated o defermine the extent of impairment. if amy. When it is not possible fo estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amoun! of the CGLU Lo which the asset belongs

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Less to the extent assef's camying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount Is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value In use. Value In use Is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted fo ther present value using pre-tax discount rale thal reflecis current market assessmeants of the
time value of money and risk specific to the assels.

The impaiment loss recognised in prior accounting perod 15 reversed I there has been 8 change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes tothe accounts

Fer financial year ended 31st March 20223

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2.4 Finance Cost

Bormwing costs include exchange diferences arising from foreign currency borrowings fo the extent they are regarded as an adjusiment lo
the interest cost Borowing costs that are directly attribulable o the acquisition er construclion of gualifing assels are capitalised as part
of the Cost of SUCh assets. A qualmying asset IS one that necessarily takes substantial peried of time to get reacy for 13 Intenced use.

Interest INCome eamed on the ry of specific GS pEnding their on g g assets |3 ceducted from
the bormow ing costs eligible for capilalisation

All other horrowing cosls are chamed o the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

2.5 Inventories
Inventories are valued as under -
L Raw material, Stores 8 Spares are valued at lower of £ost (on FIFD basis) or net realisable value whichever is ower.
ii. Wark in Process at cost including related cverheads.
iii. Finished Goods & Slock In Trade are valued at cost or estimated realisable vaue whichever is lower. Cost comprises material, labour
and applicable overhead expenses.

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs Including manufacturing overheads in bringing them
to helr respective present Iocaton and condition.

2.6 Foreign Exchange Transactions
The Companys has not mace any Foreing Exchange Transaton dunng the year.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes tothe accounts

Fer financial year ended 31st March 20223

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2.7 Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods

Revenue Trem sale of goods Is recognised when the sionificant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred o the buyer,
recavery of e o 13 i . the cost can be estimated reliably, there 15 no continuing effective control or
manaqgerial imvoivement with the goods. and the amount of revenue can be measurad reliably.

Interest Income
Interest is recognized on a tme proportion Laking into aceount the amount cutstanding and rate applicable

Other Income
Other Income is ecognised when night to receive is established
2.8 Employee Benefits
(i} Short Term Employee Benefits
Al employes benefits falling due whally within welve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employes benefits. The

benefits like salaries, wages, shorl term compensated absences elc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the
period in which the employee renders the related service

(i) Post-Employment Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans: The o 5p fund I3 a defined cx plan. The ¢ paidipayabie
1S recognized in e period in which the emplovee renders the rejated service. The company has defined conTibution plans where the
company pays pre-gefined amounts and does not have any legal or constructive o pay sums for post

benefits.

b Defined Benefit Plans: The chiigation tawards gratulty s a defined benefit plan
The present value of the obiigation under such Defined Beneft Plans is delenmined based on aciuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise ko addiional unit of employee benefit entitlemeant and measures sach
unit separately to build up the final obligafion as per IND- AS 19, i e, "Employee Benefits"

The obligafion is measured at the present value of the estimated fulure cash flows. The discount rates used for delermining the present
valde of the ebligation under defined benefit pians, is based on the markel yields on Government securities as at the Balance sheet date,
having matunty periods approximatng to the terms of related obligations.

Hemeasurements, comprising of actuanal gains and losses, the effect of e asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
fhe net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assefs (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheel with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through ofher comprehensive
income in the period in which they eccur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and 10ss in subsequent periods.

2.9 Accounting for Taxes on Income
Due to 035 Incumed In cUment penod ne provision of Income Tax Proviced
Delrred  tax s
provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at ne reporing date between the tax bases of assets and labilties
and their carmying ameunts for financial reparing purposes at the reporting date

Deferred 1ax assets and labilllies are measured al the tax rates thal are expected 1o apply In the vear when the asset is realised or the
liability is seltied, based on tax rates (and lax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Dieferred tax relating o EMS recognisec outside the statement of proft and 10ss 1S recognised outside the statement of proft and loss.
Creferred tax ilems are recognised in correlation o the underlying fransachon either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and defered tax labiliies are offset if a legally enforceahle right exists fo set off curent tax assels against curent
ineome tax liabiliies and the deferred laxes refate o the same laxable enlity and the same taxation authority
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes tothe accounts

Fer financial year ended 31st March 20223

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2,10 Financial instruments
2.10.1 Financial Assets
A Initial recognition and measurement
Al financial assets and llaniites are inigally recognized at falr value. Transaclon costs that are directly atibutabie 1o the acquisiion or
1SSUE of financlal assets and fnancial Liabiities, which are nat at falr value through profit or 105s, are agusted to the far value on Intial
recogniton. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using frade date accounting.

B.
1. Finanecial assets carried at amortised cost [AC)
A financial assel is measured at amortised cost M 1S held wilhin a business model whose objective 15 to hold the asset in order lo collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Tlows that are salely paymeants
of principal and interest an the prncipal amount cutstanding.
Il Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial assel ks measured at FYTOCT T L & held within a business modal whose objective is achieved by beth collecling contractial
cash flows and selling Inancial assets and the contractual terms of the financlal asset qive nse on speciled dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of pncipal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial assel which is nol classified in any of the above calegories are measured at FVTPL

c. in idiaries, A i and Joint
A subsidiary s an entity that is confrolied by the Company. The Company accounts for the invesiments in equily shares of subs idiaries al
cost In accordance with Ind AS Z7- Separate Financial Statements

D. Other Equity Investments
All other equily Investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those
equity Investments far which the Company nas elected to present the value changes In 'Other Comprehensive Income’.

E. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credil Loss' (ECL) medel, for evaluaiing impaimment of financial assels olher
than those measured at fair value through prefitand less (FVTPL).

Expected credil losses are measured thiough a [0ss allowance al an amount equal to

- The 12-months expected credit [03ses (expected creditiesses that result from those default events on the financial Instrument that
are possible within 12 months  after the reporting date); or

- Full Ifetime expected cradit 105385 (eXpected creditlosses that result rom all possible default Vents over he Ife of the fnancial
nstrument)

Far trade receivables Company applies 'simplified approach’ which requires expecied ifefime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical defaull rates o determine impairment less on the portiolie of tade
recelvables. At every reporting date these histoncal default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward Icoking estimates are analvsed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for Impalrment lass where here 1s no sianificant Increase In credit risk. I
there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL s used
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes tothe accounts

Fer financial year ended 31st March 20223

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2.10.2 Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial Babillies are reeognized at fair value and in case of lsans, nel of direclly atributable cost. Fees of recurming nature are directly
recngnized in the Statement of Profi and Loss as finance cost

*

. Subsequent measurement
Financial iabilities are caried al amorized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the balance sheet date. the camying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these insirumenis,

2.10.3 Denivative fil ial i
The Company uses various dervative financial instuments such as interest rate swaps. currency swaps, forwards & oplons and
commadity contracts o mitigate fhe risk of changes in inferest rates, exchange mies and commodity prices. Such derivalive financial
instruments are infially recognised at fair value on the date on which & derivative confract is enlered inio and are also subsequently
al fair value. De ale camied as financial assels when [he fair value is positive and as financial iabillies when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of dervatives are taken directly 1o Statemeant of Profit and Loss, 2aepl for the
effective poroon of cash flow hedges which is recognised in Cther Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Less when
fhe hedged item affects prafit or Ioss or freafed as basis adjustment if @ hedged forecast transaciion subsequently results in the recognition
of a hon-financial assels er non-finarcial fability

2104 Derecognition of financial Instruments
The Company derscognizes a fnancial assets when the contractual ngnis o the cash flows Tem the Tinancial 8ssets explre 1o It transters
the financial assets and the transfer gualifies for derscegnition under INC-AS 109, A financial liability 15 d ized from the ©
Balance Sheet when the obligahon specified in the contract s discharged or cancelled or expires

£l pany s

211 F L and Ci gent Assets
a) Provisions are recegnized for liabiities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation, if
() Ihe Gompany has a present obiigation as a resull of a past event
() a probakle outflow of resources s expected to setie the abligation, ang
(i) the amount of the can be reliably :
It the effect of the time value of money |s matenal, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate that refiects, when appropriate,
the risks specific o the liabiity W hen discounting 1s used, the increase in the prowision due to the passage of ime is recognised as a
finance cost.
b) Reimbursemenl expected in respect of expenditure reguired o sefile a povision is recognized onfy when it is virtually cerdain that the
reimbursement will be recelved.
) Contingent Liability |5 disclosed In the case of
{i] & present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an cutflow of rescurces will be required to seftle the obligation,
(i} @ present obligation when no reliable eslimate is possiole, and
(iiiy @ possible obligation arising from past evenis where the probanilify of outflow of msources is nof remote.
] Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an Inflow of economic benefits is probable
e] Provisions, Conlingenl Liabilities and Conlingent Assels are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
1) DIvidend to equity sharenolders Is recognised as a llabliity and deducted from shareholders’ Equity, In the period In which the dividends
are app by the equity In the general meeting.
d) Basic EPS s computed by dividing the Profit or loss attibutable to the egquity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
numker of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or kss afiibutabie to the ordinary
equity sharenolders and the weighted average number of ardinary equity shares, for the effects of all dilitive potential Crdinary shares.

213 9 of
Anaperating segment s a component of the Campany (hal engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating resulls are reguiarly reviewed by the com pany's Chief Operating Decision Make! ("CODMY In make decisions
for which diserete Tnancial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates
the Company's p e and allocates based on an analysis of Varkus performance Indicators by DUsIness segments and
geographic segments.

274 Use of estimates and judgement
The preparafion of financal in conformity with Ind AS requies that management of the Company makes estimales and
assumptions thal affect e reported amaunis of income and expenses of the period, Ihe repored balances of assets and labilities and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabiities as of the date of the financial statements

TNe key assumptions ConCeming e future and other key Sources of estimation uncerainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a matenal adjusiments to the caming amounts of assets and labilities within the next inancal year are described below
The company has based ils pli and esli an p i when fhe financial statements were prepared  Existing
dreumstances and ptions about future . however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond control of the management.
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CIN No. L15143MP1991PLC006335
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023

SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)

HNote

|Statements

As per our report of even dale
For Pramod K. Sharma & Co.
Charterad Accountants

(CA Pramed Sharma)

. Ho. 078883
FRM Mo 0O7E5TC

Date : 24.05.2023
Flace  Bhopal

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Gautam Mittal
Partner Resolution Professional

Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22
MNo.
ASSETS -
(1) |Nen-current Assets
(a) |Property, Plant & Equipment 3 G4 B70.82 716,357 84
(b} |Financal Assets
(i} Investments 4 a11.846.18 311,846 18
(i} Loans 5 B,704 82 8,713.51
{c) |Dther Mon current Assats L] 180 93878 180,998 74
Total Non-Current Assets 1,166.420.61 1.217.916.42
(2} |Current Assets
(a) |Inventories T 14 517,89 14,517 89
{b) |Financial Assets
i} Trade Recaivables 8 2 584 383 61 2,598,217 53
(n} Cash & Bark Balance 9 12,234 28 7,058 43
[iii} Bank Balance other than above (i) 5.571.61 5,326.41
(v} Loans 10 {110,030 82) (110,030.82)
(v} Other Financial Assets " - -
{c) |Other Cumrent Assets 12 (13,593.40) (12,950.10)
Total Current Assets 2,503.083.08 2,503,030.34
TOTAL ASSETS 3,668,503.85 3,720,946.76
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
(1) |Equity
{a) |Equity Share captal 13 736,100.00 T36,100.00
(b} |Dther Exuity 14 (6,560 576 08 (6,527 360.35)
Total Equity 15,833 476 58) [5.781,260_35)]
Liabilities
(2} |Non-current Liabilities :
{a) |Financial Liabilities
(1} Bomowings 15 230.519.71 23051971
() |Provisions 18 1150572 11,505.72
(c) |Deferred Tax Liabilities (Met) 7 100.714.76 108,653 84
Total Non-current Liabilities 342 .830.19 350,769.27
(3) |Current Liabilities
(a) |Financial Liabilities
(1) Borowings 18 905 039 18 £ 005,039 16
(i) Trade Fayables 19 95.210.96 95,400.12
{iil} Other financial liabilities 20 752325 7,519 83
(b) |Current Tax Liabilities (net) H 151,718.82 152,814.22
(c) |Dther current liabiilies 22 (87.36) (80.11)
{d) |Provisions 23 74552 74552
Total Current Liabilities 9,160,150.45 9,161,437.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,669.603.66 3,720,946.77
Stanificant Accounting Policies and MNoles to Financial $io 47

For and on behalf of the Management

Director

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
CIN No. L15143MP1991PLC006395
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2023
{Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)
S.No Particulars Note No. 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
| Revenue From Operations 24 E 5
Il |Other Income 25 10.839.14 10,954 55
Il |Total Incoma (1+11) 10,839.14 10,954.55
v Expenses
Costof Materal Consumed % - -
Purchase of Stock in Trade - -
Change in Inventories of Fnished Goods, Work in progress 27
and stock in trade = =
Employes benefits expense 28 1,699.63 1,527.97
Other expenses 29 7.807 42 10,580.87
Finance cosls 30 066 360
Depracetion and amortization expanse 3 51 487 13 65130 12
Total expenses (V) 60,994 85 77,242 66
v Profiti{loss) before exceptional items and tax (1H-1V) (50.166.71) (66,288.10}|
Vi Exceptional ltems - -
VIl |Profiti{loss) before tax (V-VI) (50,155.71) (66,288.10)
Vil |Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax = =
(2) Deferred tax (7.939.08) (12.714.13)
IX  |Profit (Loss) for the period (42.216.62) | (63,573.97))
X Other Comprehensive income
All)  |lems that will be reclassified to profit or loss 251 - 5
Alii) |Income tax relating to dems that will be reclassified lo profit or = =
loss
B(i) [Mems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B(ii) |Income tax relating to tems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) (42,216.62) (53,673.97)
Comprising Profit(Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)
Xl |Earnings per equity share 32
(1) Basic (0.06) (0.07)]
(2) Diluted (0 06) (0.07))
réigﬂﬁcant Accounting Policies and Notas to Financial Statements 11047
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
(As par our report of even date
For Pramod K. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
{CA Pramod Sharma) Gautam Mittal
Partner Resolution Professional Director Director
M. No. 076883
FRN No: 007857C
Date : 24.05.2023 Chief Financial Officer -
Placa * Bhapal
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
CIN No. L15143MP1991PLCODE395

Cash Flow for the Period Ending on 315T MARCH 2023
(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Particulars

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.}

A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems (42,216 .62) (B3.673.87) z
| Adjustment - tor Depreciation 51,487.13 65,130.12 -
< for Other Comprenensive income - -
- for Interest on FORIOthers (554 .14) (588.14)
* for Misc. Balance Wio - -
- for Finance cost - - -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 8,716.37 - 10,968,02
Adjustments for changes in working capital - =
(Increase) f Decreass in Other Mon Current Assets Be2 -
(increase) / Decrease In Inventories - -
(Increase) [ Decrease In Financial Assets 3.834.02 333768 -
|iincrease) | Decrease In Diner Cument Assets 534.29 [212.05) Z
Increase ( (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities (19485 (24 566 24)
Increase / iDecrease) in Other Gurent Liabilitizs (1,082 55) (905.35)
(Increase) [ Decrease in Loans and Advances -

3,189.60 - {22,345 96)|
Cash generated from Operations 11,805.97 - (11,377 24}
Income Taxes refund / (paid) durng the year -
Net Cash flow from /jused in) Operating Activities 11,806.87

[11,377.94)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ; - =
(Additian) f Release of Fixed Deposit (245 20) 13,770.04 B
(Addtion) f Deduction of Fixed Assets .00 {0.00) =
Interest Recened on FDR 554 14 586.14 -
Net Cash tiow from/{used In) Investing Activities J08.94 - 1435818

C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : - e
Share Application Monay - =
Proceeds of Lang Tem Borrowings - -
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (7,939.08) (12.714.13)
Proceeds of Long Term Capital Subsidy - - -
Proceeds [ (Repayment) of Short Term Bormowings (Het) 0.00 6.235.38 =
Dividend Paid - -

Interest paid - - -
Net Cash flow from /(used in) Financing Activities (7,529.08) - (6.478.75)

Net Increase/ (decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,275.82 - (3,498 51)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the pericd 7.958.43 - 1145695

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 12,234.26 & 7,958.43

TNe accompanying notes are an Integral part of e financlal statements.

As per our report of even date

For Pramed K. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Ashok Agrawal Satish Agrawal
(CA Pramod Sharmaj Director Director
Partner Suspended under CIRP Suspended under CIRP
M No 076883
FRH No: 00TA57C

Date - 24.05.2023 Gautam Mittal Anll Vishwakarma
Place | Bhopal (Resolution Professional) Chief Financial Officer
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agre Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
|For The Period ended 31st March 2023
{Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)
N:t Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
4 |Non- Current Investments
(a) |Investment measured at cost
Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid-up
Samwaria Energy Limited 3,11,75,410 Shares of Rs.10/- each. 311,754.10 | 311,754.10
Sanwaria Singapore Pte Limited 0.04 0.04
311,754.14 | 311,754.14
(b) |Investment measured at fair value through Profit and Loss Account
Quoted Fully Paid-up
Punjab National Bank 1180 Equity Share of face value of Rs. 2- each 02,04 02.04
Total Quoted Non-Current Investment 92.04 92.04
Total Non-Current Investment 311,846.18 311,846.18
Category-Wise Non-Current Investment 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Financial Assets Carried at Cost 311,754 14 311,754.14
Financial Assets measured at Cost through Profit & Loss 92.04 92.04
Total Non-Current Investment 311,846.18 | 311,846.18
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

|For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

5 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS :
Loans (Un-Secured and Considered Good)
(a) Deposits 8,704.82 8,713.51
Total Loans 8,704.82 8,713.51
Deposits includes mainly deposit with the
Electricity Department and Other Governmental
Department, which are in perpetual naturs.

6 Other non-current asset (Un-Secured and

Considered Good)
(a) Balances with Government Authorities 180,044 .40 180,044 .40
(b) Others 954.38 054 .38

Total Other Non-Current Assets 180,998.78 | 180,998.78
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

|For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

T Inventories
Raw Materials 1,388.72 1,388.72
Work In Process - -
Finished Goods 9,524.00 9,524.00
Stores & Spares 3,155.60 3,155.60
Packing Material 377.57 377.57
Stock In Trade 72.00 72.00
Total Inventories 14,517.89 14,517.89
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS -

8 Trade Receivables

{Unsecured Considered Good)
Trade Receivables - -
Less than 180 days -

More then 180 days 2,594,383.61 2,598,217.63

Total Trade Receivable 2,594,383.61 2,598,217.63
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

9 Cash and Bank Balance

a. Cash on hand 36.50 36.50
b. Balances with banks

- In current accounts # 12,197.76 7.921.54
- In deposit accounts ## - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12,234.26 7,858.43
b. Balances with banks

- In deposit accounts ## 5,571.61 5,326.41
Total Cash and Bank Balance 17,805.86 13,284.84

## EMD Received during CIRP from  Prospective
Resaolufion  Applicant deposited as  Fixed Deposit
Receipi (FOR).  {in  Previous  year Fxed Deposit
pledged as collaleral secwites has been malured dwing
the current year)

10 Loans - (Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loans and Advances - Related Parties (116,057.06) (118,057.08)
Loans and Advances - Others 8,026.14 6,026.14
Total Loans (110,030.92) (110,030.92)
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|SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 3-Mar-23 3-Mar-22

T Other Financial Assets

Other # - -

Total Loans - -
# Includes fair valuation of derivatives.

12 Other current assets

a. Balances with Government Authorities (15,021.69) (14,397.39)
b. Others # 1438.29 143829

# Includes Pre-paid Expenses and Claim

Total Other Current Assets (13,593.40) (12,959.10
Receivables.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For The Period ended 31st March 2023

[Rupees In Thousand, uniess otherwise stated)

[eANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)

HNote Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-;”-22
No of shares Rs.In No of shares Rs.In
Thousand Thousand
13 |Share capital
A fAuthorised
Equity Shares al par face value of Rs. 1/~ each 780,000,000 TE0O00 TE0.000.000 T80.000
Preference Share at parface value of Rs. 10/~ each 2,000,000 20,000 2.000.000 20,000
s ; it g
Equily Shares at par face value of Rs. 15 each 736,100,000 736,100 736,100,000 736,100
= =
736,100,000 736,100 726,100,000 736,100
Recenciliation of the number of equity shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting peried are as given
B below:
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
No of shares Rs. In Mo of shares Rs.In
Theusand Thousand
Mumber of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 96,100,000 736100 736,100,000 T36.100
At = =
Mumber of shares outstanding at the end of the peried 736,100,000 73E 100 738,100,000 736,100

C  |Termsirights attached to equity shares

‘one vote per share.

D Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

1) The company has only one elass of equity shares having par valle of RS, 1/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to

ii] In the: event of liguidation of the company. the holders of Equity Shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares hald by the shareholders.

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
|Mame of the shareholder Mo of shares % No of shares k)
Gulab Chand Agrawal 24,000 0.00% 24,000 0.00%
Satish Kumar Agrawal 24,000 0.00% 24,000 0.00%
AN Kumar Agrawal 57,989,324 7.68% 57,999,324 7. 88%
CRB Trustee Limited A/c CRE Mutual Fund 26,172,000 3.56% 26,172,000 3.56%
Other B 1.880.676 58 56%  651.880.676 2i 5%
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Statement of Changes in Equity as al 37st March 2033
Asat
HstMarch
023
736 100
736.100 |
Reserves and Surplus
Preference Other
—— ”.’I'““m Capitsl General | Revalustion | Share | Securlties Retained _
n;:;ﬂh Reserve Resarve Resarve | Redemptio |  Premium Earning ve Incoms
p‘;_ gar n Reserve [ocry
Balence st the baginning of the reporting
i . i 1 2025 . 300000 21127840 | 36665176 . 13195000 | (7,261, 489.26) 0.00 | (5548,609.10)
Ameunt Received | Share Aliolted dunng the B =
year
Total Compsehansive oome o e waar
Ind AS Ad)
Dhvidends
Transbar =
Bomus Shares bssuad in 1:1 = =
Ch In accounts icy/prioe - =
Restated balance at the beginning of the
raporting pariod me st Aped 1, 2028 » 300000 21127840 | 36665176 » 13195000 | (7,261 489.26) 0.00 | (5,548,509.10)
Amount Received | Shars Allolied duing the
year
Totel Conprefianside Ncome for the year (42 21662 - 2. 216.62)
Tanser =
Bomus Shares kssuedin 191 = 5
Balance at the end of the reporting period
i March 31t Miseh, 3025 . 300000 | 21127840 | 36665176 . 13195000 | (7,303,705.89) 0.00| (559082572
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For The Period ended 31st March 2023
(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)

Note

Particulars

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

14
(al

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U}

{g)

Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Surplus at the beginning of the vear

Add : Profitloss during the year

Add : Transition date adjustment

Add / Less : Transfer to Revaluation Reserve

Add !/ Less : Transfer to General Revaluation Reserve
Less: Dividend on Equity Shares

Less: Tax on Dividend

(7,261,489.26)
(42,216.62)

(7.207,915.29)
(53,673.97)

Total

(7,303,705.88)

(7,261,489.26) |

Capltal Reserve
Add / Less : Transferred from retained earning /
Appropriation during the year

3,000.00

3,000.00

Capital Reserve - Closing Balance

3,000.00

3,000.00

General Reserve
Add / Less : Transferred from retained earning /
Appropriation during the year

232,527.15

232,527.15

G | Reserve - Closing Balance

232,627 15

232,627 15

Revaluation Reserve
Add / Less : Transferred from retained earning /

Appropriation during the year

366.651.76

366,661.76

Revaluation Reserve - CFOS|!Q Balance

366,651.76

366,661.76

Freference Share Redemption Reserve
Add [ Less : Transferred from retained earning /
Appropriation during the year

Preference Share Redemption Reserve - Closing
Balance

Securities Premium
Add : Issuance of share at premium
Less : Bonus Share issued during the year

131,950.00

131,950.00

Securities Premium - Closing Balance

131,850.00

131,950.00

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) - Opening
Balance
Add / Less :Movement in OCI during the year

Other Comprehensive Income - Closing Balance

Share Application Maney
Add / Less : Money received during the year

Share Application Money - Closing Balance

Total Other Equity

(6,569,576.98)

(6,527,360.35)
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, uniess otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
15 Non- Current Financial Liabilities :

Borrowing (Unsecured)

- Loans - Directors & Shareholders 230,519.71 230,519.71

- Inter Corporate Deposit - Related Parties - -

Total Borrowings 230,519.71 230,519.71

16 Non Current Provisions :
Provision for Employee Benefits 11,585.72 11.595.72
Total Provision 11,595.72 11,595.72
17 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

At the beginning of the year 108,652.84 121,367.97

Charged / (Credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (7,939.08)| (12,714.13)

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 100,714.76 108,653.84

Charge/
Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities As at 31-Mar- (Credit) to As at 31-Mar-
/{Assets) in relation to : 2022 Profit and 2023
Loss Account

Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) in relation to :

- Property Plant & Equipment's 61,277.68 7,939.08 53,338.80
- Provision (2,176.77) - (2,178.77)
- Other Non-Current Assets 49,552.93 - 49.552.93
Total 108,653.84 7,939.08 100,714.76
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

18  |Borrowings
(a) |Secured Loan from Bank

- Loans repayable on demand Working Capital Loan 8,898 803.66 8,808,803.66
Note 1

- Loans repayable on demand -\Working Capital Loan - -
Note 2

- Short Term Loan - Note 1 0.13 013

- Export Packing Credit: PCFC - Note 1 - -

-Reimbursement of CIRP Cost 6,235.38 6.235.38
Total Borrowing 8,905,039.16 8,905,039.16

Note -1 Working Capital Loans are secured by Paari Passu charge on the Fixed Assets and
Present & Future Current Assets along with Personal Guarantee of Directors and by pledge of
fully paid up Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company .
Note -2 Working Capital Loans secured by pledge of warehouse receipt / storage receipt with
lien, along with Personal Guarantee of Directors
The Company has Defulted in repayment of following Banks Loans which is Admitted
during the CIRP

Amount (Rs.in Lacs)

Name of Financial Creditor Claim Admitted
Punjab MNational Bank 26850.78
State Bank of India 19388.94
Bank of Baroda 12403.58
Central Bank of India 11389.71
Bank of India 11034.25
IDBI Bank 8567.30
Canara Bank 5665.98
Union Bank of India (Andhra Bank merged with UBI) 2835.51

98106.05

19 Trade payables
Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others 95,210.96 95,409.12

Total Trade Payables 95,210.96 95,409.12

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
The Company has not received any memorandum from Suppliers’ (as required to be filed by
the "Suppliers’ with the notified authority under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006) claiming their status as on 31st March, 2023 as micro, small or
medium enterprises. Consequently, the interest paid/ payable by the company to such
Suppliers, during the year is Nil (Previous year: Nil).
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[SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For The Period ended 31st March 2023
(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)
Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
20 Other Financial Liabilities
(Advances and Sundry Deposits (T02.15) (681 81)
EMD £,000.00 6,000 00
Others Payable 2225 40 2211.74
Total Other Financial Liabilities 7,623.26 7,519.93
21 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Provision for Income Tax 166,250 22 166,250.22
Less : Advance Tax/TDS (4,531.30) (3,436.00)
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 161,718.92 152,814.22
R iliation of I Tax Exp 31-Mar-23
Profit Before Tax (50,155.71)
|Applicable Tax Slab -
Current Tax Provision - A =
Decrement in Defarred Tax Liability for Property Plant & Equipment’s 7,830.08
Increment in Deferred Tax Assets for Provision =
1 in Defarred Tax Liability for Othar Non-Current Assats -
Deferred Tax Provision - B 7.939.08
Tax Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 7.939.08
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rup in Th d, otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31.Mar-23 31-Mar-22

22 Other Current Liabilities

Other Statutory Dues (87.38) (20.11)
Total Other Current Liabilities (87.36) {80.11)]

23 Provisions
(a) Praovision for gratuity & bonus 745.52 745.52

Total Provision 745.52 745.52 |
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ANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)

Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For The Period ended 31st March 2023

oy

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note

Particulars

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products -
Refined il

Crude Oil

Soya Meal

Basmati Rice

Food Grains & Others
Others

Tatal

Other income

Interest Income
Others

554.14
10,285.00

588.14
10,366.41

Taotal

10,839.14

10,954.55

Other Comprehensive income

Gain on Financial Assats
Urrealised Gain
Exchange Fluctution Gain/(loss)

[Total
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|SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note

Particulars

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Cost of Material Consumed & Other Trading Stock
Purchases

Raw Material Consumed and Purchase of Stock in Trade
Trading Stock Purchases

Store & Spares tems Consumed

Packing Material Consumed

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work In Progress and Stock In Trade

Opening Stock at the beginning of years

- Finished Goods

- Work In Progress

— Stock In Trade

Closing Stock at the closing of years
— Finished Goods

- Work In Progress

— Stock In Trade

- Transferred to Other Expenses

9,524.00

72.00

9,524.00

72.00

9,506.00
9,524.00

72.00

9,596.00
9,524.00

72.00

9,586.00

9,596.00
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For The Period ended 31st March 2023
(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
28 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages 1.683.42 1,348.30
Gratuity & Bonus - -
Contributions to Provident Fund & Others 16.21 178.67
Staff welfare expenses - -
Total 1,699.63 1,527.97
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|5ANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For The Period ended 31st March 2023

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

29 Other expenses

Power & Fuel Charges - 11.95
Repairs & Maintenance - -
Manufacturing General Expenses - -
Printing , Stationery & Communication Expenses - .
General Expenses 15.00 70.48

Warehousing Charges - -
Insurance Charges 876.20 886.14
Advertisement Expenses 17.10 85.73
Legal & Professional Fees 3.487.65 4.158.01
Security Expenses 3.343.00 5,334.13

Miscellaneous Expenditure Written Off - -
Product Selling Expenses < <
Shortage & Quality Rebate - -
Prior Period Expenses - -
Travelling Expenses 68.47 3443
Auditor's Remuneration
- Statutory/Tax/ Internal Audit Fees - -

Total 7,807.42 10,580.87

30 Finance Costs

Other Borrowing costs 0.66 3.69

Total 0.66 3.69

Notes:

1. Due to liquidity crunch w.e.f. the Financial year 20-21 we have switched our accounting policy from
Mercantile to Cash basis. Hence following expenses that are related to the current financial year 22-23 but
have not been paid hence, are not being provided in books of accounts

Advertising and Publicity 24.95
Professional Expenses 4026.05
Security Expenses 9468.21
Salary Expenses 3031.82
Audit Fes 150.00

16701.02
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
|For The Period ended 31st March 2023

{Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

3

32

33

34

Note

Particulars Amount Years 31.03.2023
Contingent Liabilities:

a. Bank Guarantee INR In Lakhs 6.00
b. Outstanding Forward Contract USD In Lakhs -

c. The company has not deposited following statutory dues on

account of dispute and for which preferred an appeal

Income Tax Act INR In Lakhs | Various Years 7.297.33
Central Sales Tax Act INR In Lakhs | Various Years 315.12
Madhya Pradesh Entry Tax Act INR In Lakhs | Various Years 977.34
Madhya Pradesh VAT Act INR In Lakhs | Various Years 3,018.63
EPFO INR In Lakhs | Various Years 150.22
Central Excise INR. In Lakhs | Various Years 100.28
MPIDC INR In Lakhs | Various Years 19.01
DTIC INR In Lakhs | Various Years 28.77
Mumcipal Corporation INR In Lakhs | Various Years 3.78
MP Electrical Department INR In Lakhs | Various Years 44.98
Earning Per Share (EPS) 3iMar/23 31/Mar/22
Profit after tax aftributable to Equity Shareholders - Rs. In INR (42,216,625) (53,573,966)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (In nos.) - Basic 736,100,000 736,100,000
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (In nos.) - Diluted 736,100,000 736,100,000
Nominal Value of Equity per share (In Rs.) 1.00 1.00
Basic Earnings per share (In Rs.) (0.06) {0.07)
Diluted Earnings per share (In Rs.) (0.06) (0.07)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

B. Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility is Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

A. CSR amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act read with Schedule V1l thereof by the
company during the year is Rs. NIL (due lo Loss) (Previous Year Rs.Nil (Due to Loss )

prepared on a going concern basis.

The Company has incurred losses, its liabilities exceeded total assets and its net worth has been fully eroded as at
31st March 2023. In view of the continuing default in payment of dues, certain lenders have sent notices/letters
recalling their loans given and called upon the Company to pay entire dues and other liabilities, receipt of invocation
notices of corporate guarantees given by the Company, while also invoking the personal guarantee of Promoter
Directors. Certain lenders have also issued wilful defaulter notices. As mentioned in Note No.1 the honourable NCLT
has admitted a petition to iniiate insclvency proceeding against the Company under the Code, As per the Code, itis
required that the Company be managed as a going concern during the CIRP. The financial statements have been
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For The Period ended 31st March 2023

{Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

35 |Related Party Disclosures
A |Names of Related Parties

Associates and Group Companies: Subsidiary Company
M3 Agrawal Trading Corporation Limited Sanwaria Singapore Pte Limited
Sanwaria Globfin Private Limitad Sanwaria Energy Limited

Ashoik Dall and Oil Mills Itarsi

Sanwaria Infrastructure Limited

Sanwaria Warehousing & Logistic Limited
Sanwaria Foods Limited

Shreenathji Solvex Limited

Surya Trading Comporation

Seth Shree Marayan Agrawal Charitable Trust

B |Key Management Personnel:

Gulab Chand Agrawal - Chairman & Director Chief Financial Officer
Satish Agrawal - Director Anil Kumar Vishwakarma
Ashok Kumar Agrawal - Director Company Secretary: **

Anil Agrawal - Director (Died on 29.05.2021)

** Office of the Company Secetary has vacat since September 2021

C |Relatives:
Geeta Devi Agrawal Anju Devi Agrawal
Anil Kumar Agrawal HUF Sadhana Dewi Agrawal
Ashok Kumar Agrawal HUF Reeta Dew Agrawal
Gulab Chand Agrawal HUF Bobby Devi Agrawal
Satish Kumar Agrawal HUF Ashutosh Agrawal
R M. Agrawal HUF Rajul Agrawal
Abhishek Agrawal
(Amount in INR Lakhs)
Associates & | KeyM t 3
ok = Relatives
Sr. | Details of Related Party transactions and year end Subsidiary Personnel
No. outstanding 2022.231 2022.23/ 202223
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22
1 |Sales - -
2 |Purchase of Materials :
100.80 -
3 |Gogoewn (Lease Renl Received 10080 =
4 |Loan Taken - - -
5 |Loan Repayment ~ ~
3 6,011.46 2412 574.24
6 |CI Bal -
aRngRRIenee 6,01146 2412 574 24
. 210
7 |Advance Given 596
10886
8
Repayment 679
R 69.19
a |ci Bal
05INg Balance 2468
10 |Interest Paid - -
11 |Interest Received -
12 |Salary —
13 |Share Application Money Received
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
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36 |SegmentInformation -Amt in Cr.

The company was exclusively dealing in agriculture based business i.e. Solvent Extraction, Refining, Rice
Mill, Food Grains & Other Qils including other Food Products FMCG retail / bulk and thus operates in a
single business segment. Company has NIl Tumover during the year for compliance of Ind AS -108 we|
have broadly bifurcate the folowing for reporting purpose

Geographic wise Export Domestic
(inclindirect)
0.00 0.00
Product wise Rice Milling |Solvent Extraction Food Grain
0.00 0.00 0.00
Market Wise Bulk Retail (Packing)
0.00 0.00

In the opinion of the board of directors of the company, the cumrent financial assets i.e. Trade Receivable,
Loans and Others have the value on realisation in the ordinary course of the business at least equal to the|
amount at which they are stated and that the provisions for all the known liabilities are adeguate and not in
37 |excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

Balances with Trade Payable, Trade Receivable and Loans & Advances are subject to confirmation/
reconciliation, although balance confirmation letters has been send to those parties.

The company has to comply with the Indian Accounting Standard - 19 on "Employee Benefits" . The|

28 retirement benefit costs (Gratuity Provision) as per acturial Valuation Report for March 2019
The company has an Current Tax liability shown under the head in note no 21 to financial statement
30 however company requested to the tax authorities to adjust the said liability demand against the old

pending refunds,
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Note 40: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s cbjective when managing the capital |s to safeguard the Company's abllity to continue as a
going concern.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to ‘total equity”. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt Is defined as total debl, comprising inlerest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under
finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises of Equity share capital and other equity.
However, in view of certain adverse factors and liquidity problems faced by the Company, the net worth of]
the Company has been fully eroded and the Company is presently under CIRP process and thereby
continue to operate as a going concem. The Company's adjusted net debl to adjusted equity ratlo was as

follows-
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Total liabilities* 9,135,558.87 9,135,558.87
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 12,234.26 7,958.43
Less : Other Bank Baalnce 5,671.61 5,326.41
Net debt 9,117,753.01 9,122,274.03
Total equity® (5,833,476.98) (5,791,260.35)
Net debt to equity ratio (1.56) (1.58)

The Company has complied with the covenants as per the terms of the major borrowing facilities throughout
the reporting period.

* Ligbilties : Consists of Secured Loans from Banks and Unsecured loans from directors/ relative and
other entities

* Cash and Cash Equivalent : Consists of Cash and Cash Equivalent less balance with dividends
accounts,

AEquity . Equity Share Capital + Other Equity
Note 41:

The MNaticnal Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Indore Bench, vide order dated on 29th May, 2020
(“Insolvency Commencement Date") has initiated Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP™) under
|the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (“the Code”) based on application filed by one
creditor Mr. Kishor Ramniklal Unadikat, sole proprietor of M\s Shakti Clearing Agency under section 9 of|
The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rule 6 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Rules,
2016 and the said application has been admitted by the Authority wide no. (MP) CP (IB) No. 7/ 9 / NCLT /
AHM / 2019 on 29th of May 2020 and NCLT has appointed Mr. Rajiv Goel as Insolvency Resolution
Professional (IRP)to manage affairs of the Company In accordance with the provisions of Code.

In the first meeting of Committee of Creditors ("CoC") held on July 28, 2020 and in terms of Section 22 (2)
of the Code, resolved with 100% voting share, to replace the existing Interim Resolution Professional with
Mr. Gautam Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the Company. As per section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the unaudited financial statements of the Company are required to be authenticated
by the Chairperson aof the Board of Directors, where authorised by the Board or at least two directors, of
which one shall be managing director or the CEO (being a director), the CFO and Company Secretary
where they are appointed. Pursuant to the NCLT order for commencement of the CIRP and in line with the
provisions of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and be exercised by IRP /
RP. These Standalone Audted Financial Results for the quarter and year ended on 31st March 2023 have
been prepared by the management of the Company and certified by Mr. Anil Vishwakarma, Chief Financial
Officer ('CFO’) of the Company in accordance with Regulation 33 (2) of the SEB! (Listiong Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

This Audited Financial Results were placed before the RP, the CFO on 10th May, 2023 for their
consideration. Accordingly, the Audited financial statements were considerad and recommended in the
meeting. In view thereof, the RP, in reliance of such examination by and the representations, clarifications
and explanations provided by the CFO, has approved the same. The RP is relying on the management]
representation letler dated 10th May , 2023 for all information and confirmations in relation to the day o day
|functioning of the company.

The RP has approved these Audited financial Statements only to the extent of discharging the powers of the
Board of Directors of the Company (suspended during CIRP) which has been conferred upon him in terms
of provisions of Section 17 of the Code.
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Nore 42

The carrying value of tangible assets as at 31st March 2023 is Rs.6648.71 Lacs As explained
in note no. 1 above the Company is under CIRP and the RP has invited submission off
resolution plans from potential resolution applicants, and put up for necessary approvals
|before the Committee of Creditor ('CoC’) and the NCLT. The CIRP is concluded and COC
propose for liquidation. And the RP has Filed the Application and which is pending before
Hon'ble NCLT.

Note 43

In accordance with the Code, public announcement was made calling upon the financial
creditors and operational creditors of the company to submit their claims with the Interim
Resolution Prefessional {'IRP) by 15.06.2020. In accordance with the Code, the IRP/RP has to
receive, collate and admit the claims submitted against the Company. Such claims can be
submitted to the IRP/RP during CIRP, till the approval of a resolution plan by the CoC.
Pursuant to the claims received on 15.06.2020, the CoC was formed on 01.07.2020, and the
|list of such creditors was duly notified to the NCLT and uploaded on the company website.
Thereafter, there could be regular revisions to the list in view of the claims received and the
RP is in the process of receiving, collating, verifying, seeking clarifications, sending
communications for unreconciled balance, seeking additional documents to substantiate whole
or part of the unreconciled balances on such claims. In respect of claims submitted by the
financial creditors as on 15.06.2020, the same is exceeding amount appearing in the books of|
accounts. To the extent the process for submission and reconciliation of claims as on the
Insclvency Commencement Date remains an on-going process, no accounting impact in the
books of accounts has been made in respect of excess, short or non-receipts of claims for
operational and financial creditors.

Note 44

The carrying value of tangible assets is Rs.6648.71 Lacs. As explained in note no 43 above,
the Company is under CIRP. As such, the Company has not taken into consideration any|
impact on the value of the tangible assets, if any, in preparation of Financial statements as
required by Ind-AS 10 on “Events after the reporting period”. Further, the Company has also
not made full assessment of impairment as required by Ind AS 36 on Impairment of Assets, if
any, as at 31st March, 2023 in the value of tangible assets.

Note 45

The Company has not recognised interest payable, after the insclvency commencement date
i.e. 28th May, 2020, on borrowings from banks and financial institutions, customer advance,
inter corporate deposits received. The same is not in compliance with Ind AS - 23 on
“Borrowing Cost” read with Ind AS — 108 on "Financial Instruments".
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[Note 26: Financial insruments
* The camying i of Rnancial i ied il cost are o immfior of far vahe

B. Measurement of fair values

T e table shown i at fair value, by valiation method. The diferent leveis have been defined below:

- Level 1 quoted prices ursadusted) in acive markets for iderfical assets o atiliies

- Leved 2 inputs wher than quoted prices mduded within Level 1 hat are cbservable for e assel or liabilty, siber direcily {i.e | as pricest or ndiredly § e, derved from

- Lewel & mputs for the asset or ¥ ot based on by markst pues|

C. Valuation techniques

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values
£} Fair value of the cash and shof lerm depests, curment ans and sdvances s offer curent Tnanc kbl es and oifer simar ifems Jporosmsie hisr caming vilue

ety due 1o short tem
2} Lon

iuated by the Compary such as interest rates. specfic country risk factors and the nsk chamctenstics of the financed
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MNote 47: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Company's aclivities expose il to a vanely of financial risks, including Credil nsk, Commodity Price Risk, and liquidiy risk.
The Company’s primary risk management focus is fo minimize polenfial adverse effects of market risk on its financial
performance. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse
|the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the
same Risk went and t policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company's activites

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishmenl and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. This nofe presents information aboul the nsks associated with iis financial mstruments, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measunng and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.

1. Credit Risk
The Company is exposed to credit nsk as a result of the risk of counlarparties defaulting on their obligahons. The Company's
exposure to credit nsk primanly relates o accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents including deposil with banks.

The Company has a prudent and conservabive process of managing its credit nsk ansung in the course of ils business. All the
trade ivables are revi d and d for defaull on routine basis. Our histonical expenience of collecting receviables,
supported by the level of defaull, is that credit nisk is low.

The Company mamntans exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposit with bank and derivative financial instruments. The
Company's maximum exposure (o credit nsk as at 31st March 2023, 31-March-2022 is the carrying value of each dass of financial
assets.

2. Commodity Price Risk
(Company is under CIRF and currently nol being underake any Manufacturing activity.

3. Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability to fund its obligations as they become due. The Company monitors
and manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and financial requirements. The Company
has access to credit faciities and debt capital markets and monitors cash balances daily. In relation to the Company’s liquidity
risk, the Company’s palicy is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when duse,
under both normal and strassed conditions as thay fall due while minimizing financa costs, without incurmng unacceptable losses
or risk of damage to the Company's reputation.

|Maturities of financial liabilities
The contractual undiscountad cash flows of financial liabilities are as tollows:

| _As at 31st March 2023 [Lessthan 1 [ >6yeas |  Total
Borrowings 8,905,039.16 220,519.71 9,135,558.87
Trade payables 05 210.96 95210 96
Other financial liabilities 7.523.25 7.523.25
9,007 773.37 = 230.519.71 9,238 293,07

) T
Borrowings 8,905,039.16 230,519.71 9,135,558.87
Trade payables 95409.12 95409 12
(Other financial liabilities 751993 7,510 93

9007 968 22 E 23051971 9,238 487 62
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As at 31 March 2021 1 “Total_
Borrowings 8 806,204.51 224 567.18 9,120,771.69
Trade payables 97,923.30 97 923.30
(Other financial liabilities 573611 5736 11

8,900 863.93 - 224 567.18 9,224 43110

4. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that an upward movement in the interest rate would adversely effect the borrowing cost of the
company. The Company is exposed o long term and short-lerm borrowings. The Company manages interest rate risk by
monitonng its mix of fixed and floating rate instruments, and taking action as necessary to mamntain an appropnate balance.

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings lo interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

a) Interest rate risk exposure

i _ i | 1-Mar-23 _3-Mar-22
\ariable rate borrowings 8905,039.16  8905039.16
Fixed rate borrowings - -

b) Sensitivity analysis

The company's fixed rate borrowings are carried al amorlised cost. They are therefore not subject o interest rate risk
as defined in IND AS 107, since neither the camying amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate because of a change
in market interest rates. Hence sensitivity has been considered only on vanable rate borrowing. Profit or loss estimate
to higher/lower interast rate axpense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest ratas

Impact on profit after tax |
3MMar23 |  31-Mar22
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis (44 ,525) (44 525)
points
Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis 44 525 44 525
points

15. Foreign Currency Risk

The company's business objective includes safe-guarding its export earnings agai d price mo tz of in foreign
exchange and interest rates. The Company has adopted a structured risk managemeant palicy to hedge all these risks within an
acceptable risk limit and an approved hedge accounting framework which allows for Fair Value and Cash Flow hedges Hedging
instruments include forward currency contract to achieve this objective.

@) Foreign Currency risk exposure
USD converad in INR (in L akhs
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Loans, Trade & Other Payables -
Trade and Other Receivable 188078 1.B1577
Derivatives - Forwards and Fulures -

b) Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity Analysis of 1% change in exchange rate af the end of Reporting period net of Hedges

Impact on profit after tax USD In |

3 Mar23 | 31-Mar22
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis 9.40 o908
points
Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis (9.40) (9.08)

points
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The members of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and two of its audited subsidiary (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’) which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023 the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Qualified opinion

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the certified financial statements prepared by
management and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries except for the effects
of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph below the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view subject to observations given
in Schedule “A” in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 of the Act of
the consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Group as at 31
March 2023 and its consolidated Loss (consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income) its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified opinion
3. The Company has shown all expenses on the Cash basis due to this the following

expenses have not been included in the current year financials hence loss has been reduced
by Rs. 167.01 Lacs :

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lacs)
1 Advertising and Publicity 025
2 Professional Expenses 40.26
3 Security Expenses 94.68
4 Salary Exp. 30.32
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5 Audit Fee

1.50

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 15 of the Other Matters paragraph
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment and based on the
consideration of the certified financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion
thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5. One creditor Mr. Kishor Ramniklal unadikat sole proprietor of M/s Shakti Clearing Agency
has filed company petition under section 9 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016
read with the rule 6 of The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Rules 2016 to initiate Corporate
Insolvency Resolution process against the Company before the NCLT and the said
application has been admitted by the Authority wide no. (MP) CP (IB) No. 7 / 9 / NCLT /
AHM / 2019 at 29th of May 2020 and NCLT has appointed Mr. Rajiv Goyal as Insolvency
Resolution Professional (IRP). The CoC approved the replacement of IRP with 100% voting
and IA No. 111 of 2020 is allowed as prayed by the Applicant. With the Order of National
Law Company tribunal (NCLT) no. (MP) CP (IB) 7 of 2019 with IA 111 of 2020 Dated 04
September 2020 and The Court give order to Mr. Rajiv Goyal IRP to handed over the
documents/papers & give charge to Mr. Gautam Mittal as Resolution Professional.

6. RP had invited expression of interest from interested parties for revival of the Company.
Five eligible EOIl's were received after-which Resolution Plans were invited. The Resolution
Plans received from these PRAs were discussed and put on vote before the COC for
approval. None of the Resolution Plans were approved by the members of the COC. While
rejecting the Resolution Plans the COC further decided to Liquidate the Company for the
initiation of Liquidation Process of the Company has been filed with hon'ble NCLT.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

7. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements our responsibility
is to read the other information and in doing so consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the
work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
financial statements

8. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” of the
consolidated state of affairs (consolidated financial position) consolidated profit or loss
(consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income) consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for
ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further in terms of the provisions
of the Act the respective Board of Directors /management of the companies included in the
Group covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view subject to observations given in Schedule “A” and are free
from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. These financial statements have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company as aforesaid.
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9.

10.

10.

11.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern disclosing as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud
or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if individually or
in the aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements whether due to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion forgery
intentional omissions misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the holding company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements including the disclosures and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and where applicable related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when in extremely rare circumstances we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Matters

We rely on the certified financial statements/ financial information of one subsidiaries
(Sanwaria Singapore PTE Limited) included in the Financial results whose financial
statements/ financial information whose financial statements/ financial information are
unaudited and have been furnished to us the management and our opinion on the statement
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures is based solely of such unaudited
financial statements/ financial information. In our opinion and according to information and
explanations given to us by the management these financial statements/ financial
information are not material to the group. Another subsidiary company (Sanwaria Energy
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Limited) is audited by us which has shown loss of Rs. 138.96 Lacs also included in the
consolidation.

In case of Sanwaria Singapore PTE Limited our opinion on the statement is not
modified with respect to our reliance on the financial statements/ financial information
certified by the management.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of
the certified Financial Statements prepared by the Management referred to in paragraph
15 of the subsidiaries we report that the Holding Company paid remuneration to their
respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid
down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further we report that the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to one foreign
subsidiary company.

17. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of
the Certified Financial Statements prepared by the Management and other financial
information of the subsidiaries and we report to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

d) In our opinion the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

4. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the Certified Financial Statements prepared by the Management of its subsidiary
companies none of the directors of the Group companies covered under the Act are
disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act;
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5. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies covered under the Act and the
operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’;

6. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 (as amended) in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate
financial statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries:

v. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group its associates and joint ventures;

vi. Provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements as required
under the applicable law or Ind AS for material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies associate companies and joint venture companies during the year ended
31 March 2023;

Date: 24/05/2023
Place: Bhopal For PRAMOD K SHARMA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
-sd-
CA PRAMOD SHARMA
Partner
M. No.: 076883; FRN: 007857C
UDIN: 23076883BGTNCR7676
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont.)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date To The Members of
Sanwaria Consumer Limited on The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of Audit we have found some
observation which individually or collectivity were not material for modifying our opinion but
should be consider while taking decision on the basis of Report. Details are following:

2. In the following cases we noticed that the Company have not given any effect in the books
of accounts. The Company is following cash basis system in the same cases:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lacs)
1 Advertising and Publicity 025
2 Professional Expenses 40.26
3 Security Expenses 94 68
4 Salary Exp. 30.32
5 Audit Fee 1.50

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date To The Members of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited on The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sanwaria
Consumer Limited (the ‘Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as the ‘Group’) as at and for the year ended 31 March
2023 we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company its one of subsidiary company which are companies covered under the Act as at
that date.
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Management’s Responsibility for Internal financial Controls

7. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company its one subsidiary company
which are companies covered under the Act are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(the ‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the company’s business including adherence to the company’s
policies the safeguarding of its assets the prevention and detection of frauds and errors the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

10. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting of the Holding Company its one subsidiary companies as aforesaid based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal control over financial reporting and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal control over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

11. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal control over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due
to fraud or error.

12. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting of the Holding Company its one subsidiary companies as
aforesaid.
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Meaning of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

6. A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable
detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also projections of any
evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

16. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the certified financial statements of
subsidiary companies on internal control over financial reporting together with our report
of Holding Company on internal control over financial reporting which are companies
covered under the Act have in all material respects adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023 based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
its one subsidiary company as aforesaid considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

10. We did not audit the internal control over financial reporting in so far as it relates to
one subsidiary company which are covered under the Act whose financial statements
reflect total net loss after tax Rs. 138.96 Lakhs for the year ended on that date as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal control over financial
reporting in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company have been unaudited whose
reports have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting for the Holding
Company its one subsidiary company as aforesaid under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so
far as it relates to such one subsidiary company is based solely on certified financial
statements prepared by management of such companies and such subsidiary company is
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done by and on the reports of the other auditors.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023- Consclidated

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

1 Corporate Informatien
Sanwaria Consumer Limited. (e company] (Fomery known as Sanwaria Agro Gils Limiled) is a public company incorporated in India
having its Registered and Corporate ofice al Office Hall No. 1 First Floor, Mefro Walk, Billan makel Bhopal - 462016, The company s
engaged in the manufacturing and rading of Soya, Rice Bran and their products, De-oflled Cake, Grude/refined Edible Ol Manufacturing
of Basmall Rice, and Other Foods Graing and Food Products and Retalling of varlous Products. The Equity shares of the company are
listed on the Bombay stock exchange (BSE) and Mational Stock Exchange (NSE).

Corporate nsolvency Resolution Process ("CIRPT) has been initated In case of the Company vide an order dated 29.05.2020 of Hom'able
Mational Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT”), Indore Bench under the Provisions of the Insolvency and Bankiuptcy Code, 2016 [ine Cooe).
Pursuant i the order, the management of affairs of the Company and pewers of beard of directors of the Company vested with Mr. Rajeev
Goel (Insolvency Professional having regisirafion no. IBBVIPA-OD1AP-POO26372017- 1810807} whe is appainted as the Interim Resolution
Professional [*IRP") In sccomdance with Section 16 of The Insolvency Bankrupley Code, 2016 ['Code™) Futher, as per the order, dated
04052020 passed by above mentioned Bench, Mr Gautam Mitlal [P Regn Mo, [BBYPA-001AP-PO1321/2018-19/12088) was appointed
as ion F (‘RP") replacing the IRP, Mr. Rajeev Goel In the matler of Sanwaria Consumer Limiled. These Comsolidated
financial statements have been prepared by the management of the Company and certifled Dy Mr. Anll Vishwakama, Chiet Financial
Officer and approved by Resclution Professional M Gautam Wittal (P Regn Mo IBBIAPA-O01/IP-PO1331/2018-19/1 2058)

2 Sigmificant Accounting Policies

21 Basis of Preparation
These inancial statemenis have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with |ndian Accounling SEandards (“Ind AS”) notified
under the Companies (Indlan Accouniing Standards ) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016
notfied under Sechon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act

Comg 5 financial ae p in Indian Rupees ('], which is also s functional curency.

The financial statements are prepared ona historical cost basis, excepl for cerain financial assets and labiities that are measured at fair
value.

2.2  Property, Plant and Equipment
Froperty, plant and equipment are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credit avalled, jess o ana
Impairment losses. I any. Wnen significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at Intervals. the Company de-
recognizes the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. All epair
and mantenance costs are recognised in the staterment of profit and loss as incumed

Properly, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statements, elther on dispesal ef when retired fom active use Losses arlsing
In the case of retifement of property, plant and equipment and gains or [0SSes arising rom aispesal of property, plant and eguipment are
recognised In the statement of profit and |0ss In the year of oCcumence.

Depreciation on assels has been provided on a straght ine basis at the useful lives specified in the Schedule || of the Companies Acl,
2013. Depreciation on addiions/ deductions is calculated pro-rata from/ fo the period of additions/ deduclions.

The assels' residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed al each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. Currently the residual Iife 1s considersd as 5% of the value of property plant and equipment.

2.3 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property , Plant and Equipment
The Company assesses al each reporling date as to whether there is any indication thal ary property, plant and equipmentand intangitle
assets or group of assets, called cash generating units [CGU] may be Imp . Ifany such exlsts the ameunt of an
asset or CGU is esimated to determine the extent of impaimment. if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
Ineividual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU 10 which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Leoss fo the extent, assel's carying amount exceeds its recoverable
amounl. The recoverable amount is higher of an assers fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Valse in use is based on lhe
estimated future cash flows, discounted to thelr present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time vajue of money and fsk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting penod 15 reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023- Consclidated

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2.4 Finance Cost

Bormwing costs include exchange diferences arising from foreign currency borrowings fo the extent they are regarded as an adjusiment lo
the interest cost Borowing costs that are directly attribulable o the acquisition er construclion of gualifing assels are capitalised as part
of the Cost of SUCh assets. A qualmying asset IS one that necessarily takes substantial peried of time to get reacy for 13 Intenced use.

Interest INCome eamed on the ry of specific GS pEnding their on g g assets |3 ceducted from
the bormow ing costs eligible for capilalisation

All other horrowing cosls are chamed o the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

2.5 Inventories
Inventories are valued as under -
L Raw material, Stores 8 Spares are valued at lower of £ost (on FIFD basis) or net realisable value whichever is ower.
ii. Wark in Process at cost including related cverheads.
iii. Finished Goods & Slock In Trade are valued at cost or estimated realisable vaue whichever is lower. Cost comprises material, labour
and applicable overhead expenses.

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs Including manufacturing overheads in bringing them
to helr respective present Iocaton and condition.

2.6 Foreign Exchange Transactions
The Companys has not mace any Foreing Exchange Transaton dunng the year.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023- Consclidated

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2.7 Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods

Revenue Trem sale of goods Is recognised when the sionificant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred o the buyer,
recavery of e o 13 i . the cost can be estimated reliably, there 15 no continuing effective control or
manaqgerial imvoivement with the goods. and the amount of revenue can be measurad reliably.

Interest Income
Interest is recognized on a tme proportion Laking into aceount the amount cutstanding and rate applicable

Other Income
Other Income is ecognised when night to receive is established
2.8 Employee Benefits
(i} Short Term Employee Benefits
Al employes benefits falling due whally within welve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employes benefits. The

benefits like salaries, wages, shorl term compensated absences elc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the
period in which the employee renders the related service

(i) Post-Employment Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans: The o 5p fund I3 a defined cx plan. The ¢ paidipayabie
1S recognized in e period in which the emplovee renders the rejated service. The company has defined conTibution plans where the
company pays pre-gefined amounts and does not have any legal or constructive o pay sums for post

benefits.

b Defined Benefit Plans: The chiigation tawards gratulty s a defined benefit plan
The present value of the obiigation under such Defined Beneft Plans is delenmined based on aciuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise ko addiional unit of employee benefit entitlemeant and measures sach
unit separately to build up the final obligafion as per IND- AS 19, i e, "Employee Benefits"

The obligafion is measured at the present value of the estimated fulure cash flows. The discount rates used for delermining the present
valde of the ebligation under defined benefit pians, is based on the markel yields on Government securities as at the Balance sheet date,
having matunty periods approximatng to the terms of related obligations.

Hemeasurements, comprising of actuanal gains and losses, the effect of e asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
fhe net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assefs (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheel with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through ofher comprehensive
income in the period in which they eccur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and 10ss in subsequent periods.

2.9 Accounting for Taxes on Income
Due to 035 Incumed In cUment penod ne provision of Income Tax Proviced
Dieterred tax IS provided UsIng the Dalance sneet approach on temporary diferences atne reporing dats between e tax bases of assats
and liakiities and thelr carrying 1or fAnancial reporting purp a3t the reporting date.

Deferred tax assefs and liabiliBes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or fhe
liahility is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacled af the reporting dale

Deferred tax relating to tems recognised cutside the statement of profit and 1055 15 recognised outside the statement of profit and 033,
Dieferrad 13X (EMS are recognised In correlation to the uncerlying ransacton elther In other comprenensive INCome or directly in equity.

Dieferred tax assefs and defered tax liabilifies are offset if a legally enforceable night exists to sef off current tax assefs against cument
income fax lizhiliies and the deferred laxes relate to the same faxable entity and the same laxation authority
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023- Consclidated

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2,10 Financial instruments
2.10.1 Financial Assets
A Initial recognition and measurement
Al financial assets and llaniites are inigally recognized at falr value. Transaclon costs that are directly atibutabie 1o the acquisiion or
1SSUE of financlal assets and fnancial Liabiities, which are nat at falr value through profit or 105s, are agusted to the far value on Intial
recogniton. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using frade date accounting.

B.
1. Finanecial assets carried at amortised cost [AC)
A financial assel is measured at amortised cost M 1S held wilhin a business model whose objective 15 to hold the asset in order lo collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Tlows that are salely paymeants
of principal and interest an the prncipal amount cutstanding.
Il Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial assel ks measured at FYTOCT T L & held within a business modal whose objective is achieved by beth collecling contractial
cash flows and selling Inancial assets and the contractual terms of the financlal asset qive nse on speciled dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of pncipal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial assel which is nol classified in any of the above calegories are measured at FVTPL

c. in idiaries, A i and Joint
A subsidiary s an entity that is confrolied by the Company. The Company accounts for the invesiments in equily shares of subs idiaries al
cost In accordance with Ind AS Z7- Separate Financial Statements

D. Other Equity Investments
All other equily Investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those
equity Investments far which the Company nas elected to present the value changes In 'Other Comprehensive Income’.

E. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with ind AS 109, the Company uses 'Expected Credil Loss' (ECL) medel, for evaluaiing impaimment of financial assels olher
than those measured at fair value through prefitand less (FVTPL).

Expected credil losses are measured thiough a [0ss allowance al an amount equal to

- The 12-months expected credit [03ses (expected creditiesses that result from those default events on the financial Instrument that
are possible within 12 months  after the reporting date); or

- Full Ifetime expected cradit 105385 (eXpected creditlosses that result rom all possible default Vents over he Ife of the fnancial
nstrument)

Far trade receivables Company applies 'simplified approach’ which requires expecied ifefime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical defaull rates o determine impairment less on the portiolie of tade
recelvables. At every reporting date these histoncal default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward Icoking estimates are analvsed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for Impalrment lass where here 1s no sianificant Increase In credit risk. I
there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL s used
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023- Consclidated

(Rupees In Thousand, unless otherw|se stated)

2.10.2 Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial Babillies are reeognized at fair value and in case of lsans, nel of direclly atributable cost. Fees of recurming nature are directly
recngnized in the Statement of Profi and Loss as finance cost

*

. Subsequent measurement
Financial iabilities are caried al amorized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year
from the balance sheet date. the camying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these insirumenis,

2.10.3 Denivative fil ial i
The Company uses various dervative financial instuments such as interest rate swaps. currency swaps, forwards & oplons and
commadity contracts o mitigate fhe risk of changes in inferest rates, exchange mies and commodity prices. Such derivalive financial
instruments are infially recognised at fair value on the date on which & derivative confract is enlered inio and are also subsequently
al fair value. De ale camied as financial assels when [he fair value is positive and as financial iabillies when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of dervatives are taken directly 1o Statemeant of Profit and Loss, 2aepl for the
effective poroon of cash flow hedges which is recognised in Cther Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Less when
fhe hedged item affects prafit or Ioss or freafed as basis adjustment if @ hedged forecast transaciion subsequently results in the recognition
of a hon-financial assels er non-finarcial fability

2104 Derecognition of financial Instruments
The Company derscognizes a fnancial assets when the contractual ngnis o the cash flows Tem the Tinancial 8ssets explre 1o It transters
the financial assets and the transfer gualifies for derscegnition under INC-AS 109, A financial liability 15 d ized from the ©
Balance Sheet when the obligahon specified in the contract s discharged or cancelled or expires

£l pany s

211 F L and Ci gent Assets
a) Provisions are recegnized for liabiities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation, if
() Ihe Gompany has a present obiigation as a resull of a past event
() a probakle outflow of resources s expected to setie the abligation, ang
(i) the amount of the can be reliably :
It the effect of the time value of money |s matenal, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate that refiects, when appropriate,
the risks specific o the liabiity W hen discounting 1s used, the increase in the prowision due to the passage of ime is recognised as a
finance cost.
b) Reimbursemenl expected in respect of expenditure reguired o sefile a povision is recognized onfy when it is virtually cerdain that the
reimbursement will be recelved.
) Contingent Liability |5 disclosed In the case of
{i] & present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an cutflow of rescurces will be required to seftle the obligation,
(i} @ present obligation when no reliable eslimate is possiole, and
(iiiy @ possible obligation arising from past evenis where the probanilify of outflow of msources is nof remote.
] Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an Inflow of economic benefits is probable
e] Provisions, Conlingenl Liabilities and Conlingent Assels are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
1) DIvidend to equity sharenolders Is recognised as a llabliity and deducted from shareholders’ Equity, In the period In which the dividends
are app by the equity In the general meeting.
d) Basic EPS s computed by dividing the Profit or loss attibutable to the egquity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
numker of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the profit or kss afiibutabie to the ordinary
equity sharenolders and the weighted average number of ardinary equity shares, for the effects of all dilitive potential Crdinary shares.

213 9 of
Anaperating segment s a component of the Campany (hal engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating resulls are reguiarly reviewed by the com pany's Chief Operating Decision Make! ("CODMY In make decisions
for which diserete Tnancial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates
the Company's p e and allocates based on an analysis of Varkus performance Indicators by DUsIness segments and
geographic segments.

274 Use of estimates and judgement
The preparafion of financal in conformity with Ind AS requies that management of the Company makes estimales and
assumptions thal affect e reported amaunis of income and expenses of the period, Ihe repored balances of assets and labilities and the
disclosures relating to contingent liabiities as of the date of the financial statements

TNe key assumptions ConCeming e future and other key Sources of estimation uncerainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a matenal adjusiments to the caming amounts of assets and labilities within the next inancal year are described below
The company has based ils pli and esli an p i when fhe financial statements were prepared  Existing
dreumstances and ptions about future . however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond control of the management.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Fermerly Known as Sanwarka Agro Oils Limited)
CIN No. L15143MP 1991 PLCO0G395
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023 CONSOLIDATED
in Th d, unless otherwise stated
Particulars Nete Mar-23 Mar-22
ASSETS :
(1) |Mon-current Assets
(a) |Froperty, Flant & Equipment 3 759,195,566 824,137.32
(b} |Financial Assets
{i} Inve siments 4 92.08 92.08
{ii) Loans 5 8.704.82 8.713.51
(c) |Other Mon current Assets 3 180,990.78 180,998 78
Total Non-Current Assets 948 891,35 1.013,841.70
(2) |Current Assets
{a) |Inventories T 14 517 88 14,517 .89
(b)) |Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables B 2 B0 559 A2 2,410,793 85
{ii) Cash & Bank Balance 9 12,870,890 850507
(i) Bank Balance other than abowe (i) 557181 5426 41
(iv} Loans 10 (110.030.92) {110,030 22)|
(v} Gther Financial Assets il - -
(c) |Dther Current Assets 12 (11,235.04) (10,601 B4}
Total Current Assets 2,518,653.36 2,518,600.65
TOTAL ASSETS 346764471 3,532,642 35
|ELITY AND LIABILITIES:
(1) |Equity
(a) |Equity Share capital 13 736,100.00 736,100.00
i) [Other Equity 14 (6688 413 50} 6,542 300 45
Total Equity |5 862 3132.50) 5 806 200 46
Liabilities
{2} |Mon-current Liabilities :
{a) |Financial Liabiliies
{i} Borrowings 15 85.749.14 85.749.14
(b) |Pravisions 16 11,585.72 11,585 72
(c) |Deferred Tax Liabilities (Met) 17 10071476 108,653 84
Total Non-current Liabilities 198 059.62 205,998.71
(3) |C Liabilities
(a) |Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings ] B,905,038 16 8,905,039 16
i} Trade Payables 149 5982079 §8 506 06
(i} Other financial liabiliies a0 767887 T675 55
(b) |Current Tax Liabilities {net) 2 158 532 60 158,767 90
(c) [Other current liabiities 2 (87 36) (80 1)
(d) |Provisons 23 745 52 745 52
Total Current Liabilities 9,131.698.59 9,132,744 .09
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3467.644.71 3,532,642 35
Significant Accounting Folicies and Notes to Financial 11047
|Siatements
The accompanying noles are an integral par of the financial statements
|As per our report of even date
For Pramod K. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Management
Chartered Accountants
(CA Pramod Sharma ) Gautam Mittal
Partner Resolution Professional Director Director
. Mo 076883
FRHM Mo: 00TE5TC
Date © 24.03.2023
Place : Bhopal Chief Financial Officer
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as ia Agro Qils Limited)
CIN No. L15143MP1991PLCO0E395
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH 2023 CONSOLIDATED
(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)
S.No Particulars Note No. 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
I Revenue From Operalions 24 2 E
Il |Other Income 25 10,839 14 10,954 55
W |Total Income (1+1} 10,839.14 10,954.55
IV  |Expenses
Costof Material Consumed 2% - -
Purchase of Stock n Trade - -
Change in Inventonies of Finished Goods, Work in 27
progress and stock in rade =
Employee benefits expense 2B 2093.63 1,611.97
Other expenses 20 7,855.32 1061037
Finance costs 30 0.66 3.60
Depreciation and amorlizalion expensa 3 G4 041 66 T8 584 65
Total expenses (IV) 7489128 91.010.68
v Profit!{loss) before exceptional items and tax (ll-1V) (64,052.14) @0,058.1‘.&
vi Exceptional ltems -
VII  |Profit/(loss) before tax (V-V1) (64,052.14) (80.056.13)]
Vil [Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax - 5
(2) Deferred tax (7,939.08) (12.714.13)
Ix Profit (Loss) for the period @,113.[!5;; (8?1341.9!"
X Other Comprehensive Income
Afl)  |ltems that will be reclassified to profil or loss 251 3 -
Afii) |Income tax relating to tems that will be reclassified -
to profit or foss
B(i) [ltems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss -
B(ii} [|Income lax relatng to tems that wil not be
reciassified Lo profit or loss
Xl |Total Comprehensive Income for the period (56,113.05) (67,341.99)
{IX+X)} Comprising Profit{Loss) and Other
Comprehensive Income for the period)
Xl |Earnings per equity share 3z
(1) Basic {0.08) (009
{2) Diuted (0.08) (0.08)
|Significant Accounting Policies and Hotes to Financial 1to 47
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Pramod K. Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(CA Pramod Sharma ) Gautam Mittal
Partner Resolution Professional Direct: Director
M. No. 076883
FRN No: 007867C
Date : 24.05.2023 Chief Financial Officer =
Place - Bhopal
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[SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwarna Agro Oils Limited)

CIN Mo. L15143MP1981PLCO0E38E

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

|Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ending 31ST MARCH 2023- Consolidated

Particulars

F1-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

[Rs)

Rs)

£s) R

(A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
|Net Profit Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems
| Adjustment - for Depreciation
< for Other Comprehensive Inceme
< for Interest on FOR/OMhers
tor Misc. Balance Wio
< for Finance cost
Operating Profit Before Werking Capital Changes
Adi ; < i ital

(Increase) f Decrease in Oher Mon Current Assels
(Increase) f Decrease in Inventories

(Increase} [ Decrease in Financial Assels
(Increase) f Decrease In OMer CUTent Assets
Increase | [Decrease) in Financial Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
(Increase) f Decrease in Loans and Advances

Cash generateu from operalions
Income Taxes refund / (paid) during the year
Net Cash flow from j{used In) Operating Activities

|B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Addition) ! Release of Fixed Deposit

(Addition) ! Deduction of Fiked Ascels

Interest Received on FOR

Net Cash flow fromfiused in) Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Share Application Money

Procesds of Long Temn Borrowings

|Repayment of Long Term Borowings

Procesds of Long Tem Capital Subsidy

Proceeds | (Repayment) of Short Term Bomowings (Het)
Dividend Paw

Interest paid

Het Cash flow from /jused in) Financing Activities

Net Increase/ (decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cashand Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period

166,113.05)
64,941 66

(486.70)

(67,342 00) =
78,654 65 -

(588.14] -

BES

3,834.02
E34.29
247 05

{1.082.55

834191

3.631.50

- 10,664.62

32 -

3,337 68 =
(212.05) -
(24,253 78)
{907.56)

122,032 46)

11,873.41

2 |11,377.84)

(245 20)

486.70

11,973.41

- (11,377.94)

13,770.04

588.14 -

(7.529.08)

0.00

241,60

- 14,368.18

(12,714.13) 2

6,235.38

17,339.08)

4,275.82
8.,595.07

= ATETE)

- [3498.51)
= 12,093.59

12,870.90

8,595.07

As perour repart of even date
For Pramod K. Sharma & Co.
Chartersd Accountants

(CA Pramod Sharma )
|Partner

M Mo, 076683

FRN No: 007TBSTC

Date © 24.052023
Flace : Bhopal

| The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the nancial statements

Gautam Mittal

For and on behalf of the Board of Directers

Ashok Agrawal
Director

Suspended under CIRP

(Resolution Protessional)

Satish Agrawal
Director

Suspended under CIRP

Anill Vishwakarma
Chief Financlal OMcer
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S ATNVARIA ERL oy
Signifis aceounting policies and notes to the socolnts
For financial year ended 315T MARCH 2023
(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated]

iy K

3 ant ans nt
RS, Rs. Rs_ Y Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs Rs
Land 34T 560.95 - 347 560.86 - - - W,B&G.ﬁ 347 560.85
B. Buildings
1. Sile Dewed. 1 T3,703.36 - 7370336 ZTAIT21 332 B9 3017010 43533 76 45866 15
i_Faciory Building T8 10485 3 7B 14 BS 35 05720 484,44 37 541 54 40,563 20 A3047 B4
&1 Admn. & Godown Bulding B4, 684,53 - B4 684 53 2714188 405 33 2 547 31 13722 AT 542 65
C_Plant & 1007 513 80 - 1,007 513,80 66844 T 43 530 64 810,377 .38 187 136 41 240 56905
D. Furniture and Fixiures 8.466.83 = B 466 B3 7421.97 72245 314442 32241 1044 B5
Vehicles 12.608.86 = 12.506.86 1221407 541 12.219.49 389.37 3M.T5
F. Office Equipments =
I Coenulless. EXZEN] = 3544 61 352945 313 353261 112.00 11513
. Oeher Office: T 839109 - B.301.08 424 0.85 27508 116.00 116,85
nd blls TE TR 10 5 38 | '11%@ ﬁ?‘m T Wwasd|  foriiasr

A Land

1.071,219.38

6. Buildings s E = = =

i Sie Deveoprment = EENIEE T 2 PRI AT T T ECRECET

AL R sl R e : L7 TE 75— e AT N
C Plant & Equip = 007 613 70895 5 .40 40 768 B4 75 F40, 09,05 121,
X 5 B 465, B 9Ba5S a5 0 TaZiaT 104 Es L]

- 1260586 1220474 935 Z.21407 AT EER]

EXEEN:] = TAALET ] (X7 EXIEDY ERENE] TE 6 |

8,3 00 5 B30 261 71 53 827424 TEE ]

Z35,196.10 - 235.735.19 10450223 3,454,535 1755682 107,723 12335

E"“‘E = 1,630 415.05 | 927.690.08 78,564.65 006,277.73 Sa4i37.32 | si27Ear
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agre Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

|For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

{Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

4 Non- Current Investments

(a) |Investment measured at cost

Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies
Unquoted Fully Paid-up

Sanwaria Energy Limited 3,11,75410 Shares of Rs.10/- each. - -
Sanwaria Singapore Pte Limited 0.04 0.04

Total Unguoted Non-Cumrent Investment - -

(b) |Investment measured at fair value through Profit and Loss Account

Quoted Fully Paid-up
Punjab National Bank 1180 Equity Share of face value of Rs. 2- each

92.04 92.04
Total Quoted Non-Current Investment 92.04 92.04
Total Non-Current Investment 92.08 92.08
Category-Wise Non-Current Investment 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Financial Assets Carried at Cost 0.04 0.04
Financial Assets measured at Cost through Profit & Loss 92.04 92.04

Total Non-Current Investment 92.08 92.08
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

|For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

5 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS :
Loans (Un-Secured and Considered Good)
(a) Deposits 8,704.82 8,713 .51
Total Loans 8,704.82 8,713.51
Deposits includes mainly deposit with the Electricity
Department and Other Governmental Department,
which are in perpstual nature.

6 Other non-current asset (Un-Secured and

Considered Good)
(a) Balances with Government Authorities 180,044.40 180,044 40
(b) Others 954.38 954 .38

Total Other Non-Current Assets 180,998.78 180,998.78
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Qils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

|For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

T Inventories
Raw Materials 1,388.72 1,388.72
Work In Process - -
Finished Goods 9,524.00 9,524.00
Stores & Spares 3,155.60 3,155.60
Packing Material 377.57 3V7.57
Stock In Trade 72.00 72.00
Total Inventories 14,517.89 14,517.89
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS -

8 Trade Receivables

{Unsecured Considered Good)
Trade Receivables - -
Less than 180 days -

More then 180 days 2,606,950.82 2,610,793.85

Total Trade Receivable 2,606,959.82 2,610,793.85
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

9 Cash and Bank Balance

a. Cash on hand 670.50 670.50
b. Balances with banks

- In current accounts # 12,200.40 7.924 58
- In deposit accounts ## - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12,870.90 8,595.07
b. Balances with banks

- In deposit accounts ## 5,571.61 5.326.41
Total Cash and Bank Balance 18,442.50 13,921.48

## FEMDO Received dunng CIRP  from  Prospective
Resalution Applicant deposited as Fixed Deposit Receipt
(FDR). {in Previous year Fxed Deposil pledged as
collateral secunlies has been matued dunng the current
year)

10 Loans - (Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loans and Advances - Related Parties (116,057.06) (116,057.06)
Loans and Advances - Others 6,026.14 £,026.14
Total Loans (110,030.92) (110,030.92)
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|SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consoclidated
(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)
Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
11 Other Financial Assets
Other # = &
Total Loans - -
# Includes fair valuation of derivatives.
12 Other current assets
a. Balances with Government Authorities (12,674.23) (12,038.93)
b. Others # 1,438.29 1,438.29
Total Other Current Assets (11,235.94) (10,601.64)
# Includes Pre-paid Expenses and Claim
Receivabies.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 315t March 2023 -Consolidated

[Rupees In Thousand, uniess otherwise stated)

[EANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)

B |below:

Mumber of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period
Ak

Mumber of shares outstanding at the end of the period

©  |Termsirights attached to equity shares

one vole per share

Note Particulars 31Mar-23 31-Mar22
— Mo of shares Rs.In No of shares Rs.In
Thousand Thousand
13 |Share capital
A Authorised
Equity Shares at par face value of Rs. 14 each 780,000,600 TRO,000 00 TE0.000,000 THO,000 00
Preference Share at par face value of Rs. 10/~ each 2,000,000 20,000.00 2,000,000 20000.00
— = e
H Ibe
Equity Shares at par face vatue of Rs. 1/- each 736.100.000 T96,100.00 736.100.000 736,100.00
736,100,000 736 100 00 738,100,000 F36,100 00

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares autstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period are as given

=] Detalls ot shareholders helding more than 5% shares In the

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
No of shares Rs. In No of shares Rs.In
T T
736,100,000 736100 T36.100.000 736,100
735,100,000 736,100 736.100.000 736,100
(PRS2 S el

1) The company Nas only one class of equity Shares Naving par value of Rs. 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entiied to

il] In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining asseis of the Company.
The distnbution will be (n proportion to the number of Equity Sharss held by he shareholders.

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
|Mame of the shareholder Mo of shares % No of shares i3
Gulab Chand Agrawal 24,000 0.00% 24,000 0.00%
Satish Kumar Agrawal 24,000 0.00% 24000 0.00%
Anil Kumar Agrawal 57,999,324 7 88% 57,999,224 TBA%
CRB Trustee Limited Afc CRE Mutual Fund 26172000 3.56% 26.172.000 3.56%
Olh_EI E51.880.676 B8 56% 551,880 E76 88 56%
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|3&N‘N'&P.Ial CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sarwaria Agro Oils Limited|
Staternent of Changes in Equity as at March 31st, 2093

@ Equity Share Capital
Changes in
As ot equity As at
Particulars 1 April 2022 share st March
capital 023
during the
Equity Share class A 135 100.00 - 735.100.00
T36,100.00 - 736.100.00
b Other Equity Ry and Surplus
“::m: Preference Other
Partieulars ‘Money Capital General Revaluation Share Securities Retained -] Total
nding Reserve Rezerve Rezerve Redemptic | Premium Earning we Income
pencing for n Reserve (ol

Er:“:':;if“"‘;ubﬁg"""“g‘““” repoiting period . 300000 | 21270.80 | 36665176 . 13196000 | (7.219,789.61) 000 | (6506,900.45)

Amount Recsived | Share Allotted during the year|

Todal Comprahensive Income for (ha wear - =
Ind A5 -

Dividends
Transfer
Banus Sharss Issusdm 11

Chenges n eccounting pobicy'prar period Brors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the

e ot o By e 5 300000 | 21427540 | 36665176 . 13195000 | (7,29,789.61) 0.00 | {6,506,600.45)

Amaunt Receivad | Share Aflotted during tha year|
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {56,113 GSE = {56, 113.05)|
Ind AS Ay esbresits - - -
Divederds

TENSIEr

Banus Shares lssuedm 11

Balance st the and of the reporting pericd as
ot Mavch 3481, 2001 . 300000 | 21127980 | 366 65176 . 13195000 | (7,275.90267) 0.00 | (6563,022.51)
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

14 Other Equity

(a) Retained Earnings
Surplus at the beginning of the vear (7,276,428.35) (7,208,087.36)
Add : Profittloss during the year (56,113.05) (B67,342.00)
Add : Transition date adjustment - -
Add / Less : Transfer to Revaluation Reserve - -
Add !/ Less : Transfer to General Revaluation Reserve - -
Less: Dividend on Equity Shares - -
Less: Tax on Dividend -

Total (7,332,542.41) (7,276.429.35)
(b) Capital Reserve 3,000.00 3,000.00

Add / Less : Transferred from retained earning / - -
Appropriation during the year
Capital Reserve - Closing Balance 3,000.00 3,000.00

(e) General Reserve 232,527.15 232,527.15
Add / Less : Transferred from retained earning / -
Appropriation during the year
G | Reserve - Closing Balance 232527156 232,627 .15

(d) Revaluation Reserve 366,651.76 366,651.78
Add / Less : Transferred from retained earning / - -

Appropriation during the year
Revaluation Resenve - Closing Balance 366,651.76 366,651.76

(&) Freference Share Redemption Reserve - -
Add [ Less : Transferred from retained earning / - -
Appropriation during the year
Preference Share Redemption Reserve - Closing - -
Balance

(&) Securities Premium 131,950.00 131,950.00
Add : Issuance of share at premium - -

Less : Bonus Share issued during the year - -
Securities Premium - Closing Balance 131,850.00 131,850.00

(f) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) - Opening Balance -
Add / Less :Movement in OCI during the year -
Other Comprehensive Income - Closing Balance - -

(g) Share Application Money - s
Add /Less : Money received during the year - -
Share Application Money - Closing Balance P =

Total Other Equity (6,598,413.50) (6,542,300.45)
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated
(Rupees in Thousand, uniess otherwise stated)

SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

15 Non- Current Financial Liabilities :
Borrowing (Unsecured)
- Loans - Directors & Shareholders 85,749.14 85,749.14
- Inter Corporate Deposit - Related Parties - -
Total Borrowings 85,749.14 85,749.14

16 Non Current Provisions :
Provision for Employee Benefits 11,595.72 11,595.72
Total Provision 11,595.72 11,595.72

17 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
At the beginning of the year 108,853.84 121,367.97
Charged / (Credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (7,832.08) (12,714.13)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 100,714.76 108,653.84

Charge/
Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities As at 01-Apr- (Credit) to | As at 31-March
/{Assets) in relation to : 2022 Profit and 2023
Loss Account

Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) in relation to :
- Property Plant & Equipment's 61,277.68 7,939.08 53,338.60
- Provision (2,178.77) - (2,178.77)]
- Other Non-Current Assets 49,552.93 - 49,552.93
Total 108,653.84 7,939.08 100,714.76
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

18 |Borrowings

(a) Secured Loan from Bank
- Loans repayable on demand -Working Capital Loan - Note 8,898,803.66 8,898 803.66

1
- Loans repayable on demand -Working Capital Loan - Note - -

2
- Short Term Loan - Note 1 0.13 0.13
- Export Packing Credit: PCFC - Note 1 - -
Reimbursement of CIRP Cost 6,235.38 6,235.38
Total Borrowing 8,905,039.16 8,905,039.16

Note -1 Working Capital Loans are secured by Paari Passu charge on the Fixed Assets and
Present & Future Current Assets along with Personal Guarantee of Directors and by pledge of fully
paid up Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company .

Note -2 Working Capital Loans secured by pledge of warehouse receipt / storage receipt with lien,
along with Personal Guarantee of Directors

The Company has Defulted in repayment of following Banks Loans which is Admitted
during the CIRP

Amount (Rs.in Lacs)

Name of Financial Creditor Claim Admitted
Punjab National Bank 26850.78
State Bank of India 19388.94
Bank of Baroda 12403.58
Central Bank of India 11358.71
Bank of India 11034.25
IDBI Bank B567.30
Canara Bank 5665.98
Union Bank of India (Andhra Bank merged with UBI) 2835.51

98106.05

19 Trade payables
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others 59,829.78 58,586.06

Total Trade Payables 157,935.84 59,586.06

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
The Company has not received any memorandum from Suppliers’ (as required to be filed by the
‘Suppliers’ with the notified authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2008) claiming their status as on 31st March, 2023 as micro, small or medium enterprises.
Consequently, the interest paid/ payable by the company to such Suppliers, during the year is Nil
(Previous year: Nil).
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[SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

20 Other Financial Liabilities

(Advances and Sundry Deposits (701.77) (691.43)
EMD £.000.00 5,000.00
Others Payable 2 380 65 2 36699
Total Other Financial Liabilities 767887 7,676.55

21 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Provision for Income Tax 163,223 90 163,223 80
Less : Advance Tax/TDS 4.531.30) (3.436.00)
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 158,692 60 159,787.90
R iliation of I Tax Exp 31-Mar-23
Profit Before Tax (B4,052)
lApplicable Tax Slab 0.000%

Current Tax Provision - A =

Decrement in Defarred Tax Liability for Property Plant & Equipment’s 7.939.08
Increment in Deferred Tax Assets for Provision -

1 in Defarred Tax Liability for Othar Non-Current Assats -
Deferred Tax Provision - B 7,939.08
Tax Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 7,939.08
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rup in Th d, otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

22 Other Current Liabilities

Other Statutory Dues (87.36) (90.11)
Total Other Current Liabilities (87.36) {90.11)

23 Provisions
(a) Praovision for gratuity & bonus 745.52 745.52

Total Provision 745.52 745.52
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

24 Revenue from operations
Sale of Products -

Refined Oil

Crude Oil

Soya Meal

Basmati Rice

Food Grains & Others

Others

Income From power Generation

Total

25 Other income

Interest Income
Others

486.70
10,352.44

588.14
10,366.41

Tatal

10,839.14

10,954.55

251 Other Comprehensive income

1 i i
Unrealised Gain
Exchange Fluctution Gain/(loss)

| Total
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|SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

26 Cost of Material Consumed & Other Trading Stock
Purchases

Raw Material Consumed and Purchase of Stock in Trade % -
Trading Stock Purchases - -
Store & Spares tems Consumed = =
Packing Material Consumed = =

27 (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work In Progress and Stock In Trade
Opening Stock at the beginning of years

- Finished Goods 9,524.00 9,524.00
- Work In Progress = =
— Stock In Trade 72.00 72.00
9,596.00 9 596.00
Closing Stock at the closing of years
— Finished Goods 9,524.00 9,524.00
- Work In Progress - -
— Stock In Trade 72.00 72.00

- Transferred to Other Expenses

9,596.00 9,596.00




SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Olls Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
28 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages 2,077.42 1,632.30
Gratuity & Bonus - -
Contributions to Provident Fund & Others 16.21 179.67

Staff welfare expenses - -
Total 2,093.63 1,811.97
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I—smwnnm CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

29  |Other expenses

Power & Fuel Charges - 2.51
Repairs & Maintenance - -
Manufacturing General Expenses - -
Printing , Stationery & Communication Expenses - -
General Expenses 15.00 70.48

Warehousing Charges “ %
Insurance Charges 876.20 886.14
Advertisement Expenses 17.10 85.73
Legal & Professional Fees 3,508.05 5,089.44
Security Expenses 3,243.00 4.400.19

Miscellaneous Expenditure Written Off - 11.85
Product Selling Expenses - -
Shortage & Quality Rebate - -
Prior Period Expenses

Travelling Expenses 6B 4T 3443
Auditor's Remuneration

- Statutory/Tax/ Internal Audit Fees 28.50 20.50
Total 7,855.32 10,610.37

30 Finance Costs

Interest Expenses - -
Other Borrowing costs 0.66 389

Total 0.66 3.69
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED (Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

|For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consoclidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note  |Particulars Amount Years 31-Mar-23
31 Contingent Liabilities:
a. Bank Guarantee INR In Lakhs 6.00
b. Outstanding Forward Contract USD In Lakhs -
c. The company has not deposited following statutory dues on
account of dispute and for which preferred an appeal
Income Tax Act INR In Lakhs Various Years 7,297.33
Central Sales Tax Act INR In Lakhs | Various Years 72.04
Madhya Pradesh Entry Tax Act INR In Lakhs | Various Years 93275
Madhya Pradesh VAT Act INR In Lakhs Various Years 2575.21
EFFO INR In Lakhs \arious Years 16022
Central Excise INR In Lakhs | Various Years 100.26
MPIDC INR. In Lakhs Various Years 19.01
DTIC INR In Lakhs Various Years 28.77
Mumcipal Corporation INR In Lakhs Various Years 3.78
MP Electrical Department INR In Lakhs | Various Years 44 98
32 Earming Per Share (EFS) 3/Mar/23 31/Mari22

Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders in INR (56,113,054) (67,341,995)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (In nos.) - Basic 736,100,000 736,100,000
Weighted average number of Equity Shares (In nos.) - Diluted 736,100,000 736,100,000
Mominal Value of Equity per share (In Rs.) 1.00 1.00
Basic Earnings per share (In Rs.) (0.08) (0.09)
Diluted Eamnings per share (In Rs.) (0.08) (0.09)

33 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

A. CSR amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act read with Schedule V1| thereof by the
company during the year is Rs. NIL (due to Loss) (Previous Year Rs. NIL (due to Loss))

B. Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility is Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

The Company has incurred losses, its liabilities exceeded total assets and its net worth has been fully ercded as at|
31st March 2023, In view of the continuing default in payment of dues, certain lenders have sent notices/letters
recalling their loans given and called upon the Company to pay entire dues and other liabilitiss, receipt of invocation
notices of corporate guarantees given by the Company, while also invoking the perscnal guarantee of Promoter
34 Directors. Certain lenders have also issued wilful defaulter notices. As mentioned in Note No.1 the honourable NCLT
has admitted a petition to initiate insolvency proceeding against the Company under the Code. As per the Code, it is
required that the Company be managed as a going concern during the CIRP. The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

35 |Related Party Disclosures

A |Names of Related Parties

Associates and Group Companies: Subsidiary Company
NS Agrawal Trading Corporation Limited Sanwaria Singapore Pte Limited
Sanwaria Globfin Private Limited Sanwaria Energy Limited

Ashoik Dall and Oil Mills Itarsi

Sanwaria Infrastructure Limited

Sanwaria Warehousing & Logistic Limited
Sanwaria Foods Limited

Shreenathji Solvex Limited

Surya Trading Corporation

Seth Shree Narayan Agrawal Charitable Trust

B |Key Management Personnel:

Gulab Chand Agrawal - Chairman & Director Chief Financial Officer
Satish Agrawal - Director Anil Kumar Vishwakarma
Ashok Kumar Agrawal - Director Company Secretary: **

Anif Agrawal - Director (Died on 29.05.2021)

** Office of the Company Secetary has vacat since September 2021

C |Relatives:
Geeta Devi Agrawal Anju Devi Agrawal
Anil Kumar Agrawal HUF Sadhana Devi Agrawal
Ashok Kumar Agrawal HUF Reeta Devi Agrawal
Gulab Chand Agrawal HUF Bobby Devi Agrawal
Satish Kumar Agrawal HUF Ashutosh Agrawal
R.N. Agrawal HUF Rajul Agrawal

Abhishek Agrawal
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

upees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

36 |SegmentInformation -Amt in Cr.

The company was exclusively deals in agriculture based business i.e. Sclvent Extraction, Refining, Rice
Mill, Food Grains & Other Qils including other Food Products FMCG retail / bulk and thus operates in a
single business segment. during the year company has NIL turnover, for compliance of Ind AS -108 we
have broadly bifurcate the folowing for reporting purpose

Geographic wise Export Domestic
(incl.Indirect)
0.00 0.00
Product wise Rice Milling | Solvent Extraction Food Grain
0.00 0.00 0.00
Market Wise Bulk Retail {(Packing)
0.00

In the opinion of the board of directors of the company, the current financial assets i.e. Trade Receivable,
Loans and Others have the value on realisation in the ordinary course of the business at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated and that the provisions for all the known liabilities are adequate and not
37 |in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

Balances with Trade Payable, Trade Receivable and Loans & Advances are subject to confirmation/
reconciliation, although balance confirmation letters has been send to those parties.

The company has to comply with the Indian Accounting Standard - 19 on "Employee Bengfits” . The

28 retirement benefit costs (Gratuity Provision) as per acturial Valuation Report for March 2019
The company has an Current Tax liability shown under the head in note no 21 to financial statement
30 however company requested to the tax authorities to adjust the said liability demand against the old

pending refunds,
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Mote 40: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
[The Company's objective when managing the capital is to safeguard the Company's abiity to conlinue as a going|
concern.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt’ to “iotal equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt
is defined as total debt, compnsing inferest-bearing loans and borowings and obligations under finance leases, less
cash and cash equivalants Equity comprises of Equity share capital and other equity However, in view of certain
factors and liquidity problems faced by the Company, the net worth of the Company has been Tully eroded
and the Company s presently under CIRP process and thereby continue to operate as a geing concern. The
Company's adjusted net debt to adjusled equity ratio was as follows:

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Total liabilities® 8,090,788.30 8,990,788 30
Less - Cash and cash equivalant 12 87080 §,505.07
Less . Olher Bank Baalnce 5,571.61 5,326 41
MNet debt 8,072,345 80 8,976,865.82
Total aquity™ (5,862,313 50) (5,806,200 45)
Net debt to equity ratio (1.53) {1.55)

The Company has comglied with the covenants as per the terms of the major borrowing facilities throughout the
reporting penod
* Liabiities - Consists of Secured Loans from Banks and Unsecured Inans from directors/ relative and other entities

* Cash and Cash Equivalent - Consists of Cash and Cash Equivalent less balance with dividends accounts,

“Equity - Equity Share Capital + Other Equity

|Note 41-
The Mational Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Indore Bench, wvide order dated on 209th May, 2020 (“Insclvency
Commencement Date”) has inttiated Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP™) under the provisions of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("the Code") based on application filed by one creditor Mr. Kishor Ramniklal
Unadikat, sole proprietor of Mis Shakt Clearing Agency under section @ of The Insolvency and Banknuptcy Code, 2016
read with the rule 6 of The Insolvancy and Bankruptcy Rules, 2016 and the said application has been admitted by the
Authority wide no. (MP) CP {IB) Mo 7/ 9/ MCLT / AHM/ 2019 on 28th of May 2020 and MCLT has appointed Mr. Rajiv
Gosl as Insolvency Resolution Professional (IRP)to manage affairs of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of Code.
In the first meeting of Committee of Creditors ("CoC") held on July 28, 2020 and in lerms of Section 22 (2) of the
Code, resolved with 100% voling share, to replace the existing Interim Resolution Professional with Mr. Gautam Mittal
as tha resolution professional (RP) for the Company As per section 134 of the Companias Act, 2013, the financial
tat of the Comp are raquired to be authenticated by the Chairparson of the Board of Directors, whare
authorised by the Board or at feast two directors, of which one shall be managing director or the CEQ (being a
director), the CFO and Company Secretary where they are appointed. Pursuant to the NCLT order for commencement
of the CIRP and in line with the provisions of tha Code, tha powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and be
exercised by IRFP / RP. These Consolidated Audiled Financial Results for the quarter and year ended 31st March
2023 have been prepared by the it of the Comp and cartified by Mr_Anil Vishwakarma, Chief Financial
Officer ('CFOY) of the Company in accordance with Regulation 33 (2) of the SEEI (Listiong Obligations and Disclosure
Fequiremenls) Regulations, 2015

[This Consolidated Audited Financial Results were placed before the RP, the CFO on 10th May, 2023 for their]
consideration. Accordingly, the Consolidated Audited financial statements were considered and recommended in the
meeting. In view thereof, the RP, in reliance of such examination by and the representations, clarfications and
explanabions provided by the CFO, has approved the same. The RP is relying on the management representation
letter dated 10th May, 2023 for all i ion and confi i in relation lo the day fo day funclioning of the

The FRP has approved these Audited financial Statements only to the extent of discharging the powers of the Board of}
Directors of the Company (suspended during CIRF) which has been conferred upon him in lerms of provisions of]
ISechnn 17 of the Code.
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Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts
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Nore 42

The carrying value of tangible assets as at 31st March 2023 is Rs.7581.96 Lacs As explained in note no. 1
above the Company is under CIRP and the RP has invited submission of resolution plans from potential
resolution applicants, and put up for necessary approvals before the Committee of Creditor (‘CoC') and the
MNCLT. The CIRP is concluded and COC propose for liquidation. And the RP has Filed the Application
and which is pending before Hon'ble NCLT.

Nore 43

In accordance with the Code, public announcement was made calling upon the financial creditors and
operational creditors of the company to submit their claims with the Interim Resolution Professional ('IRP)
by 15.06.2020. In accordance with the Code, the IRP/RP has to receive, collate and admit the claims
submitted against the Company. Such claims can be submitted to the IRP/RP during CIRP, till the approval]
of a resolution plan by the CoC. Pursuant to the claims received on 15.06.2020, the CoC was formed on
01.07.2020, and the list of such creditors was duly notified to the NCLT and uploaded on the company
website. Thereafter, there could be regular revisions to the list in view of the claims received and the RP is
in the process of receiving, collating, verfying, seeking clarifications, sending communications for
unreconciled balance, seeking additional documents to substantiate whole or part of the unreconciled
balances on such claims. In respect of claims submitted by the financial creditors as on 15.06.2020, the
same is exceeding amount appearing in the books of accounts. To the extent the process for submission
and reconciliation of claims as on the Insolvency Commencement Date remains an on-going process, no
accounting impact in the books of accounts has been made in respect of excess, short or non-receipts of
claims for operational and financial creditors.

Note 44

The carrying value of tangible assets is Rs. 756106 Lacs. As explained in note no 43 above, the Company
|is under CIRP. As such, the Company has not taken into consideration any impact on the value of the
tangible assets, if any, in preparation of Financial statements as required by Ind-AS 10 on “Events after the
reporting period”. Further, the Company has also not made full assessment of impairment as required by,
Ind AS 36 on Impairment of Assets, if any, as at 31st March, 2023 in the value of tangible assets.

Note 45

The Company has not recognised interest payable, after the insolvency commencement date i.e. 29th May,
2020, on borrowings from banks and financial institutions, customer advance, inter corporate deposits
received. The same is not in compliance with Ind AS - 23 on “Borrowing Cost” read with Ind AS — 109 on
“Financial Instruments”.
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1) Fair vakie of e cash ared shoet term deposits, ourrent loans and advances sed oﬂwmwr\l finarcial liabiibes and ether simslar ilerns approximate ther caimying vakie
largaly dua to short term mahuriies of hase instruments,

) Long b spany based o sch i factars and the risk charactenstics of the fnanced




SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED {(Formerly Known as Sanwaria Agro Oils Limited)
Significant accounting policies and notes to the accounts

For financial year ended 31st March 2023 -Consolidated

(Rupees in Thousand, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 47: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Company's aclivities expose il to a vanely of financial risks, including Credil nsk, Commodity Price Risk, and liquidiy risk.
The Company’s primary risk management focus is fo minimize polenfial adverse effects of market risk on its financial
performance. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse
|the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the
same Risk went and t policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company's activites

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishmenl and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. This nofe presents information aboul the nsks associated with iis financial mstruments, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measunng and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.

1. Credit Risk
The Company is exposed to credit sk as a result of the risk of counlerparties defaulting on their obligahons. The Company's
exposure to credit nsk pnimanly relates o accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents including deposit with banks.

The Company has a prudent and conservative process of managing its credit nsk arisung in the course of ils business. All the
lrade receivables are reviewed and assessed for defaull on routine basis. Our historical expenience of collecting receviables,
supporied by the level of defaull, is that credit risk is low.

The Company maintans exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposil with bank and derivative financial instruments. The
(Company's maximum exposure to credil risk as al 30-Seplember-2022, 31-March-2021 is the camying value of each class of
{financial assets.

2. Commodity Price Risk
(Company is under CIRP and currently not being L

any Manufactuning activity.

3. Liquidity risk

The Company 15 exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability Lo fund its obligations as they become due. The Company monitors
and manages its hguidity risk o ensure access to sulficient funds o meel operational and financial requirements. The Company
has access o credit facilities and debt capital markets and monitors cash balances daily. In relation o the Company’s liquidity
risk, the Company’s policy is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under bath normal and stressed conditions as they fall due while minimizing financs costs, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risk of damage to the Company's reputation.

(Maturities of financial liabilities

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilites are as follows.

Borrowings 8.905,039.16 8574914 8,990,788 30
Trada payables o8 828 79 58,820 79
(Cther financial liabilities 7 678.87 7678 87
8972 547.83 E 85 74914 9 058 20697
i s at 31 March2 T e s s e ] Total
Borrowings £.905,039.16 85,749.14 §,990,788.30
Trade payables 59 586.06 58 586.06
Cther financial liabilities 767555 7675.55

8897230078 £ 85749 14 9058049 92
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As at 31 March 2021 1 1
Borrowings 8,896,204.51 79,774.61 8,975979.13
Trade payables 0348785 93 487 85
(Other financial liabilities 5,790 386 5,790 36
8909548273 - 7977461 9075257 33

4. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that an upward movement in the interest rate would adversaly effect the borrowing cost of the
company. The Company is exposed o long term and short-lerm borrowings. The Company manages interest rate risk by
monitonng its mix of fixed and floating rate instruments, and taking action as necessary to mantain an appropnate balance.

The exposure of the Company’s borrowings Lo interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

a) Interest rate risk exposure

) _ . | 31-Mar23 | 31-Mar-22
\ariable rate borrowings 8905,039.16  8905032.16
Fixed rate borrowings - =

b) Sensitivity analysis

The company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject lo interest rate risk
as defined in IND AS 107, since neither the camying amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate because of a change
in market interest rates. Hence sensifivity has been considered only on variable rate borrowing. Profit or loss estimate
to higher/lower interast rate axpense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest ratas

Impact on profit after tax |
3MMar23 |  31-Mar22
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis {44,525.20) (44,525.20)
points
Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis 44 52520 44 52520
points

15. Foreign Currency Risk

The company’s business objective includes safe-guarding its export earnings against adverse price movements of in foreign
exchange and interest rates The Company has adopted a structured risk management policy to hedge all these risks within an
acceptable risk limit and an approved hedge accounting framewark which allows for Fair Value and Cash Flow hedges Hedging
instruments include forward currency contract to achieve this objective.

@) Foreign Currency risk exposure

USD convered in INR (in Lakhs
=R T 31-Mar-

Loans, Trade & Other Payables
Trade and Other Receivable 188078 1.B15.77
Derivatives - Forwards and Fulures

b) Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity Analysis of 1% change in exchange rate af the end of Reporting period net of Hedges

Impact on profit after tax USD In |

3 Mar23 |  31-Mar22
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis 9.40 o.08
points
Interest rates - decrease by 50 basis (9.40) (9.08)
points
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
Registered Office: Office Hall No.1 1st Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal (M.P.) -462016
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com Email Id: liance@ iacc ner.com

Telephone: +91-755-4294878 Fax: +91-755-4295038

NOTICE of 32nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal Indore Bench (“NCLT”) had vide its order dated May
29 2020 admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process (“CIRP”)
of Corporate Debtor (“Admission Order”) in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 read
with the rules and regulations framed there under as amended from time to time (“Code”). Accordingly
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the IBC the powers of the Board of Directors of the Corporate
Debtor suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Rajeev Goel appointed as the Insolvency
Resolution Professional (the IRP or interim Resolution Professional). Further the committee of creditors
(CoC) of the Corporate Debtor pursuant to the meeting held on July 28 2020 and in terms of Section 22 (2)
of the Code resolved with 100% voting share to replace the existing Interim Resolution Professional with
Mr. Gautam Mittal as the resolution professional (RP) for the Corporate Debtor. Accordingly the NCLT
has in its hearing dated 4 September 2020 through video conferencing pronounced the approval for the
appointment of Mr. Gautam Mittal as the RP (“Resolution Professional”) of the Corporate Debtor.

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Second Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Sanwaria Consumer Limited will be held on Saturday, 30 2023 at 12.00 PM Hrs. (IST) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”)/ other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company standalone
and consolidated basis for the Financial Year ended March 31 2023 together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon;

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Satish Agrawal (DIN: 00256583) who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment and if thought fit to pass with or without
modification the following ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013
Shri Satish Agrawal (DIN: 002565830) who retires by rotation at this meeting be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following ordinary
resolution in respect of Remuneration of Auditors of the Company for 2023-24:

“RESOLVED THAT based on a recommendation to be made by the Board Member and
approved by Resolution Professional be and is hereby given to fix the Audit fees of the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2023-2024 to Rs. 1.50 lacs (Rupees One Lac
Fifty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes per annum .”

September 08 2023 For Sanwaria Consumer Limited Bhopal
Sdy/-
GAUTAM MITTAL
IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/TP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com
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NOTES:

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm
to be followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular
No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13,
2021 and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the
Members to the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video
conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and
participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is
not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporate are entitled to appoint
authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat
and cast their votes through e-voting.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM
will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015
(as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April
08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-
Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well
as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.sanwariaconsumer.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the
Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also
available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility)
i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and
MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May
05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING
GENERAL MEETING ARE ASUNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, September 25, 2023 at 09.00 A.M. and
ends on Friday, September 29, 2023 at 5.00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday,
September 22, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company
as on the cut-off date, being Friday, September 22, 2023.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
Share‘h'old.ers holding NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
securities in demat mode Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page
with NSDL.

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.
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2.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser
by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID
(i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also
download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.‘ App Store ' Google Play

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode
with CDSL

Users who have opted for CDSL
Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user
id and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The
users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my
easi username & password.
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2. After successful login the Easi /
Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per
the information provided by company. On clicking the
evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page
of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for
Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL
website www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly
access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also
able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers.

Individual
Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode)
login through their
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
account through your Depository Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can
holding securities in demat mode | contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
with NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
2499 7000
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can
holding securities in demat mode | contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free no.
1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Your User ID is:
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in 8 Character DP ID followed by 8
demat account with NSDL. Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is
IN300*** and Client ID is [2%%****
then your user ID is IN3(QQ*** ] 2##**k*

b) For Members who hold shares in 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID

is [2¥*FFkHAA%¥EX%* then your user ID
iS 12**************
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¢) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio
Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is
001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user
ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will
force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i)  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have

forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”’(If you are holding shares in your
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c¢) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on
the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast yvour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting
system?




SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 |

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active
status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM?” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cssakshikhandelwal@gmail.com with a copy
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF,
NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter
etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-
Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?”” or “Physical User Reset
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 70000r send a
request to at evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
Compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID
or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement,
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) to (Compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com). If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THEAGM

ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the

facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for
Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above
for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of
“VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are
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requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company
will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same
by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute
rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi
or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email
id, mobile number at (Compliance@sanwariaconsumer.com) The same will be replied by
the company suitably.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013
Item No. 2
Disclosure relating to a Director retiring by rotation pursuant to the provisions of the Act and
Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (the
'Listing Regulations'):

Name Satish Agrawal

Date of Birth January 28 1963

Date of Appointment April 221991

Qualifications Graduate

Experience in specific functional area Processing

Directorship held in other Companies 2 Companies

Particulars of Committees Chairmanship/ NIL
Membership in other Companies

No. of equity shares held in the Company 0

Disclosure of relationships between directors Brother of Directors ie. Mr. Gulab
inter est Chand Agrawal Mr. Anil Agrawal & Mr.

Ashok Agrawal

All the Directors except for the Independent Directors are concerned or interested in the aforesaid
resolution financially or otherwise.
The Board Recommends the ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval by
the members of the Company.
5d/-
GAUTAM MITTAL
IP Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P01331/2018-19/12058
Resolution Professional in the matter of Sanwaria Consumer Limited
Email id: sanwaria@aaainsolvency.com

For Sanwaria Consumer Limited

CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395

Registered Office:

Office Hall No.1 1st Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal-462016 (M.P.)

September 08 2023
Bhopal (M.P.)
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
Registered Office: Office Hall No.1 1st Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal (M.P.) -462016
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com Email Id: plianc i .com

Telephone: +91-755-4294878 Fax: +91-755-4295038

Attendance Slip
Members attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and
hand it over at the entrance of the meeting venue.

Name of the Member(s) (In block letters)............coecceiiiiiiiiiiinin.

Name of the Proxy if any (In block letters) ..................ccooooiin.

Folio No.

No. of Shares

I hereby record my presence at the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company at Office Hall No.1 1st
Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal-462016 (M.P.) on Saturday, 30th September 2023 at 12.00 P.M.

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy.................cooooiii,
1) Only members or the Proxy holder can attend the meeting.

2) Member/Proxy Holder should bring his/ her copy of Annual Report for reference at the meeting.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
Registered Office: Office Hall No.1 1st Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal (M.P.) -462016
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com Email Id: complianct iacc .com
Telephone: +91-755-4294878 Fax: +91-755-4295038

Form MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014]

Name of the MEemMbET(S): ... v.ounitiitiii et ens
Registered address: ...........cooiiiiiiiii
EmailId:.........oooooo Folio No/ Client Id: «.cevvuveeienceeiencenviecee e eenens

I/ We being the member (s) of ...........c..ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiin. shares of the above named

company hereby appoint

Lo NAIE . e
AATESS: .t
Email Id:........ooiicii e SIgNAtUTE or failing
him/her.

20 NAINEIL .o
AdAIeSS:. e
Email Id:.........oSignaturen. .o or failing
him/her.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my/ our behalf at the 32nd Annual

General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Office Hall No.1
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1st Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal-462016 (M.P.) on Saturday, 30t September 2023 at 12.00 P.M

and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Description For* | Abstain | Against*
1| To adopt Financial Statements etc. for the financial year ended
2022-2023.

To re-appoint Shri Satish Agrawal as Director

To fix the Audit fees of statutory auditors for the FY 2023-2024

N

@

Affix Revenue

Signed this .............. dayof ..o 2023 Stamp

Signature of Shareholder......................co
Signature of Proxy..........ccocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii

Notes:

» *Please put a ‘tick’ in the Box in the appropriate column against the respective
resolutions. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the
resolutions your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
appropriate.

» A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section
105 of the Companies Act 2013 a person can act as proxy on behalf of not more than fifty
Members and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of
the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the
Company may appoint a single person as proxy who shall not act as proxy for any other
Member.

> This form of Proxy to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company at Office Hall No.1 1st Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal (M.P.)-462016
not later than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the aforesaid
meeting.
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SANWARIA CONSUMER LIMITED

(Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide Order of Hon'ble NCLT dated 29.05.2020)
CIN: L15143MP1991PLC006395
Registered Office: Office Hall No.1 1st Floor Metro Walk Bittan Market Bhopal (M.P.) -462016
Website: www.sanwariaconsumer.com Email Id: complianc iacc .com
Telephone: +91-755-4294878 Fax: +91-755-4295038

Registration of email address for future communication

Name of the Shareholder (s) (In Block Letters)

Registered Address

E-mail Id

Registered Folio No.

Signature
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